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NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

  
This Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Form 10-K”) contains “forward-looking statements” (within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as 

amended (the “Securities Act”), Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995) 
relating to the Company and its subsidiaries that are based on the beliefs of the Company’s management as well as information that is currently available to the Company’s 
management.  When used in this Form 10-K, the words “may”, “will”, “believe”, “expects”, “anticipates”, “intends”, “estimates”, “projects”, “target”, “goal”, “plans”, 
“objective”, “should”, or similar expressions or variations on such expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements include, 
in particular, projections about the Company’s future results and statements about its plans, strategies, business prospects, changes and trends in its business and the 
markets in which it operates.  All statements other than statements of historical fact are forward-looking statements.  There are a number of risks, uncertainties and other 
important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from these forward-looking statements, including, but not limited to, the availability and pricing of 
additional capital to finance operations, competition, material adverse changes in economic and industry conditions, retention and renewal of existing agreements and entry 
into new agreements.  Because these forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied by 
the forward-looking statements. The Company does not undertake any obligation to publicly update these forward-looking statements. 

  
PART I 

  
ITEM 1. BUSINESS 
  

Unless the context indicates otherwise, all references in this Form 10-K to “Boldface,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to BOLDFACE Group, Inc. and its 
wholly-owned subsidiary, BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding.  All references in this Form 10-K to “BLB” refer solely to BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding. 
  
Overview 
  

We are a celebrity beauty licensing and branding company focused on acquiring top-tier entertainment, celebrity and designer brands for opportunities in the beauty, 
personal care, home and fragrance markets. We contract to design, manufacture and sell branded color cosmetics, hair preparations, fragrances, home fragrances, skincare, 
beauty tools and other beauty products in multiple channels of distribution. We currently own the cosmetics/beauty brand Kardashian Beauty™, and have licensed the right 
to use the Mario Lopez brand to develop and distribute products in the male fragrance and men’s grooming categories and the UGLYDOLL® brand to develop and distribute 
product in the personal care category. 

 
Our vision for Kardashian Beauty™ is to offer luxury products at affordable prices through mass retail channels.  We have secured distribution of Kardashian 

Beauty™ products in over 5,300 points of distribution with retail partners, including, among others, CVS, ULTA Beauty, Duane Reade, Fred Meyer, Meijer, and Ricky’s NYC, 
and are currently in active discussions with other retailers, including some of the largest pharmacy chains in the United States to distribute Kardashian Beauty™ products. 
 
Organizational History 
  

We were incorporated under the name Max Cash Media, Inc. in Nevada on July 9, 2007 with the intention of acquiring and marketing intellectual properties within the 
entertainment industry.  We conducted minimal operations in this line of business and decided to discontinue operations in this area. 
  

On May 21, 2012, we filed Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation with the Nevada Secretary of State to, among other things: 
  

  

  

●       changed our name from Max Cash Media, Inc. to BOLDFACE Group, Inc.; 
●       increased our authorized capital stock from 110,000,000 shares of stock, consisting of 100,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.001 par value per share, and 

10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.001 par value per share, to 310,000,000 shares of stock, consisting of 300,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.001 par 
value per share, and 10,000,000 shares of blank check preferred stock, $0.001 par value per share; and 

●       limited the liability of our officers and directors to the Company, our shareholders and our creditors to the fullest extent permitted by Nevada law. 
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On July 12, 2012, BOLDFACE Acquisition Corp., a Nevada corporation and our wholly-owned subsidiary, merged with and into BLB (the “Merger”).  In connection 

with the Merger, each share of BLB common stock was cancelled and converted into the right to receive shares of our common stock which resulted in the issuance of an 
aggregate of 25,000,000 shares of our common stock to the former shareholders of BLB.  BLB was the surviving corporation after completion of the Merger.  As a result of the 
Merger, we acquired the business of BLB and have continued the existing business operations of BLB, as our wholly-owned subsidiary.  In connection with the Merger, on 
August 14, 2012, our Board of Directors approved a change of our fiscal year end from September 30 to June 30. 
  

For financial reporting purposes, the Merger was treated as a capital transaction of BLB or a “reverse merger” rather than a business combination, because the sellers 
of BLB effectively controlled the combined company immediately following the completion of the Merger.  As such, BLB was deemed to be the accounting acquirer in the 
transaction and, consequently, the transaction was treated as a recapitalization of BLB. 
  

In conjunction with the Merger, we split off (the “Split-Off”) our wholly-owned subsidiary, BOLDFACE Split Corp., a Nevada corporation (“Split Corp.”). The Split-
Off was accomplished through the exchange of 189,781,000 shares of our common stock held by Noah Levinson (the “Split-Off Shareholder”) for all of the issued and 
outstanding shares of common stock of Split Corp.  All of our assets and liabilities immediately following the Merger, excluding any assets and liabilities of BLB assumed in 
the Merger, were transferred to Split Corp. 

  
BLB was incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada on April 26, 2012 and was founded by Ms. Nicole Ostoya, our Chief Executive Officer, President and 

Director, and Robin Coe-Hutshing, a principal shareholder of the Company, each beauty industry veterans with over 40 years of combined experience.     
  
Our Business Strategy and Recent Developments 
  

Business Strategy 
  

Our business strategy includes the following elements: 
  

  
Recent Developments 

  
As part of the implementation of our business strategy, the Company has: 

  

  

  

●   Creating fully articulated brands that foster longevity; 
●   Creating unique products that give a point of difference in the market; 
●   Developing strong launch and long-term marketing strategies to maintain market penetration; 
●   Realizing efficiencies across our supply chain, marketing processes, sales model and organizational structure; 
●   Growing and maximizing existing and future licenses with celebrities and established brands; 
●   Growing our manufacturing base to achieve competitive pricing and quality; 
●   Strategically growing each of our brands and increasing product sales and market share in their channel of business; 
●   Effectively managing inventory and implementing initiatives to reduce inventory levels, including the potential impact on cash flows and obsolescence; and 
●   Actively managing assortment and pricing strategies and achieving anticipated benefits from these strategies. 

●         Entered into license agreements with (i) entities owned by Kourtney, Kim and Khloe Kardashian, (ii) an entity owned by Mario Lopez and (iii) Pretty Ugly, 
LLC; 

●         Identified and partnered with key manufacturers that satisfy our quality, brand and margin requirements; 
●         Launched our first cosmetics/beauty brand Kardashian Beauty™ in October 2012 with a holiday collection at ULTA Beauty, CVS and other stores; 
●         Established and secured distribution of our Kardashian Beauty™ brand in the mass market retail channel and identified markets for future brands; 
●         Expanded the presence of our Kardashian Beauty™ brand to over 5,300 key beauty stores; 
●         Partnered with Venda, Inc. to launch a digital commerce platform for our Kardashian Beauty™ brand; 
●         Debuted our Kardashian Beauty™ brand and our new touch screen retail vending concept for Kardashian Beauty™ at Cosmoprof Worldwide in Bologna, 

Italy, one of the world’s leading events aimed at the beauty sector; 
●         Entered into Factoring Agreements and Supply Agreements with Star Funding, Inc. which enhance our ability to manufacture and sell our products and 

increase our working capital by supplying liquidity so that we can meet our obligations in a timely fashion; 
●         Raised $7.4 million through equity and convertible debt offerings; 
●         Appointed seasoned industry professionals to our Board of Directors who have experience in beauty, technology, licensing and public markets; and 
●         Secured a distribution agreement for Kardashian Beauty™ on July 8, 2013 with feelunique.com, one of Europe’s largest online beauty retailers through our 

European distributor, Global Beauty Secrets BV. 

  
-4-



  
License Agreements 
  

Kardashian Beauty™ License Agreement 
  

On May 9, 2012, BLB entered into a license agreement (the “Kardashian License Agreement”) with 2Die4Kourt, Inc., a California corporation wholly owned by 
Kourtney Kardashian, Kimsaprincess, Inc., a California corporation wholly owned by Kim Kardashian, and Khlomoney, Inc., a California corporation wholly owned by Khloe 
Kardashian whereby (i) we acquired the exclusive worldwide right and license to use certain trademarks owned by the licensors in connection with the development, 
manufacture, production, distribution, advertisement, promotion and sale of a line of cosmetic consumer products, including a high end line of cosmetic products to be sold at 
certain high end retailers; and (ii) the licensors agreed to provide certain ancillary services, including providing promotional and marketing support of the licensed products. 
Under the Kardashian License Agreement, we have the right to sublicense the license as it relates to the manufacture of the licensed products.  The term of the Kardashian 
License Agreement is four years, with an 18-month renewal option in favor of BLB. Pursuant to the Kardashian License Agreement, we agreed to make certain royalty 
payments to the Licensors, which are based on a percentage of the net sales of the licensed products.  The Licensors are also entitled to receive certain guaranteed minimum 
royalties during each contract year. Additionally, in connection with the Kardashian License Agreement, we issued warrants to purchase 10,000,000 shares of our common 
stock to the Licensors. 

  
In October 2012, we launched the initial product line of our Kardashian Beauty™ brand with a holiday collection at ULTA Beauty, CVS and other stores.  In October 

2012, we shipped the first products of our Kardashian Beauty™ brand to over 4,500 retail stores throughout the United States, including, among others, CVS, ULTA Beauty, 
Duane Reade, Fred Meyer, Meijer, and Ricky’s NYC. The initial products included: (i) seven styles of high quality false eyelashes; (ii) four different mascara styles, each with a 
specifically targeted benefit, such as length, thickness, health, or water resistance; (iii) a trio of “Kardazzle” all-over face palette kits; (iv) “au naturel nude lip set” for Kim’s 
signature lip look and (v) “She-bang Instant Transformation Set” with a nude eye shadow palette, faux lashes and kohl eye liner. 

 
In February 2013, we launched the complete product line of Kardashian Beauty™ in 4,100 stores.  We launched over 80 stock-keeping units (“SKUs”) with a full range 

of color cosmetics in the eyes, lips, face and nail categories using high quality formulations, including our signature items such as the Kurve Powder Compact, K24 Priming 
Face Gelee and Intimate Spotlight Illuminator. 

  
In March 2013, we launched our Kardashian Beauty™ brand in 138 Duane Reade stores and on Beauty.com.  In March 2013, we also debuted our Kardashian 

Beauty™ brand and our new touch screen retail-vending concept for Kardashian Beauty™ at Cosmoprof Worldwide in Bologna, Italy, one of the world’s leading events aimed 
at the beauty sector.  Our touch screen retail-vending concept, in development for over 9 months, is one of the first interfaces of its type in beauty retailing and functions like a 
life-sized iPad.  The units are expected to appeal to Asian distributors and high traffic hotels. 

  
Kardashian Beauty™ products are currently sold in the following retail outlets: 

 

  

  

●   CVS (nationwide distribution); 
●   ULTA Beauty (nationwide distribution); 
 ●     Bartell Drug Company; 
●   Burlington Coat Factory; 
●   Dash; 
●   Duane Reade; 
●   Fred Meyer; 
●   H.E. Butt; 
●   Kardashian Khaos; 
●   Meijer; 
●   Ricky’s NYC; 
●   Savemart; 
●  
 ●  

Beauty.com; and 
Feelunique.com; and 

●   Kardashianbeauty.eu. 
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On May 9, 2013, we changed the name of our Kardashian cosmetics/beauty brand to Kardashian Beauty™.  We believe that the name change is in the best interests 

of our Company and our shareholders and was done after numerous attempts to resolve trademark litigation relating to usage of the word “Khroma” in the name of the 
Kardashian cosmetics/beauty brand.   

 
On July 8, 2013, our European distributor, Global Beauty Secrets BV, led by Paul Hendriks and Nicole Arnoldussen, secured an agreement for the distribution of 

Kardashian Beauty™ products with feelunique, one of Europe’s largest online beauty retailers. 
 

On July 29, 2013, we launched our Kardashian Beauty™ brand in Australia with Mecca Maxima and KIT, two of Australia’s premier beauty destinations. On 
September 10, 2013, our South African distributor, Azulade Marketing, launched our Kardashian Beauty™ brand in Stuttafords. Stuttafords is a boutique beauty retailer that 
sells international brands such as Dior, Estee Lauder, Cartier, and Clinique. 

  
Pez-Mar, Via Mar Productions, Inc. License Agreement 

  
On July 11, 2012, we entered into a license agreement (the “Lopez License Agreement”) with Pez-Mar, Via Mar Productions Inc., a corporation wholly owned by Mario 

Lopez pursuant to which (i) we acquired the exclusive right and license to use certain trademarks owned by the licensor in connection with the development, manufacture, 
production, distribution, advertisement, promotion and sale of a line of male fragrances, toiletries and other agreed upon products within the United States and its territories 
and possessions, Canada, Mexico and “duty-free” zones and shops; and (ii) the licensor has agreed to provide certain ancillary services, including providing promotional and 
marketing support of the licensed products. The term of the Lopez License Agreement expires in February 2016. Pursuant to the Lopez License Agreement, we agreed to make 
certain royalty payments to Mario Lopez, which are based on a percentage of the net sales of the licensed products. The licensor is also entitled to receive certain guaranteed 
minimum royalties during the term of the Lopez License Agreement (see Note 9 to our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K). We 
plan to launch this line of male fragrances and toiletry products by the end of 2014. 

  
Pretty Ugly, LLC License Agreement 
  
On April 17, 2013, we entered into a license agreement (the “UGLYDOLL® License Agreement”) with Pretty Ugly, LLC, the creator of the popular UGLYDOLL® brand, 

pursuant to which we acquired the exclusive right and license to use certain UGLYDOLL® characters in connection with the development, manufacture, production, 
distribution, advertisement, promotion and sale of a line of beauty and personal products, including bath, soap, shower and body care products, lip balms, fragrances and bath 
accessories. Pursuant to the UGLYDOLL® License Agreement, we agreed to make certain royalty payments to the licensor based on a percentage of the net sales of the 
licensed products. The licensor is also entitled to receive certain guaranteed minimum royalties during the term of the UGLYDOLL® License Agreement (see Note 9 to our 
audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K).  We plan to launch this line of beauty and personal care products by the end of 2014. 
 

David Horvath and Sun-Min Kim created the UGLYDOLL® characters in 2001, and since that time, the franchise has become a worldwide success with an extensive 
line of licensed products and publishing rights.  Since its creation, the UGLYDOLL® brand has been retailed at Barneys, the Museum of Modern Art, Giant Robot, Colette 
Paris, Barnes & Noble and Toys R Us. UGLYDOLL®’s customer base varies from young children to design sophisticates.   

  
Additional License Agreements 

 
The Company plans to expand its current business by acquiring additional licenses, including celebrity licenses, and we are currently in discussions with a number of 

additional potential licensors. 
 
Marketing 
  

To market our products, we use print, television, and internet advertising, point-of-sale merchandising, including displays and samples, as well as other means of 
marketing. We also work with marketing and public relations firms to market our products, and have engaged Alison Brod PR to assist with marketing our brands. 
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New Product Development and Research and Development 
  

We have retained Gold Grenade, LLC (“Gold Grenade”), a beauty and fragrance product development firm (and an affiliate of Nicole Ostoya, our Chief Executive 
Officer and President, and Robin Coe-Hutshing, one of our principal shareholders), for product development, design, trafficking and sourcing manufacturers for our products. 
Gold Grenade assists the Company in identifying consumer needs and shifts in consumer preferences in order to develop new products, introduce line extensions and redesign 
or reformulate existing products to satisfy consumer needs or preferences. 

  
Manufacturing 
  

We do not manufacture any of our products.  We contract with third-party cosmetics and beauty manufacturers.  Our products are manufactured from high quality 
ingredients, and we do not permit the use of certain ingredients, including parabens, petrochemicals and phthalates.  We also do not permit our products to be tested on 
animals.   

  
To attempt to ensure that our products are manufactured according to industry best practices, we enter into compliance agreements with our manufacturing partners 

which requires our manufacturing partners to adhere to safe labor standards and practices. We will continue to review our manufacturing needs and work with Gold Grenade 
and its outside manufacturers to identify opportunities to reduce costs and improve efficiency. 

  
Distribution 
  

As of June 30, 2013, we sold our products primarily through mass retailers in the United States, but also abroad with a specific focus on countries in which our 
licensors have a wide following.  As part of our distribution strategy, we have entered into a (i) three-year distribution agreement with a U.S. distributor pursuant to which 
such distributor represents, promotes and sells our products in the U.S. and (ii) three-year distribution agreement with Global Beauty Secrets, led by Paul Hendriks and Nicole 
Arnoldussen, pursuant to which Global Beauty Secrets represents, promotes and sells our products in the European Union, Iceland, Norway, Turkey, Switzerland, Croatia and 
Macedonia.  

  
 In February 2013, we partnered with Venda, Inc. to launch a digital commerce platform for our Kardashian Beauty™. Venda, Inc. is one of the world’s leading 

providers of on demand digital commerce for web, tablet, mobile, Facebook and Twitter, having the ability to handle traffic surges without concerns for capacity. 
  

Customers 
  

As of June 30, 2013, the principal customers of our Kardashian Beauty™ line of products were mass retailers and chain drug stores. Our current customers include: 
  

 
We intend to attempt to establish relationships with other domestic and international retailers to carry our other products. 
  

  

●   CVS (nationwide distribution); 
●   ULTA Beauty (nationwide distribution); 
●   Bartell Drug Company; 
●   Burlington Coat Factory; 
●   Dash; 
●   Duane Reade; 
●    Fred Meyer; 
●   H.E. Butt; 
●   Kardashian Khaos; 
●   Meijer; 
●   Ricky’s NYC; 
●   Savemart; 
●  
●  

Beauty.com;  
Feelunique.com; and 

●   Kardashianbeauty.eu. 
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Competition 
  

The consumer beauty products business is highly competitive. We face vigorous competition from companies throughout the United States and the world, including 
multinational consumer product companies.  Most of these competitors have greater resources than we do and may be able to respond to changing business and economic 
conditions more quickly than us.  Competition in the beauty business is based on the pricing of products, innovation, perceived value, service to the consumer, promotional 
activities, advertising, special events, new product introductions, e-commerce and m-commerce initiatives and other activities. Our ability to compete depends on the 
continued strength of our brands, our ability to attract and retain key talent and other personnel and the efficiency of our manufacturing channels and distribution networks. 

  
We intend to compete by: 
  

  
One of our competitive strengths is our ability to place a brand into the right channel of distribution, whether the product is high end or intended for mass 

distribution.  Our strategy is to develop each brand through the development and implementation of a marketing strategy appropriate for the space it occupies. 
  

Patents, Trademarks and Proprietary Technology 
  

We consider trademark and patent protection to be important to our business.  Trademarks for which we have applied for registration in the United States include 
Kardashian Beauty™, Kardazzle™ and Kardashian Kurve™.  We have not applied for registration of any of our trademarks in any foreign jurisdictions. However, we intend to 
apply for foreign trademark protection for our brands in all applicable jurisdictions. 

  
We do not currently have any patents. However, we intend to file patents in the ordinary course of our business with respect to any new technologies that we 

develop.  We also intend to protect certain of our packaging and component concepts through patents. 
  
We have applied to register or own the following domain names: kardashianbeauty.com; kardashian-beauty.com; boldfacegroup.com; boldfacelicensing.com; and 

boldfacelicensingandbranding.com. 
  
Government Regulation 
  

We are subject to regulation by the Food and Drug Administration (the “FDA”) in the United States, as well as various other federal, state, local and foreign 
regulatory authorities in which we conduct our operations or sell our products. The Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, administered by the FDA, prohibits the marketing 
of adulterated or misbranded cosmetics in interstate commerce. The Fair Packaging and Labeling Act, also administered by the FDA, requires cosmetics companies to include 
an ingredient declaration to enable consumers to make informed purchasing decisions. The FDA’s regulation of cosmetics is different from other products regulated by the 
agency, such as drugs, biologics, and medical devices. Cosmetic products and ingredients are not subject to FDA premarket approval authority, with the exception of color 
additives. However, the FDA may pursue enforcement action against companies that manufacture or sell products that violate FDA rules or regulations. 
  
Employees 
  

As of June 30, 2013, we had 6 employees, all of whom are full-time employees and work at our principal executive office. 
  

  

●   developing unique quality products with innovative features, shades, finishes, components and packaging; 
●   partnering with brands and celebrities that have consumer awareness and longevity; 
●   creating strong partnerships with the retailers we do business with; 
●   having competitive pricing strategies for all brands appropriate for distribution; 
●   maximizing assets of all brand ambassadors, including twitter, Facebook and Instagram; 
●   maintaining an “in stock” position through effective planning and replenishment collaboration with retailers; and 
●   working with outside marketing and PR firms and sales representatives to maximize advertising, marketing and promotion of our products, as well as 

optimizing its retail floor space, in-store positioning and effective presentation of our products at retail. 
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS 
 

You should consider the following risks and all of the other information in this Form 10-K in connection with evaluating our business and the forward-looking 
statements contained in this Form 10-K.  Our business may also be adversely affected by risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently believe to be 
immaterial.  If any of the events contemplated by the following discussion of risks should occur or other risks arise or develop, our business, prospects, financial condition and 
results of operations, may be materially and adversely affected. 
  

RISKS RELATED TO THE COMPANY 
  

We have a limited operating history. 
  
Our wholly-owned operating subsidiary, BLB, was incorporated on April 26, 2012.  BLB has a limited operating history in an industry characterized by changing 

consumer preferences, evolving industry standards and frequent introductions of new products and services.  As of June 30, 2013, BLB had entered into three license 
agreements: (i) the Kardashian License Agreement, (ii) the Lopez License Agreement and (iii) the UGLYDOLL® License Agreement.  In February 2013, the Company launched 
the mainstay line of products for our Kardashian Beauty™ brand.  The Company expects to secure distribution of its product lines relating to the Lopez License Agreement 
and the UGLYDOLL® License Agreement by the end of 2014. 

  
The Company expects to enter into additional license agreements although no assurance can be given that the Company will be able to do so. Our limited operating 

history, and our dependence on a limited number of license agreements and the uncertainty surrounding our ability to enter into additional licensing agreements may have a 
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

  
Our operating results are unpredictable and are expected to fluctuate in the future. 
  
Our operating results are unpredictable and are expected to fluctuate in the future as a result of a number of factors, many of which may be beyond our control. As a 

result, operating results for any period should not be relied upon as an indication of our future performance.  The following factors may affect our operating results: 
 

  
Because our business is constantly evolving, our historical operating results may not be useful in predicting our future operating results. 

 
Our working capital is limited and we may need additional financing to continue our operations. 
  
As of June 30, 2013, we had working capital of $0.047 million, which includes the current portion of amortized debt discounts of $0.117 million.  We require substantial 

working capital to fund our operations, and additional capital may be necessary for our Company to continue its operations. If we are unable to obtain financing in the 
amounts desired and on acceptable terms, or at all, or issue additional equity or debt, we may be required to significantly reduce the scope of our operations, which may have a 
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

  
If unknown liabilities should arise in connection with the Merger and the Split-off, we may be required to divert cash from other business purposes to discharge 

such liabilities, which may have an adverse effect on our business. 
  

Although we transferred certain assets and liabilities relating to our pre-merger shell operations in connection with the Merger and the Split-off, there can be no 
assurance that such transfer will release us of all such liabilities.  If the transferee does not pay such liabilities or unknown liabilities arise, we may be required to divert cash 
from other business purposes to discharge such liabilities, which may have an adverse effect on our current business. 

  

  

●         our ability to deliver products in a timely manner and in sufficient volumes; 
●         our ability to recognize product trends; 
●         our loss of one or more significant distributors or customers; 
●         the introduction of successful new products by our competitors; 
●         our inability to maintain or increase awareness and recognition of our brands; and 
●         adverse media reports on the use of our products. 
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Our failure to manage our growth could place a significant strain on our operational and financial resources. 

  
Our growth has placed a significant strain on our operational and financial resources and has placed significant demands on our current management and 

personnel.  In order to manage growth, we will be required to expand existing operations, particularly with respect to product development and marketing, to improve existing, 
and implement new, operational and financial systems, procedures and controls. 
  

We have experienced a significant strain on our resources because of difficulties in hiring and retaining skilled personnel necessary to support our business 
pressures for the continued development of our financial and information management systems.  Difficulties we may encounter in dealing successfully with the above risks 
could adversely affect our operations. We cannot offer any assurance that our current personnel, systems, procedures and controls will be adequate to support our future 
operations or that management will be able to identify, hire, train, retain, motivate and manage required personnel.  A failure to manage our growth effectively could have a 
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. 
  

Our success depends on our key personnel and our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel. 
 

Our success depends on our ability to retain our key personnel, including Nicole Ostoya, our President and Chief Executive Officer.  The unexpected loss of one or 
more of our key employees could adversely affect our business.  Our success also depends on our ability to identify, attract, hire, train, motivate, and retain other highly 
qualified personnel.  We may not be successful in attracting, assimilating or retaining qualified personnel in the future, and our failure to do so could adversely affect our 
business. 
  

Our success depends on our ability to execute our business strategy. If we are unable to raise additional capital, our ability to fully implement our business 
strategy will be limited.   
  

Our ability to implement our business strategy is dependent upon a number of factors, including our ability to: 
  

  
There can be no assurance that any of these initiatives will be successfully and fully executed in the amounts or within the time periods that we expect. 

  
In order to fully implement our business strategy, we will need to raise additional capital.  If we fail to do so, our ability to expand our sales team as needed to expand 

to other regions and otherwise fully implement our business plan will be limited. 
  

We rely on a limited number of customers for a substantial portion of our sales, and the loss of or a material reduction in purchase volume by any of these 
customers would adversely affect our sales and operating results. 

  
For the year ended June 30, 2013, two of our customers accounted for approximately 68% of our sales.  Our largest customer for the year ended June 30, 2013, 

accounted for 44% of our sales.  The loss of any of our major customers, a significant reduction in purchases by any major customer, or, any serious financial difficulty of a 
major customer, could have a material adverse effect on our sales and results of operations. 
  

  

  

●         develop high-quality brands in connection with our current license agreements; 
●         establish, maintain and increase our product sales and market share, and strengthen the image of our brands; 
●         implement appropriate product mix and pricing strategies and achieve anticipated benefits from these strategies; 
●         realize efficiencies across our supply chain, marketing processes, sales model and organizational structure; 
●         effectively manage inventory and implement initiatives to reduce inventory levels, including the potential impact on cash flows and obsolescence; 
●         enter into additional license agreements; and 
●         secure short and long-term financing at attractive rates. 
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If we are unable to protect our intellectual property rights, specifically our trademarks, our ability to compete could be negatively impacted. 

  
We currently own the trademark Kardashian Beauty™, and we expect that in the future we will also own additional trademarks used in connection with the marketing 

and distribution of other product lines that we develop.  We can offer no assurances that we will be able to obtain protection for our proprietary information or that our 
intellectual property rights will guarantee a competitive advantage. 
  

We are defendants in two pending related trademark litigation cases which may have a material and adverse impact on our business, financial condition or 
results of operations. 
  

We are currently party to two disputes which involve litigation.  On November 19, 2012, an action entitled Chroma Makeup Studio, LLC. v. BOLDFACE Group, Inc. 
and BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding was filed in the United States District Court for the Central District of California, Western Division. Chroma Makeup Studio, LLC 
(“Chroma”) alleged that our use of the term “Khroma”, including the marks Khroma Beauty and Khroma Beauty By Kourtney, Kim and Khloe (the “Khroma Beauty Marks”), 
infringes upon Chroma’s rights in its Chroma mark. The complaint included claims for trademark infringement under the Lanham Act and unfair competition under applicable 
California law. The parties are currently in the discovery phase, and the court has set a tentative trial date of April 22, 2014. 
 

On November 30, 2012, we filed a complaint for a declaratory judgment in the United States District Court for the Central District of California, Western Division 
entitled BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding v. By Lee Tillett, Inc. (“Tillett”). BLB’s complaint requests a declaration from the Court that (1) BLB’s use of the Khroma Beauty 
Marks does not infringe on Tillett’s rights in its Kroma mark, and (2) BLB’s pending trademark applications for the Khroma Beauty Marks should be allowed to register with 
the United States Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”). On January 9, 2013, Tillett filed an answer and counterclaims for (1) trademark infringement, (2) false designation of 
origin, (3) trademark infringement, and (4) unfair competition under applicable California law. In addition to BLB, Tillett’s Counterclaims are made against the following 
additional parties: Kimsaprincess Inc., 2Die4Kourt Inc., Khlomoney Inc., and individuals Kim Kardashian, Kourtney Kardashian, and Khloe Kardashian (collectively, the 
“Kardashian Parties”). The parties are currently in the discovery phase, and the court has set a tentative trial date of April 22, 2014. 
  

If we are unable to successfully defend against these actions, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially adversely effected. 
 

For additional disclosure relating to these actions, please see Item 3 “Legal Proceedings” contained elsewhere in this Form 10-K. 
  
As of June 30, 2013, our management determined that certain disclosure controls and procedures were ineffective, which could result in material misstatements 

of our financial statements. 
  
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the 

Exchange Act. As of June 30, 2013, our management determined that some of our disclosure controls and procedures were ineffective due to weaknesses in our financial 
closing process. 

  
When our resources permit, we intend to implement remedial measures designed to address the ineffectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, such as (i) 

hiring several individuals with accounting, auditing and financial reporting experience, (ii) segregating our internal and external financial reporting among a larger finance and 
accounting staff, (iii) implementing more specific segregation of our accounting software and (iv) providing historical information more timely, such as monthly budgeting 
analysis.  We have also adopted and implemented written procedures to document retailer purchase orders, inventory buying, product discounts and product transition flow, 
invoice review, cash and expense management, as well as an analysis of our cost of goods sold.  If these remedial measures are insufficient to address the ineffectiveness of 
our disclosure controls and procedures, or if material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in our internal controls are discovered or occur in the future, we may fail to meet 
our future reporting obligations on a timely basis, our consolidated financial statements may contain material misstatements, and we may be required to restate our prior period 
financial results. 
 

We can give no assurance that the measures we plan to take in the future will remediate the ineffectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures or that any 
material weaknesses will not arise in the future due to a failure to implement and maintain adequate internal control over financial reporting or adequate disclosure controls and 
procedures.  In addition, even if we are successful in strengthening our disclosure controls and procedures, in the future those controls and procedures may not be adequate 
to prevent or identify irregularities or errors or to facilitate the fair presentation of our consolidated financial statements.  
 

Upon completion of our offering of 8% original issue discount senior secured convertible debentures (the “Debentures”) and related warrants, we incurred 
significant debt obligations. The terms of the Debentures impose significant operating and financial restrictions on us and our subsidiaries, which may materially and 
adversely affect our business. 
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As of June 30, 2013, we had total debt, prior to debt discounts, of approximately $1.680 million under the Debentures, plus accrued interest of approximately $3,733. In 

connection with the sale of the Debentures, the investors who purchased our 12% secured convertible notes in December 2012, March 2013 and April 2013 in an aggregate 
principal amount of $3.380 million converted all of their 12% secured convertible notes (including accrued and unpaid interest thereon) into our shares of common stock. 
  

The terms of the Debentures and the Factoring Agreements, dated as of October 17, 2012, and the Supply Agreements, dated as of October 17, 2012, and related 
agreements we entered into with Star Funding, Inc., impose significant operating and financial restrictions on us, which limit our ability, among other things, to: 
 

 
These restrictions may affect our ability to operate our business, including, among other things: 
  

  
We may not be able to generate a sufficient amount of cash flow to meet our debt service obligations, including the Debentures. 

  
Our ability to make scheduled payments or to refinance our debt obligations with respect to the Debentures and our other indebtedness will depend on our financial 

and operating performance, which, in turn is subject to certain financial, competitive, business and other factors beyond our control.  If our cash flow and capital resources are 
insufficient to fund our debt service obligations, including the Debentures, and our other commitments, we could face substantial liquidity problems and may be forced to 
reduce or delay scheduled expansions and capital expenditures, sell material assets or operations, obtain additional capital or restructure our debt.   
 

In addition, we cannot assure you that our operating performance, cash flow and capital resources will be sufficient for payment of our debt in the future.  Any 
refinancing of our indebtedness could be at higher interest rates and may require us to comply with more restrictive covenants which could further restrict our business 
operations.  In the event that we are required to dispose of material assets or operations or restructure our debt to meet our debt service obligations, we cannot provide 
assurance that we could affect any of these actions on a timely basis, on commercially reasonable terms or at all, or that these actions would be sufficient to repay our debt 
service obligations. 

  
If we cannot make scheduled payments on our debt, we will be in default and, as a result: 

 

  

  

●         incur additional indebtedness; 
●         pay dividends or make distributions to our shareholders; 
●         incur liens that would rank senior in priority to, or pari passu with, the obligations under the Debentures; and 
●         sell or otherwise dispose of any assets or rights of the Company or any subsidiary, subject to certain exceptions. 

●         making it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to the Debentures and our other indebtedness; 
●         limiting our ability to obtain additional financing to fund future working capital, capital expenditures, strategic acquisitions or other general corporate 

requirements; 
●         requiring a substantial portion of our cash flows to be dedicated to debt service payments instead of other purposes; 
●         limiting our financial flexibility in planning for and reacting to changes in the industry in which we compete; 
●         placing us at a disadvantage compared to other, less leveraged competitors; and 
●          increasing our cost of borrowing. 

●         our debt holders could declare all outstanding principal and interest to be due and payable; and 
●         we could be forced into bankruptcy or liquidation. 
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RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS 

  
The beauty business is highly competitive, and if we are unable to compete effectively our results of operations could suffer. 

  
We face vigorous competition from companies throughout the United States and the world, including multinational consumer product companies.  Most of these 

competitors have greater resources than we do and may be able to respond to changing business and economic conditions more quickly than us.  Competition in the beauty 
business is based on the pricing of products, innovation, perceived value, service to the consumer, promotional activities, advertising, special events, new product 
introductions, e-commerce and m-commerce initiatives and other activities.  It is difficult for us to predict the timing and scale of our competitors’ actions in these areas.  Our 
ability to compete also depends on the continued strength of our brands, our ability to attract and retain key talent and other personnel and the efficiency of our 
manufacturing channels and distribution networks. 
  

A general economic downturn or sudden disruption in business conditions may affect consumer purchases of discretionary items and the financial strength of 
customers that are retailers, which could adversely affect our financial results. 
  

Consumer spending is affected by a number of factors, including general economic conditions, inflation, interest rates, energy costs, and consumer confidence 
generally, all of which are beyond our control.  Consumer purchases of discretionary items tend to decline during recessionary periods, when disposable income is lower, and 
may impact sales of our products. A decline in consumer purchases of discretionary items may also impact our customers that are retailers.  A downturn in the economies in 
which we expect to sell our products or a sudden disruption of business conditions in those economies could adversely affect our sales and profitability.  
  

Our failure to effectively anticipate and respond to market trends and changes in consumer preferences could have a material adverse effect on our business, 
financial condition and results of operations. 
  

Our success depends in large part on our ability to anticipate, gauge and react in a timely and effective manner to changes in consumer spending patterns and 
preferences for beauty and other consumer products that we market and sell.  We must continually work to develop, produce and market new products, maintain and enhance 
the recognition of our brands, achieve a favorable mix of products, and refine our approach as to how and where we market and sell our products.  Although we devote effort 
and resources to analyzing and responding to consumer spending patterns and preferences, consumer spending patterns and preferences are difficult to predict and can 
change rapidly.  If we are unable to anticipate and respond to trends in the market for beauty and other consumer products and changing consumer demands, our business, 
results of operations and financial condition may be materially and adversely affected. 
  

Furthermore, material shifts or decreases in market demand for our products could result in an inability to sell our products in sufficient quantities or at anticipated 
prices.  In addition, shifts and decreases in market demand for our products could result in increased product returns by our customers and excess inventory levels.  To the 
extent that we experience any of these risks, it may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. 
 

An increase in product returns could negatively impact our operating results and profitability. 
  
We permit the return of damaged or defective products and accept limited amounts of product returns in certain instances. While such returns have historically been 

nominal and within management’s expectations and the provisions established, future return rates may differ from those experienced in the past. Any significant increase in 
damaged or defective products or expected returns could have a material adverse effect on our operating results for the period or periods in which such returns are realized. 
  

Our success depends, in part, on the quality and safety of our products. 
  

Our success depends, in part, on the quality and safety of our products.  If our products are found to be defective or unsafe, or if they otherwise fail to meet our 
consumers’ standards, our relationships with our customers or consumers could suffer, the appeal of one or more of our brands could be diminished, and we could lose sales 
and become subject to liability claims, any of which could result in a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. 
  

A disruption in operations or our supply chain could adversely affect our business and financial results. 
  

As we are a company engaged in the manufacture (through third-party manufacturers) and distribution of beauty products, our operations are subject to the risks 
inherent in manufacturing and distribution activities, including industrial accidents, environmental events, strikes and other labor disputes, disruptions in supply chain or 
information systems, loss or impairment of key manufacturing sites, product quality control, safety, licensing requirements and other regulatory issues, as well as natural 
disasters and other external factors over which we have little or no control.  If such an event were to occur, it could have an adverse effect on our business, results of 
operations and financial condition. 
  

Our success depends upon market awareness of our brands. 
  

Development and awareness of the Company will depend largely on our success in creating recognition of the brands we manufacture and distribute. If our 
distributors and customers, and ultimately our consumers, do not perceive us as a Company that manufactures and distributes high-quality affordable beauty products, we 
may be unsuccessful in promoting and maintaining our brands. Our business is significantly dependent on our license agreements with celebrities and established brands.  In 
addition, our ability to successfully market, promote and sell our products is tied, to a certain extent, to the popularity of our celebrity licensors.  Any negative publicity 
associated with our celebrity licensors could affect our ability to market and distribute our products. 
  

To attract and retain customers and consumers and to promote and maintain a competitive position, we may find it necessary to increase our marketing, networking, 
and advertising budgets and otherwise to increase substantially our financial commitment to creating and maintaining brand loyalty among distributors, customers and 
consumers. We will continue to devote substantial financial and other resources to increase and maintain the awareness of our brands.  However, we cannot offer any 
assurance that our efforts will be successful and our inability to increase and maintain awareness of our brands could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial 
condition and results of operations. 
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 
  

A smaller reporting company is not required to provide the information required by this Item. 
  
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 
  

On May 15, 2012, we entered into a one-year lease of approximately 800 square feet of office space located at 1309 Pico Blvd., Suite #A, Santa Monica, California 
90405.  Our principal executive office is located at such address.  The monthly rent is $1,785.  The term of our lease expired on May 15, 2013, and we are currently renting on a 
month-to-month basis. 
  

On January 7, 2013, the Company executed a four-month operating lease for a storage facility at 1947 Euclid St., Santa Monica, Calfornia 90404, commencing on 
January 1, 2013. The monthly rent is $1,500.  The term of our lease expired on May 1, 2013, and we are currently renting on a month-to-month basis. 

  
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

  
We may, from time to time, be a party to litigation that arises in the normal course of our business operations.  Except as set forth below, there are no legal 

proceedings, governmental actions, administrative actions, investigations or claims pending against us or that we are a party to that, in the opinion of our management, could 
reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition. 
   

On November 19, 2012, an action entitled Chroma Makeup Studio, LLC. v. BOLDFACE Group, Inc. and BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding was filed in the United 
States District Court for the Central District of California, Western Division. Chroma alleged that our use of the Khroma mark, including the Khroma Beauty Marks, infringes 
upon Chroma’s rights in its Chroma mark. The Complaint included claims for trademark infringement under the Lanham Act and unfair competition under applicable California 
law. On December 5, 2012, Chroma filed a motion for preliminary injunction to enjoin our use of the Khroma Beauty Marks, including the promotion and sale of products 
offered under such marks during the pendency of the litigation. The court set a hearing on the motion on January 14, 2013, and following supplemental briefing by both parties, 
the court issued an order on January 23, 2013 denying Chroma’s motion. Prior to deciding the motion, the court ordered the parties to appear at a scheduling conference on 
March 25, 2013 to discuss the proposed pretrial discovery plan and address other pretrial issues. The scheduling conference occurred on March 25, 2013, and the court issued 
a scheduling order setting November 18, 2013 as the end of the discovery period, January 6, 2014 as the deadline to file dispositive motions, and a tentative trial date of April 
22, 2014. 
 

On November 30, 2012, we filed a complaint for a declaratory judgment in the United States District Court for the Central District of California, Western Division 
entitled BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding v. By Lee Tillett, Inc. BLB’s complaint requests a declaration from the court that (1) BLB’s use of the Khroma mark, including the 
Khroma Beauty Marks does not infringe on Tillett’s rights in its Kroma trademark, and (2) BLB’s two pending trademark applications for the Khroma Beauty Marks should be 
allowed to register with the USPTO. On January 9, 2013, Tillett filed an answer and counterclaims for (1) trademark infringement, (2) false designation of origin, (3) trademark 
infringement, and (4) unfair competition under applicable California law. In addition to BLB, Tillett’s counterclaims are made against the Kardashian Parties. 
 

BLB and the Kardashian Parties’ filed an answer to Tillett’s counterclaims on February 11, 2013, and Tillett contemporaneously filed a Motion for Preliminary 
Injunction in an attempt to enjoin the Company’s use of the Khroma Beauty Marks. The Court heard the motion on March 11, 2013, and granted the motion after finding that 
Tillett had demonstrated a likelihood of success on its trademark infringement claim and related claims, and a likelihood of irreparable harm in the absence of injunctive relief. In 
the order granting the injunction, the Court enjoined BLB and its affiliates from making, promoting, or selling any goods or services using the Khroma trademark, although it 
did not prohibit the Company’s retailers from selling the Khroma products already in their inventories. On March 20, 2013, BLB filed an ex-parte application for clarification of 
the court’s order granting the motion and setting forth the terms of the injunction. With its application, BLB submitted a proposed order that limited the scope of the injunction 
to the United States only, and made clear that it was not intended to apply to overseas sales or promotion. BLB’s ex-parte application is still pending and the Court has not yet 
issued a ruling or set a hearing date. 
 

The Court ordered counsel for the parties to appear for a scheduling conference on March 25, 2013, following which the Court filed a preliminary scheduling order 
setting November 18, 2013 as the last day of the parties’ discovery period and a tentative trial date of April 22, 2014. Following the scheduling conference, the discovery period 
opened and the parties exchanged requests for documents and information. BLB and the Kardashian Parties served their respective objections and responses to Tillett’s 
discovery requests on April 29, 2013. The parties have entered into a stipulated protective order concerning the production of confidential, proprietary, and private information 
during the discovery process. 
 

In response to the injunction issued by the court, the Company filed a notice of appeal with the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals (the “9th Circuit”) on March 15, 2013 
to overturn the district court’s March 11, 2013 decision. The Company filed its opening brief with the 9th Circuit on April 19, 2013. On March 18, 2013, the Company also filed a 
Motion to Stay with the 9th Circuit, requesting a stay of the injunction during the pendency of the Company’s appellate case. The 9th Circuit ruled on the Company’s motion 
on June 7, 2013 granting Tillett’s application and ruling that the preliminary injunction would be effective as of June 7, 2013. 

  
Based on the existing status of the two actions, our management believes it has adequately reserved for these matters such that there would not be a material 

effect on future financial statements. 
  
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES 
 

Not applicable. 
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PART II 

  
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES 
  
Market Information 
  

Our common stock is currently quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board (the “OTCBB”) under the symbol “BLBK”.  The quotation of our common stock began on or about 
October 3, 2011 and was previously quoted on the OTCBB under the symbol “MXCS”. To date, there has been a limited market for the trading of our common stock. 

  
The following table sets forth the high and low bid information for our common stock for the fiscal quarters indicated as reported by the OTCBB. The quotations 

reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission and may not represent actual transactions. 
  

  
Holders of Our Common Stock 
  

As of October 14, 2013, 155,091,458 shares of our common stock were issued and outstanding and were held by approximately 823 shareholders of record. 
  

Dividends 
  

To date, we have not paid cash dividends on our common stock.  We have no present intention to pay cash dividends on our common stock in the future.  Further, 
under the terms of certain of our debt agreements and other agreements, we are limited in our ability to pay cash dividends. 
  
Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans 
  

In July 2012, our Board of Directors and the stockholders owning a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock approved the 2012 Stock 
Option and Incentive Plan of the Company (the “2012 Plan”) and authorized for issuance to employees, directors, consultants and advisors of the Company, equity 
compensation awards under the 2012 Plan to purchase up to an aggregate of 20,000,000 shares of our common stock.   

  

  

Period   High     Low  
           
Quarter ended December 31, 2011 (from October 3, 2011)  $ 0.0005   $ 0.04 
Quarter ended March 31, 2012  $ 0.04   $ 0.04 
Quarter ended June 30, 2012  $ 0.04   $ 0.25 
Quarter ended September 30, 2012  $ 0.70   $ 0.25 
Quarter ended December 31, 2012  $ 0.36   $ 0.18 
Quarter ended March 31, 2013  $ 0.36   $ 0.12 
Quarter ended June 30, 2013  $ 0.18   $ 0.05 
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The following table sets forth information as of June 30, 2013, with respect to shares of our common stock that may be issued under the 2012 Plan: 

  

 
Refer to Note 11 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2013 for a discussion of the material features of the equity 

compensation awards under the 2012 Plan. 
 
Recent Sales of Unregistered Equity Securities 
 

PPO Units Offering 
 

On the closing date of the Merger, we completed the first closing of a private offering (the “PPO Offering”) wherein we sold 500,000 units (the “PPO Units”), at a price 
of $0.25 per PPO Unit, for a total cash consideration of $125,000. Each PPO Unit consists of one share of our common stock and a redeemable warrant (each, an “Investor 
Warrant” and collectively, the “Investor Warrants”) to purchase one share of our common stock. The Investor Warrants are exercisable for a period of five years at a purchase 
price of $1.00 per share of our common stock. If at any time during the two-year period following the closing date of the Merger we issue additional shares of our common 
stock for a consideration per share of less than $0.25 (the “Reduced Price”), then we will issue to the investors in the PPO Offering, concurrently with such issue and without 
any additional consideration from the investors, a number of additional shares of our common stock and Investor Warrants equal to the difference between (A) the purchase 
price of the PPO Units being subscribed for divided by the Reduced Price and (B) the number of shares of our common stock included in the PPO Units being subscribed for in 
the PPO Offering. 

  
The PPO Offering was made on an “all or nothing” basis with respect to a minimum of 8,000,000 PPO Units (the “Minimum Offering Amount”) and was made on a 

“best efforts” basis with respect to a maximum of 20,000,000 PPO Units. The closing of the Minimum Offering Amount and the closing of the Merger were conditioned upon 
each other. The placement agent for the PPO Offering was Gottbetter Capital Markets, LLC (“Gottbetter”), a FINRA registered broker-dealer. 
 

Prior to the commencement of the PPO Offering, we completed a bridge financing (the “Bridge Financing”), where we sold bridge notes in an aggregate principal 
amount of $1,925,030 (the “Bridge Notes”) to certain accredited investors and non-U.S. Persons. The Bridge Notes were converted into 7,200,140 PPO Units at the first closing 
of the PPO Offering. The principal amount of the Bridge Notes converted into PPO Units was included for purposes of calculating the Minimum Offering Amount. 
 

In connection with the conversion of the Bridge Notes, the holders of the Bridge Notes received 7,200,140 five-year bridge warrants (the “Bridge Warrants”), each 
exercisable to purchase one share of our common stock (excluding 499,840 of the Bridge Warrants which were subsequently repurchased and canceled). 3,600,070 of the Bridge 
Warrants are exercisable at $0.25 per share and 3,600,070 of the Bridge Warrants are exercisable at $0.50 per share. Except as to exercise price, the Bridge Warrants are identical, 
in all material respects to the Investor Warrants. The net proceeds from the sale of the Bridge Notes, after deducting fees and expenses related to the Bridge Financing, were 
used to make a secured bridge loan to BLB. 

  
On the closing date of the Merger and in connection with the first closing of the PPO Offering, we issued an aggregate of 8,200,120 PPO Units for a total consideration 

of $2,050,030, which included the conversion of the Bridge Notes. During the period from July 20, 2012 through February 8, 2013, we held eight additional closings of the PPO 
Offering, under which we sold an aggregate of 3,443,920 Units for a total consideration of $860,980. The net proceeds from the sale of the PPO Units, after deducting fees and 
expenses related to the PPO Offering, were used for working capital purposes. 

  

  

 Plan Category  

Number of securities 
to be issued upon exercise of  

outstanding options, warrants and rights 
(a)    

Weighted-average exercise  
price of outstanding 

options, warrants and rights 
(b)    

Number of 
securities remaining 
available for future 

issuance under equity 
compensation plans 
(excluding securities 

reflected in column (a)) 
(c)  

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders    6,550,000    $ 0.23      13,450,000  
                      
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders    N/A     N/A     N/A 
                      

Total    6,550,000    $ 0.23      13,450,000  
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In connection with the first closing of the PPO Offering, we paid Gottbetter a commission of 8%, or $10,000, of the $125,000 cash consideration raised from investors at 

such closing that were directly introduced to the Company by Gottbetter, excluding funds attributable to the converted Bridge Notes. Gottbetter received an additional cash 
commission of 4%, or approximately $77,000, with respect to the principal amount of the Bridge Notes converted into PPO Units. Prior to the commencement of the Offering, we 
also paid Gottbetter a cash commission of 4% of the $1,925,030 raised from investors in the Bridge Financing, which was approximately $77,000. In addition, Gottbetter received 
five-year warrants (the “Broker Warrants”) to purchase a number of shares of our common stock equal to 8% of the PPO Units sold to investors in the PPO Offering that were 
directly introduced to us by Gottbetter, including PPO Units issued in connection with the conversion of the Bridge Notes. The Broker Warrants are identical to the Investor 
Warrants in all material respects except that (i) the resale of the common stock underlying them is not covered by a registration statement; (ii) they have an exercise price of 
$0.25 per share; and (iii) they do not contain a redemption feature. As a result of the foregoing arrangement, at the first closing of the PPO Offering, Gottbetter was paid a total 
commission of approximately $164,000 and was issued Broker Warrants to purchase 656,000 shares of our common stock. As a result of the eight additional closings of the 
PPO Offering, Gottbetter was paid commissions of approximately $68,878 and was issued Broker Warrants to purchase 275,514 shares of our common stock. 

  
In connection with the Merger and the PPO Offering, the Company entered into a registration rights agreement with each of the investors participating in the PPO 

Offering. Under the registration rights agreement, as amended, the Company committed to file a registration statement on Form S-1, or other applicable form, covering the resale 
of (i) the Company’s common stock underlying the Bridge Warrants, (ii) common stock underlying the PPO Units sold or to be sold in the PPO Offering, and (iii) common stock 
underlying the Investor Warrants (including securities issued in the PPO Offering as a result of the conversion of the Bridge Notes, but not common stock that is issuable 
upon exercise of the Broker Warrants (collectively, the “Registrable Securities”) no later than October 29, 2012 (the “Filing Date”), and to use commercially reasonable efforts 
to cause the registration statement to become effective no later than 150 days after it is filed (the “Effective Date”). As of the date of this Form 10-K, the Company has not filed 
the registration statement with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and anticipates filing the registration statement during the quarter ended 
December 31, 2013. The Company also agreed to use its commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the effectiveness of the registration statement for at least one year from the 
date the registration statement is declared effective by the SEC or for such shorter period ending on the earlier to occur of the date (i) that Rule 144 of the Securities Act 
becomes available to investors with respect to all of their Registrable Securities and (ii) when all of the Registrable Securities registered thereunder shall have been sold. 
  

The Company is liable for liquidated damages at a rate of 1% of the purchase price per PPO Unit paid by each investor for the Registrable Securities then held by such 
investor for each full period of 30 days for which the Company fails to file the registration statement by the Filing Date or if the Company fails to have the registration 
statement declared effective by the Effective Date (each, a “Registration Event”), until such failure is cured. The payment amount shall be prorated for any partial 30-day 
period. The aggregate penalty accrued with respect to each investor may not exceed 10% of the original purchase price paid by such investor. However, if a Registration Event 
occurs (or is continuing) on a date that is more than one year after July 12, 2012 or the final closing of the PPo Offering, liquidated damages shall be paid only with respect to 
that portion of the Registrable Securities that cannot then be immediately resold in reliance on Rule 144. If the Company fails to pay any partial liquidated damages or refund in 
full within seven days after the date payable, the Company will pay interest thereon at a rate of 8% per annum (or such lesser maximum amount that is permitted to be paid by 
applicable law) to the holder of the PPO Unit. 
 

In connection with the August 29, 2013 debenture offering described under Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations – Financial Condition – Recent Financings”, the Company entered into Amendment and Waiver Agreements (collectively, the “Amendment Agreements”) with the 
holders of substantially all of the securities issued in connection with the Bridge Notes, the PPO Offering and the Broker Warrants pursuant to which the Company reduced 
the exercise prices of all of its outstanding Series A, Series B, Series C, Series D and Series E common stock purchase warrants as follows: the exercise price per share of the 
Series A Warrants that had an initial exercise price of $0.25 was reduced to $.01; the exercise price per share of the Series B Warrants that had an initial exercise price of $0.50 
was reduced to $.015; the exercise price per share of the Series C Warrants or Investor Warrants that had an initial exercise price of $1.00 was reduced to $0.03; and the exercise 
price per share of the Series D and Series E Warrants that had an initial exercise price of $0.25 was reduced to $0.01. 
 

In consideration of the exercise price reductions, the holders of substantially all of the securities agreed to permanently waive all past and future exercise price and 
share number anti-dilution adjustment provisions that would otherwise be triggered by share issuances by the Company at prices less than the purchase, exercise or 
conversion price of any securities acquired by the holders or underlying any of such securities.  The Amendment Agreements also provided for a waiver of all penalties 
incurred by the Company under the terms of the PPO registration rights agreement as a result of the Company’s failure to timely file and effect the registration for resale of 
these securities. 
  

All of the foregoing securities were issued in reliance on the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 of Regulation 
D promulgated thereunder. 
 

Convertible Notes Offering 
 

On December 21, 2012, the Company completed the first closing of a private offering of secured convertible debt (the “Convertible Notes Offering”) to a group of 
accredited investors consisting of the sale of 10 units (the “Units”), at a price of $200,000 per Unit, for total gross proceeds of $2,000,000. The Units were sold pursuant to a 
Securities Purchase Agreement entered into by and among the Company and the investors. Each Unit consists of (i) a secured convertible promissory note in the 
denomination of $200,000 with an original issue discount of 0.2% (the “Notes”) and (ii) warrants to purchase 800,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, 400,000 of which 
are exercisable at $0.50 per share and 400,000 of which are exercisable at $1.00 per share (collectively, the “First Closing Convertible Note Warrants”).  The Securities Purchase 
Agreement contained customary representations, warranties and covenants.  The first closing of the Convertible Notes Offering was made on a “best efforts” basis with 
respect to a maximum of 15 Units.  The net proceeds from the sale of the Units were used for working capital purposes and the repayment of two short-term shareholder notes 
as described below. 

  
The Notes are convertible into shares of our common stock at any time prior to maturity at $0.25 per share, subject to a one-time reset right.  The Notes accrue interest 

at a rate of 12% per annum and matured on August 21, 2013. The First Closing Convertible Note Warrants are exercisable for a period of five years and are subject to “weighted 
average” and other customary anti-dilution protections. 

  
Aegis Capital Corp. (“Aegis”) was the placement agent for the first closing of the Convertible Notes Offering. The Company paid Aegis a commission of 10% of the 

total gross proceeds raised in the Offering and a 3% non-accountable reimbursement of its expenses, for a total payment of $260,000. In addition, Aegis received five-year 
warrants (the “First Closing Convertible Note Broker Warrants”) to purchase 1,600,000 shares of common stock of the Company. The First Closing Convertible Note Broker 
Warrants are identical to the First Closing Convertible Note Warrants in all material respects except that all of the First Closing Convertible Note Broker Warrants have an 
exercise price of $0.50 per share. 

  
As collateral for the Company’s obligations under the Securities Purchase Agreement and related documents executed in connection with the first closing of the 

Convertible Notes Offering, the Company and BLB granted the investors a security interest in all of the Company’s and BLB’s assets pursuant to the terms of a Security 
Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2012. To further secure the Company’s obligations, BLB executed a Guaranty, dated as of December 21, 2012 pursuant to which BLB 
agreed to guarantee the Company’s obligations owed to the investors. 
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On March 28, 2013, we completed a second closing of the Convertible Notes Offering to a group of accredited investors consisting of 5.65 Units, at a purchase price 

of $200,000 per Unit, for total gross proceeds of $1,130,000.  The Units were sold pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement entered into by and among the Company and 
the investors.  Each Unit consists of (i) a Note and (ii) warrants to purchase 800,000 shares of our common stock, 400,000 of which are exercisable at $0.25 per share and 400,000 
of which are exercisable at $0.50 per share (collectively, the “Second Closing Convertible Note Warrants”). The second closing of the Convertible Notes Offering was made on 
a “best efforts” basis with respect to a maximum of 25 Units.  The net proceeds from the sale of the Units in the second closing of the Convertible Notes Offering were used for 
working capital purposes and the repayment of three short-term shareholder notes as described below.  The Securities Purchase Agreement contained customary 
representations, warranties and covenants. 

  
The investors in the first and second Convertible Note Offering closings were sold 6,260,000 free trading shares by non-affiliated, third party shareholders of the 

Company at par value. Although we were not a party to the sale of these shares by third party shareholders, per FASB ASC Topic 718, the fair value of this non-affiliated third 
party transaction is recognized as a deferred financing cost of the Convertible Note transaction. Additionally, we will provide no reimbursement or compensation to the selling 
shareholders of the 6,260,000 free trading shares. 
  

The Notes are convertible into shares of our common stock at any time prior to maturity at $0.25 per share, subject to a one-time reset right.  The Notes accrue interest 
at a rate of 12% per annum and are due to mature on November 28, 2013.  At any time prior to maturity, we may prepay any portion of the outstanding principal amount of any 
Note, together with accrued but unpaid interest, subject to notice to the investors.  The Second Closing Convertible Note Warrants are exercisable for a period of five years 
and are subject to “weighted average” and other customary anti-dilution protections. 

  
Aegis acted as the placement agent for the second closing of the Convertible Notes Offering. In connection with the second closing, we paid Aegis a commission of 

10% of the total gross proceeds raised in such closing and a 3% non-accountable reimbursement of its expenses, for a total payment of $146,900. In addition, Aegis received 
five-year warrants (the “Second Closing Convertible Note Broker Warrants”) to purchase 904,000 shares of our common stock. The Second Closing Convertible Note Broker 
Warrants are identical to the Second Closing Convertible Note Warrants in all material respects, except that all of the Second Closing Convertible Note Broker Warrants have 
an exercise price of $0.25 per share. 

  
In connection with the second closing, we agreed to modify the exercise price of the First Closing Convertible Note Warrants and the First Closing Convertible Note 

Broker Warrants. As a result of such modification, (i) 400,000 of the First Closing Convertible Note Warrants are now exercisable at $0.25 per share and 400,000 of the First 
Closing Convertible Note Warrants are now exercisable at $0.50 per share (instead of the original exercise prices of $0.50 and $1.00, respectively), and (ii) all of the First Closing 
Convertible Note Broker Warrants are now exercisable at $0.25 per share. 

  
As collateral for the Company’s obligations under the Securities Purchase Agreement and related documents executed in connection with the second closing of the 

Convertible Notes Offering, the Company and BLB granted the investors a security interest in all of the Company’s and BLB’s assets pursuant to the terms of a Security 
Agreement, dated as of March 28, 2013. To further secure the Company’s obligations, BLB executed a Guaranty, dated as of March 28, 2013, pursuant to which BLB agreed to 
guarantee the Company’s obligations owed to the investors. 

  
On April 8, 2013 the Company completed the third closing of the Convertible Notes Offering with an affiliate of Victor Azrak consisting of 1.25 Units, at a price of 

$200,000 per Unit, for total gross proceeds of $250,000. The Units were sold pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement entered into by and between the Company and the 
investor. Each Unit consists of (i) a secured convertible promissory note in the denomination of $200,000 (the “Convertible Note”) and (ii) warrants to purchase 1,000,000 
shares of the Company’s common stock, 500,000 of which are exercisable at $0.25 per share and 500,000 of which are exercisable at $0.50 per share (collectively, the “Third 
Closing Convertible Note Warrants”). The third closing of the Convertible Notes Offering was made on a “best efforts” basis with respect to a maximum of 6.25 Units.  The net 
proceeds from the sale of the Units was used for working capital purposes. The Securities Purchase Agreement contained certain customary representations, warranties and 
covenants.  Mr. Azrak was elected as a Director of the Company in connection with the third closing. 

  
The Convertible Note is convertible into shares of our common stock at any time prior to maturity at $0.25 per share, subject to a one-time reset right.  The Notes 

accrue interest at a rate of 12% per annum and are due to mature on December 8, 2013.  At any time prior to maturity, we may prepay any portion of the outstanding principal 
amount of any Note, together with accrued but unpaid interest, subject to notice to the investor.  The Third Closing Convertible Note Warrants are exercisable for a period of 
five years and are subject to “weighted average” and other customary anti-dilution protections. 

  
Gottbetter acted as placement agent for the third closing of the Convertible Notes Offering.  In connection with the Convertible Notes Offering, Gottbetter received a 

commission of 10% of the total gross proceeds from the third closing and a 1.5% non-accountable reimbursement of its expenses, for a total payment of $28,750. In addition, 
Gottbetter received five-year warrants (the “Third Closing Convertible Note Broker Warrants”) to purchase 200,000 shares of common stock of the Company. The Third 
Closing Convertible Note Broker Warrants are identical to the Third Closing Convertible Note Warrants in all material respects, except that they have an exercise price of $0.25 
per share. 

 
As collateral for the Company’s obligations under the Securities Purchase Agreement and related documents executed in connection with the second closing of the 

Convertible Notes Offering, the Company and BLB granted the investors a security interest in all of the Company’s and BLB’s assets pursuant to the terms of a Security 
Agreement, dated as of April 8, 2013. To further secure the Company’s obligations, BLB executed a Guaranty, dated as of April 8, 2013, pursuant to which BLB agreed to 
guarantee the Company’s obligations owed to the investors. 
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In connection with the closing of the Institutional Financing as described below, effective as of June 20, 2013, the investors who purchased our convertible notes and 

the related convertible note warrants in our Convertible Notes Offering agreed to automatically (i) convert all of their convertible notes (including accrued and unpaid interest 
thereon) at a price of $0.07 per share and (ii) exercise on a cashless basis their convertible note warrants into shares of our common stock such that (i) the convertible note 
warrants which were exercisable at $0.25 per share were exercised at a price of $0.01 per share and (ii) the convertible note warrants which were exercisable at $0.50 per share 
were exercised at a price of $0.015 per share, provided that the market price for purposes of calculating the “cashless exercise price” of the convertible note warrants was fixed 
at $0.10.  As a result of such conversion and exercise, the convertible notes and the convertible note warrants were converted and exercised into approximately 50.58 million 
and 11.83 million shares of our common stock, respectively.  Furthermore, subsequent to the closing of the Institutional Financing, the broker warrants issued to the placement 
agents were exercised on the same terms as the convertible note warrants into 2.43 million shares of our common stock. 

  
In connection with the Convertible Note offering, the Company also entered into a registration rights agreement with the investors. Under the terms of the registration 

rights agreement, the Company committed to file a registration statement on Form S-1, or other applicable form, covering the resale of (i) the common stock underlying the 
warrants and (ii) the common stock underlying the Notes (collectively, the “Convertible Note Registrable Securities”) within 45 days from the final closing of the Convertible 
Notes Offering, and to use its commercially reasonable efforts to cause the registration statement to become effective no later than 90 days after it is filed. As the Company 
delayed filing the registration statement due to the Institutional Financing, and such delay was communicated to the investors in the Convertible Notes Offering, the Company 
has not recorded any registration rights penalties. The Company anticipates filing the registration statement during the quarter ended December 31, 2013. 
 

The Company agreed to use its commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the effectiveness of the registration statement for at least one year from the date the 
registration statement is declared effective by the SEC or for such shorter period ending on the earlier to occur of the date (i) that Rule 144 of the Securities Act is available to 
investors with respect to all of their Convertible Note Registrable Securities and (ii) the date when all of the Convertible Note Registrable Securities registered thereunder shall 
have been sold. The Company is liable for monetary penalties equal to 0.5% of the purchase price per unit paid by such investor for the Convertible Note Registrable Securities 
then held by each investor for each full 30 day period that the Company fails to file the registration statement by the filing date or if the Company fails to use its reasonable 
efforts to have the registration statement declared effective by the effective date until such failure is cured. The payment amount shall be prorated for any partial 30-day period. 
The maximum aggregate amount of payments to be made by the Company as the result of such failures, whether by reason of a filing deadline failure, effectiveness deadline 
failure or any combination thereof, shall be an amount equal to 6% of the purchase price per unit paid by such investor for the Convertible Note Registrable Securities held by 
such investor at the time of the first occurrence of such failure to file with, or to have the registration statement be declared effective by, the SEC. 

  
Moreover, no such payments shall be due and payable with respect to any Convertible Note Registrable Securities that the Company is unable to register due to 

limits imposed by the SEC’s interpretation of Rule 415 under the Securities Act. The holders of any Convertible Note Registrable Securities removed from the registration 
statement as the result of a Rule 415 comment or other comment from the SEC shall have “piggyback” registration rights for the shares of common stock underlying the 
Convertible Note Registrable Securities, until such shares can be sold without limitation under Rule 144, with respect to any registration statement filed by the Company 
following the effectiveness of the registration statement which would permit the inclusion of these shares. 
  

All of the foregoing securities were issued in reliance on the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 of Regulation 
D promulgated thereunder. 
 

Institutional Financings 
  
On June 20, 2013, we completed a private offering (the “Institutional Financing”) to a group of accredited investors of our securities for total gross proceeds of 

$1,500,000.  The securities were sold pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement entered into by and among the Company and the investors and consisted of (i) 8% original 
issue discount senior secured convertible promissory debentures in the issuance amount of $1,680,000 (the “Debentures”) and (ii) warrants to purchase approximately 24.7 
million shares of our common stock, which are exercisable at $0.082 per share (the “Debenture Warrants”).  The Debenture Warrants are exercisable for a period of five years at 
an exercise price of $0.082 per share and are subject to “weighted average” and other customary anti-dilution protections. 

  
The Institutional Financing was made on a “best efforts” basis.  The net proceeds of the Institutional Financing were used for working capital purposes.  The 

Securities Purchase Agreement contained customary representations, warranties and covenants. 
  
The Debentures were issued in a principal amount equal to 112% of the gross proceeds of the Institutional Financing and are convertible into shares of our common 

stock at any time prior to maturity at $0.068 per share (the “Conversion Price”), subject to certain conversion limitations set forth in the Debentures.  The Conversion Price is 
subject to “full ratchet” and other customary anti-dilution protections.  We are required to pay interest on the aggregate unconverted and then-outstanding principal amount 
of the Debenture at a rate of 8% per annum, payable quarterly on February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1, beginning on November 1, 2013.  Interest is payable in cash or 
at our option in shares of common stock, provided that certain conditions are met, based on a share value equal to the lesser of (a) 90% of the average of the volume weighted 
average price (the “VWAP”) for the 20 consecutive trading days prior to the applicable interest payment date and (b) 100% of the average of the VWAP for the 20 consecutive 
trading days prior to the applicable interest payment date less $0.01.  On each of June 1, 2014, July 1, 2014, August 1, 2014, September 1, 2014, October 1, 2014 and November 1, 
2014, we are obligated to redeem an amount equal to $140,000, and, on December 1, 2014, we are obligated to redeem an amount equal to $840,000, (plus accrued but unpaid 
interest, liquidated damages and any other amounts then owing in respect of the Debentures) (collectively, the “Periodic Redemption Amount”).  In lieu of a cash redemption 
and subject to us meeting certain equity conditions described in the Debentures, we may elect to pay the Periodic Redemption Amount in shares based on a conversion price 
equal to the lesser of (a) $0.068 per share, subject to adjustments upon certain events, and (b) 90% of the average of the VWAP for the 20 consecutive trading days prior to the 
applicable redemption date. Upon any Event of Default (as such term is defined in the Debenture), the outstanding principal amount of the Debentures, plus liquidated 
damages, interest, a premium of 30% and other amounts owing in respect thereof through the date of acceleration, shall become, at the Investors’ election, immediately due and 
payable in cash.  Commencing 5 days after the occurrence of any Event of Default, the interest rate on the Debentures shall accrue at an interest rate equal to the lesser of 18% 
per annum or the maximum rate permitted under applicable law.  At any time after the 6-month anniversary of the Closing Date, we may prepay any portion of the outstanding 
principal amount of any Debenture, plus liquidated damages, interest, a premium of 20% and other amounts owing in respect thereof through the applicable date of optional 
redemption, subject to notice to the Investors.  The Debentures contain customary affirmative and negative covenants of the Company. The Company has granted the 
investor the right to participate in future financings and the transaction documents contain other customary affirmative and negative covenants.  Under the transaction 
documents, the Company did not agree to register the securities sold in the offering, and therefore, is under no obligation to register the securities sold in the offering.  As of 
October 15, 2013, with the timely filing of our Form 10-K, the Company will remain in compliance with the covenants of the Debentures. 
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Gottbetter acted as placement agent for the Institutional Financing. We paid Gottbetter a cash commission of 7.2% of the first $1,400,000 raised in the Institutional 

Financing, for a total payment of $100,000.  In addition, Gottbetter received five-year broker warrants to purchase approximately 2.0 million shares of our common stock at an 
exercise price of $0.082 per share.  The broker warrants are identical to the investor warrants in all material respects. 

 
We also paid $117,446 in legal fees to Gottbetter & Partners and $85,207 in professional fees to the lead investor in the Debenture. 
  
As collateral for all of our obligations under the Securities Purchase Agreement and the related documents executed in connection with the Institutional Financing, we 

and BLB granted the investors a first priority security interest (subordinated to our factor) in all of the Company’s and BLB’s assets pursuant to the terms of a Security 
Agreement, dated as of June 20, 2013.  To further secure our obligations, BLB executed a Guarantee, dated as of June 20, 2013, pursuant to which BLB agreed to guarantee our 
obligations owed to the investors. 

  
All of the foregoing securities were issued in reliance on the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 of Regulation 

D promulgated thereunder. 
 

Equity Transactions 
 

On January 8, 2013, the Company issued 169,355 shares of common stock to a third party for consulting services provided, valued at $52,500. The securities were 
issued in reliance on the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder. 
 

On February 1, 2013, the Company issued 57,252 shares of common stock to a third party for consulting services provided, valued at $16,030. The foregoing securities 
were issued in reliance on the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder. 
 

On March 1, 2013, the Company issued 76,531 shares of common stock to a third party for consulting services provided, valued at $14,923. The foregoing securities 
were issued in reliance on the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder. 
 

On March 28, 2013, the Company issued 1,000,000 shares of common stock to a third party for a reduction in fees for services provided, valued at $170,000. The 
foregoing securities were issued in reliance on the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated 
thereunder. 
 

On April 15, 2013, the Company issued 90,361 shares of common stock to a third party for consulting services provided, valued at $15,000. The foregoing securities 
were issued in reliance on the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder. 
 

On June 28, 2013, the Company issued 200,000 shares of common stock to a third party for consulting services provided, valued at $10,000.  The foregoing securities 
were issued in reliance on the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder. 
 

 On June 28, 2013, the Company issued 100,000 shares of common stock to a third party for consulting services provided, valued at $5,000. The foregoing securities 
were issued in reliance on the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder. 
 

On June 28, 2013, the Company issued 125,000 shares of common stock to a board member per the compensation package of said board member, valued at $6,250.  The 
foregoing securities were issued in reliance on the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated 
thereunder. 

  
Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securities 
  

Repurchases for the fourth quarter ended June 30, 2013 are reflected below. 
  

  
(1) On March 28, 2013, the Company repurchased 499,840 shares of common stock and 499,840 warrants for an aggregate purchase price of $125,000. 
 

On June 30, 2013, we agreed to repurchase an additional 499,840 shares of common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $125,000 by August 31, 2013. As we did 
not repurchase these shares by September 15, 2013 and before October 1, 2013, we agreed to pay an additional $10,000. 

  
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 
  

A smaller reporting company is not required to provide the information required by this Item. 
  

  

    (a)     (b)     (c)     (d)  

Period  

Total Number of  
Shares (or Units)  

Purchased    

Average Price Paid  
per Share  
(or Unit)    

Total Number of  
Shares (or Units)  

Purchased as  
Part of Publicly  

Announced Plans or 
Programs    

Maximum Number  
(or Approximate  
Dollar Value) of  

Shares (or Units) that  
May Yet Be Purchased 

Under the Plans or 
Programs  

September 1, 2012 – September 30, 2012     --      --      --      -- 
December 1, 2012 – December 31, 2012     --      --      --      -- 
March 1, 2013 – March 31, 2013     499,840(1)  $ 0.25      --      -- 
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
  

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2013 and the accompanying notes to such financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.  References in this 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations to “the Company,” “us,” “we,” “our” and similar terms refer to BOLDFACE 
Group, Inc., a Nevada corporation, and our wholly-owned subsidiary, BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding.  This discussion includes forward-looking statements, within the 
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act, Section 21E of the Exchange Act and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 
  

We caution you that these forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance or events and are subject to a number of uncertainties, risks and 
other factors, which may influence the accuracy of such statements and the projections upon which such statements are based.  See “Note Regarding Forward-Looking 
Statements.” 
  
Overview 
  

We are a celebrity beauty licensing and branding company focused on acquiring top-tier entertainment, celebrity and designer brands for opportunities in the beauty, 
personal care, home and fragrance markets. We contract to design, manufacture and sell branded color cosmetics, hair preparations, fragrances, home fragrances, skin care, 
beauty tools and other beauty products in multiple channels of distribution.  We currently own the cosmetics/beauty brand Kardashian Beauty™, and have licensed the right 
to use the Mario Lopez brand to develop and distribute products in the male fragrance and men’s grooming categories and the UGLYDOLL® brand to develop and distribute 
product in the personal care category. Our vision for our Kardashian Beauty™ brand is to offer luxury products at affordable prices through mass retail channels. We have 
secured distribution of Kardashian Beauty™ products in over 5,300 points of distribution with retail partners, including, among others, CVS, ULTA Beauty, Duane Reade, Fred 
Meyer, Meijer, and Ricky’s NYC, and are currently in active discussions with other retailers, including some of the largest pharmacy chains in the United States to distribute 
Kardashian Beauty™ products. 
  
Recent Developments – Results of Operations 
 

Kardashian Beauty™ License 
 

During the year ended June 30, 2013, we were engaged in the continued expansion of our beauty products business.  In February 2013, we completed the core brand 
roll-out of Kardashian Beauty™, consisting of over 80 SKUs, with a full range of color cosmetics in the eyes, lips, face and nail categories using high quality formulations and 
signature items that are paraben-free, petrochemical free, and do not involve the use of animals for testing our products.  We will continue to expand our Kardashian Beauty™ 
brand with additional products that are both unique and high-quality, thereby building on our strategy of bringing luxury products at an affordable price for distribution to 
mass retailers. 
 

During the year ended June 30, 2013, we achieved top-line gross and net revenue of $6.666 million and $5.331 million, respectively. We did not achieve any revenue or 
margin for the year ended June 30, 2012. We also secured two additional licenses (i) with Mario Lopez for the development and distribution of products in the male fragrance 
and men’s grooming categories and (ii) Pretty Ugly, LLC, the creator of the UGLYDOLL® brand, for the development and distribution of products in the personal care 
category.  We are currently in discussions with a number of additional potential licensors. 

 
We had net revenues of $5.331 million and a gross margin, prior to reserves for inventory write-offs, of 45% from our Kardashian Beauty™ License for the year ended 

June 30, 2013. Our actual gross margin, net of reserves, was 38%. We did not have any revenue or gross margin for the year ended June 30, 2012. 
  
We secured distribution for the Kardashian Beauty™ brand in over 5,300 points of distribution with retail partners, including, among others, CVS, ULTA Beauty, 

Duane Reade, Fred Meyer, Meijer, and Ricky’s NYC. The brand currently consists of four categories of products: eyes (23 SKUs), lips (27 SKUs), face/body (19 SKUs), nail (35 
SKUs). We have garnered over 139 million media impressions for the Kardashian Beauty™ brand in print and online media channels since inception. 
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Mario Lopez License 

 
We are currently in the product development phase for the products that will be branded under our Mario Lopez license.  We expect to complete development and 

launch our product line by the end of 2014.  As such, no revenue was generated from our Mario Lopez license. 
  
UGLYDOLL®  License 

 
We are currently in the product development phase for the products that will be branded under our UGLYDOLL® license.  We expect to complete development and 

launch our product line by the end of 2014.  As such, no revenue was generated from our UGLYDOLL® license. 
 
Factoring and Supply Agreements 
  

Effective as of November 21, 2012, the Company and BLB each entered into a (i) Factoring Agreement, dated as of October 17, 2012 (the “Factoring Agreements”), 
with Star Funding, Inc. (“Star Funding”) pursuant to which Star Funding will provide financing, on a discretionary basis, against our purchase orders, accounts, contract rights 
and other obligations for payment of money, and (ii) Supply Agreement, dated as of October 17, 2012 (the “Supply Agreement”), with Star Funding pursuant to which Star 
Funding will provide to us, on a discretionary basis, factoring and financial accommodations to enable the Company to purchase cosmetics and related products (collectively, 
the “Goods”).  Each of the Agreements is for an initial term of one year, subject to automatic one-year renewals or early termination as provided therein. 

  
Under the Factoring Agreements, Star Funding has agreed to purchase certain of our accounts receivable. We agreed to pay Star Funding a factoring commission of 

between 1.0% and 1.5% of the gross amount of each account receivable subject to the Factoring Agreements, depending on the total gross amounts of account receivables 
purchased and the actual duration of the selling terms. As of June 30, 2013, $164,090 was due from factor. 

  
The financing under the Supply Agreement may be made via direct payment to the Company’s suppliers, issuance of letters of credit and/or advances to the 

Company.  Under the Supply Agreement, the Company is required to pay Star Funding an amount equal to 5.0% per month of all Expenses (as such term is defined in the 
Supply Agreement) associated with the purchase of any Client-Assembled Goods (as such term is defined in the Supply Agreement), and (b) 2.0% of all Expenses associated 
with the purchase of any Pre-Assembled Goods (as such term is defined in the Supply Agreement) for the initial 30-day period, provided that such fee shall be reduced to 1.0% 
for each subsequent 15-day period until the date on which all of the Expenses have been paid in full in cash under the agreement. As of June 30, 2013, $0 was outstanding 
under the Supply Agreement. 

  
As collateral for the Company’s obligations under the Factoring Agreements and the Supply Agreement, each of the Company and BLB granted Star Funding a 

security interest in all of their assets. To further secure the Company’s obligations under the Factoring Agreements and Supply Agreement, each of the Company and BLB 
executed a Guarantee, dated as of October 17, 2012 (the “Guarantees”), pursuant to which each of the Company and BLB agreed to guarantee the other’s obligations to Star 
Funding under the Factoring Agreements and the Supply Agreement. 

  
Each of Nicole Ostoya, our Chief Executive Officer and President, Ashumi Kothary, our Chief Financial Officer, and Robin Coe-Hutshing, one of our majority 

shareholders, executed a Validity Guarantee, dated as of October 17, 2012 (the “Validity Guarantees”), pursuant to which each of these persons has agreed to guarantee the 
obligations of the Company solely in the event (i) any representations or warranties of the Company or BLB, as the case may be, regarding its accounts receivable or 
inventory, or any information provided by the Company or BLB, as the case may be, from time to time with respect to its inventory, Customers (as defined in the Factoring 
Agreements and Supply Agreements), purchase orders or accounts receivable, shall prove to be false, inaccurate or incomplete, (ii) of a breach of any covenant or obligation 
of the Company or BLB, as the case may be, under the Factoring Agreements or Supply Agreements with respect to the management or collection of any of their accounts 
receivable, (iii) of fraud or misrepresentation by the Company or BLB, as the case may be, with respect to the Transaction Documents (as defined in the Validity Guarantee) or 
the transactions contemplated thereby, (iv) the removal or disposal of any portion of the collateral other than in the ordinary course of business and in a manner consistent 
with the Transaction Documents, (v) any interference by the Company, BLB or the guarantors with Star Funding’s efforts to collect the accounts receivable, or (vi) any 
misappropriation of proceeds of collateral by the Company, BLB or such guarantors, or any other intentional misconduct by the Company, BLB or such guarantors that impairs 
the collateral or the ability of the Company or BLB, as the case may be, to perform its obligations to Star Funding. 
 
Financial Condition – Recent Financings 
 

August 29, 2013 Debentures 
 

On August 29, 2013 (the “Closing Date”), we completed the sale to an accredited investor of (i) an 8% original issue discount senior secured convertible debenture in 
the principal amount of $616,000 (the “Debenture”) and (ii) a five-year warrant (the “Debenture Warrant”) to purchase 9,058,824 shares of the Company’s common stock at an 
exercise price of $0.082 per share, subject to adjustment, for gross proceeds of $550,000.  The Debenture is convertible into shares of our common stock at any time prior to 
maturity at $0.068 per share, subject to adjustment and certain conversion limitations set forth in the Debenture and “full-ratchet” and other customary anti-dilution 
protections.  The Company received net proceeds of $500,000, which were used for general working capital purposes. The sale of the Debenture and Debenture Warrant were 
on substantially the same terms as the financing transaction completed by the Company on June 20, 2013 described under the heading “Recent Sales of Unregistered Equity 
Securities – Institutional Financings”. 

  
The Debenture bears interest at a rate of 8% per annum, payable quarterly on February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1, beginning on November 1, 2013.  Interest 

is payable in cash or at the Company’s option in shares of common stock, provided certain conditions are met, based on a share value equal to the lesser of (a) 90% of the 
average of the VWAP for the 20 consecutive trading days prior to the applicable interest payment date and (b) 100% of the average of the VWAP for the 20 consecutive 
trading days prior to the applicable interest payment date less $0.01.  On each of September 1, 2014, October 1, 2014, November 1, 2014, December 1, 2014, January 1, 2015 and 
February 1, 2015, the Company is obligated to redeem an amount equal to $51,333 and on March 1, 2015, the Company is obligated to redeem an amount equal to $308,000 (plus 
accrued but unpaid interest, liquidated damages and any other amounts then owing in respect of the Debenture) (collectively, the “Periodic Redemption Amount”).  In lieu of a 
cash redemption and subject to the Company meeting certain equity conditions described in the Debenture, the Company may elect to pay the Periodic Redemption Amount in 
shares based on a conversion price equal to the lesser of (a) $0.068 per share, subject to adjustments upon certain events, and (b) 90% of the average of the VWAP for the 20 
consecutive trading days prior to the applicable redemption date. Upon any Event of Default (as such term is defined in the Debenture), the outstanding principal amount of 
the Debenture, plus liquidated damages, interest, a premium of 30% and other amounts owing in respect thereof through the date of acceleration, shall become, at the 
Investor’s election, immediately due and payable in cash.  Commencing 5 days after the occurrence of any Event of Default, the interest rate on the Debenture shall accrue at 
an interest rate equal to the lesser of 18% per annum or the maximum rate permitted under applicable law. 
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At any time after the six-month anniversary of the Closing Date, the Company may prepay any portion of the outstanding principal amount of the Debenture, plus 

liquidated damages, interest, a premium of 20% and other amounts owing in respect thereof through the applicable date of optional redemption, subject to notice to the 
Investor. 

  
The Company’s obligations under the Debenture are secured by a lien on the assets of the Company and BLB (subordinated to our Factor), pursuant to the terms of a 

Security Agreement, dated as of August 29, 2013 and are subject to a Guaranty, dated August 29, 2013, pursuant to which BLB has guaranteed the obligations of the 
Company. 

  
The Company has granted the investor the right to participate in future financings and the transaction documents contain other customary affirmative and negative 

covenants. Under the transaction documents, the Company did not agree to register the securities sold in the offering, and therefore, is under no obligation to register the 
securities sold in the offering.  As of October 15, 2013, with the timely filing of our Form 10-K, the Company will remain in compliance with the covenants of the Debentures. 

  
All of the foregoing securities were issued in reliance on the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 of Regulation 

D promulgated thereunder. 
 
Merger with BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding 
 

On July 12, 2012, our wholly-owned subsidiary, BOLDFACE Acquisition Corp. (“Acquisition Corp.”), merged with and into BLB, with BLB remaining as the surviving 
entity (the “Merger”). As a result of the Merger, each share of BLB common stock outstanding was cancelled and converted into 200 shares of our common stock resulting in 
the issuance of an aggregate of 20,000,000 shares to former BLB stockholders. As part of the Merger, we also issued 5,000,000 shares of our common stock to stockholders of 
BLB in proportion to their ownership of BLB shares, in connection with the execution of the License Agreement with Pez-Mar, Via Mar Productions Inc., a corporation wholly 
owned by Mario Lopez, dated as of July 11, 2012. 

  
The Merger Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2012 (the “Merger Agreement”), executed in connection with the Merger contained customary representations, 

warranties and covenants of the Company, BLB, and, as applicable, Acquisition Corp. The Merger Agreement provides for a post-closing adjustment in an aggregate amount 
of up to 1,000,000 additional shares of our common stock issuable pro rata to BLB’s pre-Merger stockholders for any breach of the Merger Agreement by us that is discovered 
during the two-year period following July 12, 2012. The Merger Agreement also provided that 5% of the 20,000,000 shares of our common stock (1,000,000 shares) (the “BLB 
Escrowed Shares”) that BLB’s pre-Merger stockholders received in the Merger in exchange for shares of BLB common stock be held in escrow for any breach of the Merger 
Agreement by BLB that is discovered during the two-year period following July 12, 2012 pursuant to the terms of an Escrow Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2012, among us, 
the pre-Merger stockholders of BLB, and Gottbetter & Partners, LLP, as Escrow Agent. As of the date of this report, no such breaches of the Merger Agreement are present. 
 

In connection with the Merger, for a period of 24 months from the closing date except in certain limited circumstances, our officers, directors, key employees and 
holders of 10% or more of our common stock, calculated after giving effect to the Merger, who received shares of our common stock in connection with the Merger, agreed to 
“lock-up”, not sell or otherwise transfer or hypothecate directly or indirectly, or effect or agree to effect any short sale of, any of their shares of our common stock received in 
connection with the Merger. 
 

In connection with the closing of the Merger, we issued warrants for 10,000,000 shares of our common stock (the “Licensor Warrants”) to the licensors under the 
Kardashian Beauty™ License Agreement.  The warrants are exercisable for a term of ten years.  The warrants were originally exercisable at $0.24 per share. Subsequently, we 
agreed with the warrant holders to lower the exercise price of the warrants to $0.12 per share. 

  
For financial reporting purposes, the Merger represented a capital transaction of BLB or a “reverse merger” rather than a business combination, because the sellers of 

BLB effectively controlled the combined company immediately following the completion of the Merger. As such, BLB was deemed to be the accounting acquirer in the 
transaction and, consequently, the transaction was treated as a recapitalization of BLB. 
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Capital Expenditures 
  
           As of June 30, 2013, we incurred capital expenditures of $866,968, which consisted of fixtures at certain key customer retail stores and display rooms. 
  
Results of Operations 

  
Revenues 
  

We generated net revenues from operations for the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013 of $0 million and $5.331 million, respectively. Net 
sales were generated from the successful launch of our Kardashian Beauty™ brand and securing retail points of distribution domestically and international distribution 
relationships. 
 
Cost of Goods Sold 
  

Cost of goods sold for the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013, was $0 million and $3.307 million, respectively, 0% and 62%, respectively, of 
revenue for the same period. The cost of goods sold includes direct materials, labor, overhead, and freight costs. As of the year ended June 30, 2013, we incurred $365,772 in 
cost of goods expenses for a reserve for inventory write-off, primarily due to our name change. 
 
Operating Expenses 
  

We incurred operating expenses from operations for the period from inception (April 26, 2012) to June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013 of $0.730 million and 
$8.935 million, respectively. Our operating expenses primarily consisted of general and administrative expenses, professional fees, depreciation and amortization expense and 
product development fees paid to a related party. The increase in our operating expenses is due to the increase in professional fees, depreciation and amortization expense and 
the build-out of our Company staff and infrastructure. 
 
Losses from Operations 
  

We incurred operating losses of $0.730 million and $6.912 million, respectively, for the period from inception (April 26, 2012) to June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 
30, 2013. The main components of the recorded operating loss during both periods were general and administrative expenses, professional fees, depreciation and amortization 
expense and product development fees paid to a related party. 
 
Other (Income) / Expense 
  

We incurred other expenses / (income) for the period from inception (April 26, 2012) to June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013 of $(0.064) million and $1.602 
million, respectively. Our other (income) / expense primarily consisted of non-cash interest expense, loss from debt extinguishment and derivative liability gains. 
 
Net Losses 
  

We incurred net losses in the amounts of $(0.794) million and $(5.310) million, or $(0.01) and $(0.06) per share for the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended 
June 30, 2013, respectively, primarily due to our losses from operations, net interest expense and loss from debt extinguishment, offset by a non-cash derivative liability gain. 
  
Liquidity and Capital Resources 
  

As of June 30, 2013, we had cash and cash equivalents of $0.389 million compared to $0.072 million as of June 30, 2012.  We had $0.047 million of working capital at 
June 30, 2013, (including approximately $117,000 of the current portion of debt discounts), as compared to $(1.074) million at June 30, 2012.  The change is attributable to the 
recognition of revenue, the launch of operations, the conversion of the Bridge Note from May 2012 into equity and the value of our amortized debt discounts as related to our 
Debentures. 
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As of June 30, 2013, our total assets were $4.382 million, our total shareholders’ deficit was $(0.849) million and our total liabilities were $5.231 million compared to 

$1.494 million in total assets, $(0.794) million in shareholders’ deficit and $2.288 in total liabilities as of June 30, 2012. 
  
As of June 30, 2013, our assets were comprised of $0.264 million in accounts receivable and due from factor, $2.207 million in inventory and prepaid inventory, $0.379 

million in current portion of prepaid royalty, and $0.359 million in deferred financing costs. Our total liabilities were comprised primarily of $2.482 million in accounts payable 
and $1.660 million in long-term liabilities related to the value of our derivative instruments, Debentures in the net amount of $0.282 million and accrued expenses of $0.807 
million. 
 

As of June 30, 2012, our assets were comprised of $0.350 million in inventory and prepaid inventory, $0.640 million in current portion of prepaid royalty, and $0.150 
million in deferred financing costs. Our total liabilities were comprised primarily of $1.925 million in short-term loans, $0.146 million in accounts payable and $0.108 million in due 
to Gold Grenade and accrued expenses of $0.109 million. 

 
We have limited cash reserves and need substantial amounts of capital to implement our business plan. Given the current state of the capital markets and credit 

markets, there is no assurance that we will be able to raise the amount of capital that we need to support our working capital requirements or for further investment in current 
and future operations. If we are unable to raise the necessary capital at the times we require such funding, we may have to materially change our business plan, delay 
implementation of aspects of our business plan or curtail or abandon our business plan. 
 

To date, we have financed operations to date through the proceeds of the private placement of equity, convertible debt instruments and factoring agreements. In 
connection with our business plan, management anticipates additional increases in operating expenses and capital expenditures relating to: (i) acquisition of additional 
celebrity licenses; (ii) payments under existing celebrity licenses, (iii) developmental expenses associated with a start-up business; (iv) research and development costs 
associated with new product offerings, and (v) management and consulting costs, as well as general administrative expenses, including the costs of being a public company. 
We intend to finance these expenses with further issuances of debt and equity securities. Thereafter, we expect we will need to raise additional capital and generate revenues 
to meet short-term and long-term operating requirements. Additional financing may not be available on acceptable terms, or at all. If adequate funds are not available or are not 
available on acceptable terms, we may not be able to take advantage of prospective new business endeavors or opportunities, which could significantly and materially restrict 
our business operations. We currently do not have a specific plan of how we will obtain such funding; however, we anticipate that additional funding will be in the form of 
equity and/or debt financing and/or additional short-term borrowing. 
 

As discussed above, we have been financed primarily by private placements (see “Recent Sales of Unregistered Equity Securities” of Item 5 of this Form 10-K, the PO 
Agreement with Solops LLC (see Note 4 to our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K) and the sale of short-term shareholder notes as 
discussed below. In addition, pursuant to the Supply Agreement and Factoring Agreements with Star Funding (see Note 4 to our audited consolidated financial statements 
included elsewhere in this Form 10-K), Star Funding factored certain of our purchase orders and we used substantially all of the proceeds to repay Solops LLC the full amount 
of $1,065,000 required under the PO Agreement. The Supply Agreements enhance our ability to manufacture and sell our products.  The Factoring Agreements enhance our 
working capital by supplying liquidity against our accounts receivable so that we can repay our obligations in a timely fashion. 
 

To obtain additional capital to be used for working capital purposes, we issued short-term shareholder notes in an aggregate principal amount of $460,000 in 
September and November 2012 (see Note 4 to our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K). In conjunction with the issuance of the 
notes, we issued 1,350,000 warrants to the holders of the notes. These warrants are exercisable for a period of five years at a purchase price of $0.25 per share. The warrants 
contain certain anti-dilution and other customary terms. These notes were fully re-paid as of March 28, 2013. 
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Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 
  

During the year ended June 30, 2013, we used net cash in investing activities of $0.867 million for the purchase of display fixtures. We spent $0 during the period 
ended June 30, 2012. 
  
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 
  

Net cash provided by financing activities during the year ended June 30, 2013 was $4.696 million.  Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended June 
30, 2013 was primarily attributable to the issuance of the units of our securities and proceeds from the Convertible Notes Offering, the Private Placement Offering and proceeds 
from short-term loans. 
 
Going Concern 
  

The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K have been prepared assuming that we will continue as a going concern, 
which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. However, our ability to continue as a going concern will be 
dependent upon our ability to generate sufficient cash flow from our operations to satisfy our liabilities on a timely basis and to obtain additional funding or generate sufficient 
revenue to cover our operating expenses. Our audited consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. 

  
To date, we have financed operations to date through the proceeds of the private placement of equity, convertible debt instruments and factoring agreements. In 

connection with our business plan, management anticipates additional increases in operating expenses and capital expenditures relating to: (i) acquisition of additional 
celebrity licenses; (ii) payments under existing celebrity licenses, (iii) developmental expenses associated with a start-up business; (iv) research and development costs 
associated with new product offerings, and (v) management and consulting costs, as well as general administrative expenses, including the costs of being a public company. 
We intend to finance these expenses with further issuances of debt and equity securities. Thereafter, we expect we will need to raise additional capital and generate revenues 
to meet short-term and long-term operating requirements. Additional financing may not be available on acceptable terms, or at all. If adequate funds are not available or are not 
available on acceptable terms, we may not be able to take advantage of prospective new business endeavors or opportunities, which could significantly and materially restrict 
our business operations. We currently do not have a specific plan of how we will obtain such funding; however, we anticipate that additional funding will be in the form of 
equity and/or debt financing and/or additional short-term borrowing. As such, these factors raise substantial doubt as to the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. 

  
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 
  

The presentation of our financial statements are affected by the accounting policies used and the estimates and assumptions made by management during their 
preparation. A complete listing of these policies is included in Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the notes to our audited consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2013 included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Below, we have identified the accounting policies that are of particular importance in the 
presentation of our financial statements, results of operations and cash flows, and which require the application of significant judgment by management. 

   
Use of Estimates 

  
In preparing our financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP”), management makes estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the 
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates include the fair value of warrant liabilities, debt discount and the ability to realize 
deferred tax assets. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

  
Revenue Recognition 

  
As required by Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification Topic 605, Revenue Recognition, we expect to recognize 

revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable and collection is probable. 
 

We offer our customers a variety of sales and incentive programs, including discounts, allowances, coupons, slotting fees, and co-op advertising; such amounts are 
recorded as a reduction in revenue over the period in which revenue is recognized. We expensed $0 and $1.335 million for the period ended June 30, 2012 and year ended June 
30, 2013, respectively, and such amounts are included in discounts in the accompanying statement of operations.  
 
Inventories 
 

Inventories include items which are considered salable or usable in future periods, and are stated at the lower of cost or market value, with cost being based on 
standard cost which approximates actual cost on a first-in, first-out basis. Costs include direct materials, direct labor and overhead (e.g., indirect labor, rent and utilities, 
depreciation, purchasing, receiving, inspection and quality control), and in-bound freight costs. We periodically review the value of items in inventory and provides write-
downs or write-offs of inventory based on its assessment of market conditions. Write-downs and write-offs are charged to cost of goods sold. In the period ended June 30, 
2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013, we experienced $0 and $0.366 million, respectively, in write-offs. 
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Property and Equipment 
  

Fixed assets as of June 30, 2013 consist of costs incurred by us in connection with installing display fixtures at certain key customer display rooms and retail stores. 
The display fixtures are being depreciated on a straight-line basis over two years, which approximates the estimated useful lives of such assets. Display fixtures maintained at 
customer display rooms and retail stores amounted to $669,033, net of accumulated depreciation, at June 30, 2013. Depreciation expense amounted to $0 and $197,935 for the 
period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013, respectively, and is included in depreciation & amortization expense in the accompanying statements of 
operations.  

  
Advertising 
 

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Total advertising expenses amounted to $0 and $561,765 for the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 
2013, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying statement of operations. 

  
Selling Expenses and Commissions 
 

Selling expenses are expensed as incurred. Total selling expenses amounted to $0 and $84,338 for the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013, 
respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying statement of operations. 
 

Selling commissions are expensed as incurred. Total selling commissions amounted to $0 and $236,600 for the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 
2013, respectively, and are included in professional fees in the accompanying statement of operations. 
 
Deferred Financing Costs 
 

Deferred financing costs represent fees paid in connection with obtaining short-term and long-term loans (see Notes 4, 5 and 6 to our audited consolidated financial 
statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K). These fees are amortized using a method that approximates the effective interest method over the term of the related 
financing. 
 

In connection with the first and second closings of the Convertible Notes Offering, we paid Aegis Capital Corp. (“Aegis”) who acted as the sole placement agent for 
the closings of the Convertible Notes Offering a commission of 10% of the funds raised in the Convertible Notes offering and a 3% non-accountable reimbursement of its 
expenses, for a total payment of $406,900, which is recorded as a deferred financing cost in the accompanying balance sheet. We incurred additional fees of $96,556 for legal 
and escrow agent fees in connection with the Convertible Notes Offering, which were recorded as a deferred financing cost in the accompanying balance sheet. The 
unamortized portion of these fees were expensed in full to loss from extinguishment of debt in connection with the June Convertible Note. 
 

In connection with the third closing of the Convertible Notes Offering, we paid Gottbetter Capital Markets (“GCM”) who acted as the sole placement agent for the 
third closing of the Convertible Notes a commission of 10% of the funds raised in the offering and a 1.5% non-accountable reimbursement of expenses, for a total payment of 
$28,750. The unamortized portion of these fees were expensed in full to loss from extinguishment of debt in connection with the June Convertible Note. 
 

In connection with the first and second closings of the Convertible Notes Offering, the holders of the 12% Notes purchased 6,260,000 free trading shares of our 
common stock from certain non-affiliated, third-party shareholders of our Company at par value. Although we were not a party to the sale of these shares by the third-party 
shareholders, under FASB ASC Topic 718, Accounting for Stock Compensation, the fair value of this non-affiliated third-party transaction, of $1.54 million, is recognized by us 
as a deferred financing cost of the Convertible Notes Offering. We will provide no reimbursement or compensation to the selling shareholders of the 6,260,000 free trading 
shares of our common stock. As such, we do not anticipate recognizing any further expenses in relation to this third-party transaction. The unamortized portion of this expense 
was expensed in full to loss from extinguishment of debt in connection with the June Convertible Note. 

  
In connection with the Debenture, we paid Gottbetter Capital Markets (“GCM”) who acted as the sole placement agent for the Debenture a commission of 7.2% of the 

first $1,400,000 funds raised in the offering for a total payment of $100,000. We also issued 2.0 million five-year warrants to GCM at the same terms as the Debenture Warrants, 
with an exercise price $0.082. In addition, we paid $117,446 in legal fees to Gottbetter & Partners and $85,207 in professional fees to the lead investor in the Debenture. 
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In connection with the Bridge Notes in May 2012, we recognized deferred financing costs of $150,150, net of accumulated amortization of $41,463, as of June 30, 2012. 

The amortization of deferred financing costs of $41,463 is included in interest expense in the accompanying statement of operations for the period ended June 30, 2012. 
 

As of June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012, deferred financing costs of $150,150 and $358,792 million, respectively, net of accumulated amortization, are presented on the 
accompanying balance sheet. Amortization of deferred financing costs of $41,463 and $1.513 million, as of June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2013, respectively, are included in 
depreciation and amortization expenses in the accompanying statement of operations. The remaining deferred financing costs will be fully amortized by December 20, 2014. 
 
Debt Discount 
 

We may record debt discounts in connection with raising funds through the issuance of convertible debt (see Note 5 and 6 to our audited consolidated financial 
statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K). These costs are amortized to interest expense over the life of the debt. If a conversion of the underlying debt occurs, a 
proportionate share of the unamortized amounts is immediately expensed. 
 

As of June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2013, convertible debt, net of unamortized debt discounts, was $0 and $0.282 million, respectively. Amortization of debt discounts of 
$0 and $1.202 million is included in interest expense in the accompanying statement of operations for the periods ended June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2013, respectively. The 
remaining debt discounts will be fully amortized by December 20, 2014. See Note 5 and 6 to our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. 
 
Derivative Financial Instruments 
 

GAAP requires derivative instruments embedded in convertible debt or equity instruments, to be bifurcated and measured at their fair value for accounting purposes. 
In determining the appropriate fair value, we use the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. In assessing the debt instruments with characteristics of liability and equity, 
management determines if the convertible debt host instrument is conventional convertible debt and if there is a beneficial conversion feature. If the instrument is not 
considered conventional convertible debt, we will estimate the fair value of the embedded derivative instruments. The warrant liability is measured at fair value on a recurring 
basis using level 2 inputs (see Notes 5, 6 and 7 to our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K). 
 

As of June 30, 2013, we had reserved 60,751,751 shares of common stock for issuance of common stock upon exercise of our outstanding warrants. 
 
The relative fair value at issuance of the warrants granted during the year ended June 30, 2013 was estimated at $7.252 million using the Black-Scholes model. The 

relative fair value of the warrants was recorded in the long-term liability and equity sections of the balance sheet. 
 

As of June 30, 2013, the relative fair value of all warrants issued was estimated at $1.660 million. The gain in the fair value of the warrants of $0 and $5.412 million for 
the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013, respectively, was recorded in the long-term liability section of the balance sheet and recorded as a gain in the 
derivative liability section on the statement of operations. 
 
Financial Instruments and Concentrations of Business and Credit Risk 

  
FASB ASC Subtopic 825-10, Financial Instruments, requires disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments. Our financial instruments include cash 

and cash equivalents, factoring lines of credit, convertible debt, accounts payable, other current assets and liabilities, and short-term loans. The fair value of these instruments 
approximates their carrying value due to their relatively short maturities. 

  

  

  
-28-



  
Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents. We may maintain cash balances that 

at times may exceed amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Two customers accounted for approximately 44% and 24% of our net revenues for the 
year ended June 30, 2013.  Accounts receivable for one customer represented 94% of our accounts receivable as of June 30, 2013. We have not experienced any losses in these 
accounts and believe we are not exposed to any significant credit risk in this area. 

  
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

  
The provisions of FASB ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant and Equipment – Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets requires that long-lived assets and certain 

identifiable intangible assets be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the an asset may not be 
recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to undiscounted future cash flows expected to be 
generated by the asset. In such cases, the carrying value of these assets is adjusted to their estimated fair value and assets held for sale are adjusted to their estimated fair 
value less selling expenses. No impairment losses of long-lived assets or intangible assets were recognized for the year ended June 30, 2013. 

  
Income Taxes 

  
We use the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 

recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax 
bases and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those 
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that 
includes the enactment date. We provide a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets when circumstances indicate that it is no longer more likely than not that such 
assets will be realized. As we provided a full valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets, there was no net impact on net loss or net loss per share as of June 30, 2013. 
 
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements 
  

There have been no recently issued Accounting Pronouncements that impact us. 
  
Inflation 
  

The effect of inflation on our revenues and operating results has not been significant. 
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
  

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements. 
  

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 
  

A smaller reporting company is not required to provide the information required by this Item. 
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 
  

Index to Financial Statements 
 

  

  

Financial Statements:   
    
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm – Friedman LLP F-1 
Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 F-2 
Statements of Operations for the year ended June 30, 2013 and the period from April 26, 2012 (Inception) to June 30, 2012 F-3 
Statements of Cash Flow for the year ended June 30, 2013 and the period from April 26, 2012 (Inception) to June 30, 2012 F-4 
Statement of Shareholders Deficit from April 26, 2012 (date of inception) to June 30, 2013 F-5 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-6 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

  
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
BOLDFACE Group, Inc. 
  
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of BOLDFACE Group Inc. as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of operations, 
shareholders’ deficiency, and cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2013 and the period from April 26, 2012 (inception) through June 30, 2012. BOLDFACE Group, Inc.’s 
management is responsible for these financial statements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
  
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we 
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over 
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
  
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of BOLDFACE Group, Inc. as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2013 and the period from April 26, 2012 (inception) through June 30, 2012, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
  
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that BOLDFACE, Group Inc. will continue as a going concern. As more fully described in Note 1, the 
Company has incurred operating losses since inception and requires additional capital to continue operations. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to this matter are also described in Note 1. The financial statements do not include any adjustments to 
reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and classification of liabilities that may result from the outcome of this 
uncertainty. 
  
  
/s/ Friedman LLP 
  
East Hanover, NJ 
October 15, 2013 
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BOLDFACE GROUP, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
  

  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

  

 

    June 30, 2013     June 30, 2012  
ASSETS            

             
Current assets:            

Cash  $ 388,892   $ 71,532 
Accounts receivable    100,087     - 
Due from factor, net    164,090     - 
Inventory (net of reserve of $365,772 and $0, as of June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012, respectively)    1,948,908      - 
Prepaid inventory    258,531     349,679 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    89,786     2,220 
Current portion of prepaid royalty    378,960     640,351 
Current portion of deferred financing costs, net    29,899     150,150 

Total current assets    3,359,153      1,213,932 

               
Prepaid royalty    -     268,421 
Property and equipment, net    669,033     - 
Deferred financing costs, net    328,893     - 
License acquisition costs    24,504     11,782 
               

Total assets  $ 4,381,583    $ 1,494,135 

               
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT              

               
Current liabilities:              

Short-term loans  $ -   $ 1,925,030 
Accounts payable    2,481,852     145,839 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities    806,553      108,863 
Current portion of convertible debt, net of debt discount    23,476     - 
Due to Gold Grenade, LLC    -     108,475 

Total current liabilities    3,311,881      2,288,207 
               
Long-Term Liabilities              

Convertible debt, net of debt discount    258,240     - 
Derivative liability    1,660,440     - 

Total Long-Term Liabilities    1,918,680     - 
               
Total Liabilities    5,230,561      2,288,207 
               
Commitments and Contingencies              
               
Shareholders' deficit:              

Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, zero issued and outstanding    -     - 
        Common stock, $.001 par value, 300,000,000 shares authorized, 155,301,468 and 85,200,116 shares issued as of June 30, 2013 and 

June 30, 2012 respectively     155,301      85,200 
Treasury stock, at cost - 999,680 and 0 shares as of June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012 respectively    (228,284)    - 
Additional paid in capital    6,841,822      - 
Accumulated deficit    (7,617,817)    (879,272)

Total shareholders' deficit    (848,978)    (794,072)
               

Total liabilities and shareholders' deficit  $ 4,381,583    $ 1,494,135 
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BOLDFACE GROUP, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
  

  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

  

  

   

Twelve Months 
Ended 

June 30, 2013    

Date of Inception  
(April 26, 2012) 

to 
June 30, 2012  

Revenues            
Gross revenues  $ 6,666,201   $ - 
Discounts    1,335,136      - 

Revenues, net of discounts    5,331,065      - 
               

Cost of Goods Sold, Net    3,307,304      - 
               
Gross Profit    2,023,761      - 
               
Operating expenses:              

Research and development    61,440     65,190 
Royalty expense    639,813     91,228 
Professional fees    2,114,818     165,916 
General and administrative expenses    3,535,367     195,579 
Depreciation and amortization expense    1,711,135     - 
Product development fee - related party    872,700     212,104 

Total operating expense    8,935,273     730,017 
               

Loss from operations    (6,911,512)    (730,017)
               
Other (income) / expenses:              

Interest expense, net    1,711,193     64,155 
Loss from debt extinguishment    2,098,819     - 
Derivative liability gain    (5,411,959)    - 

               
Net loss  $ (5,309,565)  $ (794,172)

               
Net loss per share attributable to common shareholders—basic and diluted  $ (0.06)  $ (0.01)

               
Weighted average number of common shares used in computation—basic and diluted    89,073,174     85,200,116 
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BOLDFACE GROUP, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
  

  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

  

  

   

Twelve Months 
Ended 

June 30, 2013    

Date of Inception 
(April 26, 2012) 

to 
June 30, 2012  

             
Cash flows from operating activities:            

Net loss  $ (5,309,565)  $ (794,172)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:              

Stock compensation expense    407,491      - 
Stock issued for services    506,302      - 
Inventory write-offs    365,772      - 
Amortization of license acquisition costs    2,662     380 
Amortization of deferred financing costs    1,513,200     41,463 
Amortization of debt discount    1,201,959     - 
Depreciation    197,935      - 
Loss from conversion of debt    2,098,819     - 
Derivative liability gain    (5,411,959)    - 

Change in operating assets and liabilities:              
Accounts receivable    (100,087)    - 
Due from factor, net    (164,090)    - 
Prepaid royalty    529,812     (908,772)
License acquisition costs    (15,384)    (12,162)
Inventory    (2,314,680)    - 
Deposit    (3,900)    (2,220)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    16,332     - 
Prepaid inventory    91,149     (349,679)
Accounts payable    2,336,013     145,839 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities    774,406      108,863 
Due to Gold Grenade, LLC    (108,475)    108,475 

Net cash used in operating activities    (3,386,288)    (1,661,985)
               
Cash flows from investing activities:              

Acquisition of property and equipment    (866,968)    - 
Net cash used in investing activities    (866,968)    - 

               
Cash flows from financing activities:              

Issuance of common stock, net of financing fees    783,480     100 
Purchase of treasury stock and warrants    (250,000)    - 
Proceeds from short term loans    1,335,000     1,733,417 
Paydown of short term loans    (1,335,000)    - 
Proceeds from convertible debt, net of deferred financing fees    4,037,136     - 

Net cash provided by financing activities    4,570,616      1,733,517 
               
Net change in cash    317,360     71,532 
               
Cash at beginning of period    71,532     - 
               
Cash at end of period    388,892     71,532 

               
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:              

Cash paid during the year for:              
Interest    225,078     - 
Income Taxes    -     - 

               
Non-cash financing activities:              

Conversion of bridge notes    5,305,030     - 
Contribution from shareholders for deferred financing cost    1,537,940     - 
Other non-cash deferred financing fees from issuance of convertible debt    264,520     - 
Fair value of warrants issued in connection with equity and debt financing    7,252,282      - 
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Boldface Group, Inc. 

Statement of Shareholders’ Deficit 
  

  
*REVERSE WAS BOOKED RETROACTIVELY AT THE START OF THE FIRST FISCAL YEAR PRESENTED. 
  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
  

  

    Common Stock                          

    Shares    
Amount 

 (Par value)     Treasury Stock    
Additional paid 

in capital    
Accumulated 

Deficit     Total Equity  
                                     
Balance, April 26, 2012     85,200,116    $ 85,200   $ -   $ -    $ (85,200)  $ - 
                                           
Net loss                         -      (794,172)     (794,172)
Balance, June 30, 2012     85,200,116      85,200     -     -      (879,372)     (794,172)
                                           
Conversion of bridge note at reverse, net    -     -     -      1,847,432     -      1,847,432 
Net loss    -     -     -     -      (5,309,565)     (5,309,565)
Stock based compensation    -     -     -      407,491     -      407,491 
Issuance of warrants / derivative liability    -     -     -      (2,442,990)     (1,428,880)     (3,871,870)
Issuance of stock     3,443,920      3,444     -      730,177     -      733,621 
Issuance of stock for services     1,818,499      1,818     -      287,886     -      289,704 
Issuance of stock from conversion of debt and 
exercise of warrants     64,838,933      64,839     -      4,473,886     -      4,538,725 
Capital contribution by shareholders    -     -     -      1,537,940     -      1,537,940 
Repurchase  of stock    -     -      (228,284)    -     -      (228,284)
Balance, June 30, 2013     155,301,468    $ 155,301    $ (228,284)   $ 6,841,822    $ (7,617,817)   $ (848,978)
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BOLDFACE GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

  
NOTE 1.                 FORMATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 

Organization 
 

BOLDFACE, Group Inc. (“BLBK”) together with its wholly owned subsidiary BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding (“BLB” and collectively, “we”, “us”, “our” 
or the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada on July 9, 2007. On July 12, 2012, BOLDFACE Acquisition Corp., the Company’s 
wholly owned subsidiary, merged with and into BLB, with BLB remaining as the surviving entity (the “Merger”). As a result of the Merger, the Company 
acquired the business of BLB and will continue the existing business operations of BLB as the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary. In connection with the 
Merger, on August 14, 2012, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a change of the Company’s fiscal year end from September 30 to June 30. 

 
For financial reporting purposes, the Merger represented a capital transaction of BLB or a “reverse merger” rather than a business combination, because the 
sellers of BLB effectively controlled the combined company immediately following the completion of the Merger. As such, BLB was deemed to be the 
accounting acquirer in the transaction and, consequently, the transaction was treated as a recapitalization of BLB. 

 
BLB was incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada on April 26, 2012. BLB was founded by Ms. Nicole Ostoya, the Company’s Chief Executive 
Officer, President and a director, and Ms. Robin Coe-Hutshing, a principal shareholder of the Company. Ms. Ostoya and Ms. Coe-Hutshing are beauty 
industry veterans with over 40 years combined experience in the industry. BLB’s focus is on licensing top tier entertainment and designer brands for 
opportunities in the beauty, fragrance and personal care market. BLB contracts to design, manufacture and sell branded color cosmetics, hair preparations, 
fragrances, home fragrances, skin care, beauty tools, and other beauty and personal care products in multiple channels of distribution. 

 
To date, the Company has devoted its efforts to developing, marketing and selling its cosmetics/beauty brand by Kourtney, Kim and Khloe Kardashian into 
retail channels, developing its Mario Lopez fragrance and UGLYDOLL® personal care brands, evaluating additional license agreements with additional 
celebrities and brands, and the raising of capital. 

  
Going Concern Liquidity 

 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern, which contemplates 
the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business.  However, the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern 
will be dependent upon the Company’s ability to generate sufficient cash flow from its planned operations to meet its obligations on a timely basis, to obtain 
additional financing, and ultimately attain profitability. The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern will also be determined by its ability to obtain 
additional equity and/or debt financing or ability to generate sufficient revenue to cover its operating expenses. Additional financing may not be available 
upon acceptable terms, or at all. 
  
To date, we have financed operations to date through the proceeds of the private placement of equity, convertible debt instruments and factoring 
agreements. In connection with our business plan, management anticipates additional increases in operating expenses and capital expenditures relating to: (i) 
acquisition of additional celebrity licenses; (ii) payments under existing celebrity licenses, (iii) developmental expenses associated with a start-up business; 
(iv) research and development costs associated with new product offerings, and (v) management and consulting costs, as well as general administrative 
expenses, including the costs of being a public company. We intend to finance these expenses with further issuances of debt and equity securities. 
Thereafter, we expect we will need to raise additional capital and generate revenues to meet short-term and long-term operating requirements. Additional 
financing may not be available on acceptable terms, or at all. If adequate funds are not available or are not available on acceptable terms, we may not be able 
to take advantage of prospective new business endeavors or opportunities, which could significantly and materially restrict our business operations. We 
currently do not have a specific plan of how we will obtain such funding; however, we anticipate that additional funding will be in the form of equity and/or 
debt financing and/or additional short-term borrowing. As such, these factors raise substantial doubt as to the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. 

 
The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. 
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BOLDFACE GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

  
NOTE 2.                 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Basis of Consolidation 
 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary. All significant intercompany 
balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. 

 
Method of Accounting 

 
The Company maintains its accounting records on an accrual method in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (“US GAAP”). 

 
Use of Estimates 

 
In preparing the financial statements in conformity with US GAAP, management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets 
and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenue and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

 
Revenue Recognition 

 
As required by Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 605, Revenue Recognition, the 
Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable and 
collection is probable. 

  
The Company offers its customers a variety of sales and incentive programs, including discounts, allowances, coupons, slotting fees, and co-op advertising; 
such amounts are recorded as a reduction in revenue over the period in which revenue is recognized. The Company reduced revenue in the amount of $0 and 
$1,335,136 for the period ended June 30, 2012 and year ended June 30, 2013, respectively, and such amounts are included in discounts in the accompanying 
statement of operations. 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

 
Accounts Receivable 

 
Accounts receivable represent payments due to the Company for previously recognized net sales, reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts for 
balances, which are estimated to be uncollectible at June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2013, respectively. The Company grants credit terms in the normal course of 
business to its customers. The Company does not require collateral or other security to support credit sales. The allowance for doubtful accounts is 
determined based on historical experience and ongoing evaluations of the Company’s receivables and evaluations of the risks of payment. The allowance for 
doubtful accounts is recorded against accounts receivable balances when they are deemed uncollectible. When accounts are deemed significantly past due 
and uncollectible, the accounts receivable balances are written down for the amount deemed to be uncollectible. Recoveries of accounts receivable 
previously reserved are recorded in the consolidated statements of operation when received. At June 30, 2013, the Company’s one customer accounted for 
approximately 94% of outstanding accounts receivable. The Company did not have any accounts receivable for the period ended June 30, 2012. 
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BOLDFACE GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

  
Inventories 

 
Inventories, which consist primarily of finished goods, include items which are considered salable or usable in future periods, and are stated at the lower of 
cost or market value, with cost being based on standard cost which approximates actual cost on a first-in, first-out basis. Costs include direct materials, direct 
labor and overhead (e.g., indirect labor, rent and utilities, depreciation, purchasing, receiving, inspection and quality control), in-bound freight costs. The 
Company periodically reviews the value of items in inventory and provides write-downs or write-offs of inventory based on its assessment of market 
conditions. Write-downs and write-offs are charged to cost of goods sold. In the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013, the Company 
recorded $0 and $0.366 million, respectively, in write-offs. 
  
Property and Equipment 

 
Property and equipment as of June 30, 2013 consist of costs incurred by the Company in connection with installing display fixtures at certain key customer 
display rooms and retail stores. The display fixtures are being depreciated on a straight-line basis over two years, which approximates the estimated useful 
lives of such assets. Display fixtures maintained at customer display rooms and retail stores amounted to $866,968 at June 30, 2013. Depreciation expense 
amounted to $0 and $197,935 for the period ended June 30, 2012 and year ended June 30, 2013, respectively, and is included in depreciation & amortization 
expense in the accompanying statements of operations. 
  
Advertising 

 
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Total advertising expenses amounted to $0 and $561,765 for the period ended June 30, 2012 and year ended June 
30, 2013, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying statement of operations. 

 
Selling Expenses and Commissions 

 
Selling expenses are expensed as incurred. Total selling expenses amounted to $0 and $84,338 for the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 
2013, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying statement of operations. 
 
Selling commissions are expensed as incurred. Total selling commissions amounted to $0 and $236,600 for the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended 
June 30, 2013, respectively, and are included in professional fees in the accompanying statement of operations. 
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BOLDFACE GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

  
Deferred Financing Costs 

 
Deferred financing costs represent fees paid in connection with obtaining short-term loans and convertible notes (see Notes 4, 5 and 6). These fees are 
amortized using a method that approximates the effective interest method over the term of the related financing. 

 
As of June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2013, deferred financing costs of $191,613 and $365,179, respectively, prior to accumulated amortization of $41,463 and 
$6,387, are presented on the accompanying balance sheet. Amortization of deferred financing costs of $41,463 and $6,387, as of June 30, 2012 and June 30, 
2013, respectively, are included in depreciation and amortization expenses in the accompanying statement of operations. The remaining deferred financing 
costs will be fully amortized by December 20, 2014. 

 
Debt Discount 

 
The Company records debt discounts in connection with raising funds through the issuance of convertible debt (see Note 5 and 6). These costs are 
amortized to non-cash interest expense over the life of the debt. If a conversion of the underlying debt occurs, a proportionate share of the unamortized 
amounts is immediately expensed. 

 
As of June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2013, convertible debt, net of unamortized debt discounts, was $0 and $281,716, respectively. Amortization of debt 
discounts of $0 and $1,201,959 is included in interest expense in the accompanying statement of operations for the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year 
ended June 30, 2013, respectively. The remaining debt discounts will be fully amortized by December 20, 2014. 
 
Derivative Financial Instruments 

 
GAAP requires derivative instruments embedded in convertible debt or equity instruments, to be bifurcated and measured at their fair value for accounting 
purposes. In determining the appropriate fair value, the Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. In assessing the debt instruments with 
characteristics of liability and equity, management determines if the convertible debt host instrument is conventional convertible debt and if there is a 
beneficial conversion feature. If the instrument is not considered conventional convertible debt, the Company will estimate the fair value of the embedded 
derivative instruments. The warrant liability is measured at fair value on a recurring basis using level 2 inputs (see Notes 5, 6 and 7). 

 
Financial Instruments and Concentrations of Business and Credit Risk 

 
FASB ASC Subtopic 825-10, Financial Instruments, requires disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments. The Company’s financial 
instruments include cash and cash equivalents, convertible debt, a factoring line of credit, short-term loans, accounts payable and other current assets and 
liabilities.  The fair value of these instruments approximates their carrying value due to their relatively short maturities.  Financial instruments that potentially 
subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents. Customer concentration also subjects the Company to 
concentrations of credit risk.  The Company maintains cash balances that at times exceed amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 
Two customers accounted for approximately 44% and 24% of the Company’s net revenues for the twelve months ended June 30, 2013.   Accounts receivable 
for one customer represented 94% of the Company’s accounts receivable as of June 30, 2013. The Company did not have any revenue during the period 
ended June 30, 2012. Three suppliers represented 23%, 21% and 12% of the Company’s inventory purchases as of June 30, 2013. The Company did not have 
any inventory as of June 30, 2012. The Company has not experienced any losses in these accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit 
risk in this area. 
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License Acquisition Costs 

 
License acquisition costs represent legal fees paid in connection with obtaining the Company’s licensing agreements (see Note 3). These fees are amortized 
using straight-line method over the term of each licensing agreement. 

 
As of June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2013, license acquisition costs, net of amortization, were $11,782 and $24,504, respectively on the accompanying balance 
sheet. Amortization of license acquisition costs of $380 and $2,662 are included in depreciation and amortization expense in the accompanying statement of 
operations for the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013, respectively. Estimated future license acquisition cost amortization expense 
is as follows: 
  

 
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

 
The Company is subject to the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant and Equipment – Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets, which 
requires that long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying amount of the an asset may not be recoverable.  Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying 
amount of an asset to undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset.  In such cases, the carrying value of these assets are adjusted 
to their estimated fair value and assets held for sale are adjusted to their estimated fair value less selling expenses.  No impairment losses of long-lived assets 
or intangible assets were recognized for the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013. 
  
Income Taxes 

 
The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes.  Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing 
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates 
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.  The effect on deferred tax 
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. The Company provides a valuation 
allowance against its deferred tax assets when circumstances indicate that it is no longer more likely than not that such assets will be realized. 

 

  

Twelve months periods ending June 30,       
2014   $ 6,381   
2015     7,793   
2016     7,793   
2017     2,537   

    $ 24,504   
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Net Loss per Share 

 
Basic net income / (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income / (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the 
period. The Company’s potential dilutive shares, which include common stock options, common stock warrants and convertible debt have not been included 
in the computation of diluted net loss per share for all periods where there was a net loss as the result would be antidilutive. Such potentially dilutive shares 
are excluded when the effect would be to reduce net loss per share. Such potential common shares consist of the following: 

 

 
NOTE 3.                 PREPAID ROYALTY 
 

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Company entered into a licensing agreement with an individual acquiring the exclusive right to use the licensor’s 
image in connection with the development, production, distribution, advertisement, promotion and sale of products and obtain certain ancillary services of 
the licensor. The licensing agreement remains in effect through February 29, 2016. 

 
During the term of the licensing agreement and as consideration for the grant of rights and license the licensor’s image, the Company has agreed to pay the 
licensor depending on the product sold, a royalty rate on all net sales of all products within the contract term. In addition the Company has agreed to pay a 
guaranteed minimum royalty payment of $600,000 depending on launch date of various products in accordance with the following schedule, but subject to 
adjustments: 

 

 
As part of the licensing agreement, $100,000 was prepaid and is recorded under Prepaid Royalty as of June 30, 2013. 

 
During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Company entered into a licensing agreement with an entity acquiring the exclusive right to use the licensor’s image 
in connection with the development, production, distribution, advertisement, promotion and sale of products and obtain certain ancillary services of the 
licensor (the “Third License”). The licensing agreement remains in effect through April 16, 2016. 

 
During the term of the licensing agreement and as consideration for the grant of rights and license the licensor’s image, the Company has agreed to pay the 
licensor depending on the product sold, a royalty rate on all net sales of all products within the contract term. In addition the Company has agreed to pay a 
guaranteed minimum royalty payment of $100,000 depending on launch date of various products in accordance with the following schedule, but subject to 
adjustments: 

 

  

  

   
As of June 30,  

2013  
Warrants     60,751,751 
Stock options     6,550,000  
Convertible Debt     24,705,882  

Total Shares     92,007,633 

  ● Contract period one: $100,000 
  ● Contract period two: $225,000 
  ● Contract period three: $275,000 

  ● Contract period one: $33,333 
  ● Contract period two: $33,333 
  ● Contract period three: $33,334 
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As part of the licensing agreement, $10,000 was prepaid and is recorded under Prepaid Royalty as of June 30, 2013. 

 
During the period ended June 30, 2012, the Company entered into a licensing agreement with three individuals (collectively the “Licensors”) acquiring the 
exclusive right to use the Licensors’ image in connection with the development, production, distribution, advertisement, promotion and sale of products and 
obtain certain ancillary services of the Licensors. The licensing agreement remains in effect through November 30, 2016. The Company has the option to 
extend the term of this agreement for an additional period of eighteen months. 
 
During the term of the licensing agreement and as consideration for the grant of rights and license the Licensors’ image, the Company has agreed to pay the 
Licensors depending on the product sold, a single digit royalty on all wholesale sales of all products within the contract term. In addition the Company has 
agreed to pay a guaranteed minimum royalty payment of $4,686,125 or $5,206,900 depending on launch date of various products in accordance with the 
following schedule, but subject to adjustments: 

 

 
In addition to the royalty payment and guaranteed minimum royalty payment, the Company granted the Licensors warrants, on a cashless exercise basis, to 
purchase 10,000,000 common shares of the Company. 

 
As of June 30, 2012, the Company has paid the Licensors $1,000,000 as a non-refundable advance payment for contract period one through November 30, 
2013. 

 
NOTE 4.                 SHORT TERM LOANS AND FACTORING AGREEMENT 
 

On September 7, 2012 and September 25, 2012, the Company issued secured bridge loan promissory notes totaling in the aggregate $300,000 bearing interest 
at a rate of 10% per annum. 

 
The promissory notes were issued in two installments: 

 

 
As of March 28, 2013, the Company had re-paid the principal and accrued interest on all of the bridge loan promissory notes. 

 
On November 9, 2012, the Company issued a short-term note in the principal amount of $60,000 to a stockholder of the Company.  The note accrued interest 
at an annual rate of 10%. On December 21, 2012, the Company re-paid the principal plus accrued interest on this promissory note. 

  
On October 4, 2012, the Company entered into a Purchase Order Sale Agreement (the “PO Agreement”) with Solops LLC, under which it financed certain of 
its contracts of orders (or purchase orders) (the “Orders”), which represent amounts due from bona fide contracts for the sale and delivery of the Company’s 
goods to certain merchants, in the principal amount of $1,125,000. Pursuant to the PO Agreement, the Company sold the Orders to Solops for a purchase 
price of $875,000. Under the terms of the PO Agreement, Solops will receive $1,065,000 through a combination of the merchants’ payments under the Orders 
directly to Solops, the Company’s collection of accounts receivable under the Orders and resulting payments to Solops and/or any other payments made by 
the Company to Solops under the PO Agreement. Upon the full payment to Solops of $1,065,000, the PO Agreement will immediately terminate and Solops 
will convey, assign and deliver back to the Company the Orders and all of its rights thereunder. After such full payment is made, the Company will regain 
sole ownership of the Orders and it will not have any further obligations to Solops, and Solops will not have any further rights, with respect to the Orders or 
under the PO Agreement. On November 21, 2012, the Company re-paid its obligation under the PO Agreement. 

  

  

  ● Contract period one: $1,000,000 
  ● Contract period two: $925,000 or $962,000 
  ● Contract period three: $1,188,625 or $1,394,900 
  ● Contract period four: $1,572,500 or $1,850,000 

  ● September 7, 2012 - $150,000, due by December 7, 2012 
  ● September 25, 2012 - $150,000, due by December 25, 2012 
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On December 7, 2012, the Company issued a short-term promissory note totaling $100,000 bearing interest at a rate of 10% per annum. On December 21, 2012, 
the Company re-paid the principal plus interest on this promissory note. 

  
Effective as of November 21, 2012, the Company entered into a one-year Factoring Agreement and Supply Agreement with Star Funding, Inc. Under the 
terms of the Factoring Agreement, the Company sells most of its trade receivables to the factor without recourse as to credit risk but with recourse for any 
claims by the customer for adjustments in the normal course of business. The Company is able to borrow up to 80% of its factored receivables. Under the 
terms of the Supply Agreement, the Company is able to finance the purchases of its inventory. For the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 
30, 2013, interest and commissions totaled approximately $0 and $154,887, respectively, under these agreements. Balances due from factor include 
outstanding accounts receivables from customers net of allowances for discounts and chargebacks, advances and interest due to factor. The Factoring 
Agreement and Supply Agreement limit the Company’s ability to: incur additional debt, pay dividends or make distributions to our stockholders, incur liens 
that would rank senior in priority to, or pari passu with, the obligations under the Notes, sell certain assets, and sell or otherwise dispose of any assets or 
rights of our Company or any subsidiary, subject to certain exceptions. Substantially all of the Company’s assets are collateralized against the Factoring 
Agreement and Supply Agreement. 

  
On May 16, 2012 and May 17, 2012, the Company issued secured bridge loan promissory notes totaling in the aggregate $1,500,025 bearing interest at a rate 
of 10% per annum (the “Bridge Notes”). On June 1, 2012, the Company issued additional Bridge Notes totaling $425,005. As of June 30, 2012, $1,925,030 of 
Bridge Notes were outstanding and are presented under short-term loans in the accompanying balance sheet. 

 
The promissory notes were issued in three installments: 

 

  
The loan is due and payable on the earliest of: 

 

 
As of July 12, 2012, the Bridge Notes were converted into equity as the Company and BLB completed the merger. 

 
In connection with the Bridge Notes, the Company recognized deferred financing costs of $191,613, prior to accumulated amortization of $41,463, as of June 
30, 2012. The amortization of deferred financing costs of $41,463 is included in interest expense in the accompanying statement of operations for the year 
ended June 30, 2012. Upon the reverse merger in July of 2012 the deferred financing costs were fully amortized. 
  

  

  ● May 16, 2012 - $1,440,000, due by November 15, 2012 
  ● May 17, 2012 - $60,025, due by November 16, 2012 
  ● June 1, 2012 - $425,005 due by November 30, 2012 

  ● On the dates mentioned above, or 
  ● Closing of additional financing by the Company of an amount equal to or greater than the amount borrowed, or 
  ● The date of closing of the merger between BLB and the Company 
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NOTE 5.                 DECEMBER, MARCH AND APRIL CONVERTIBLE DEBT OFFERING 
 

Convertible Note Offering 
 

On December 21, 2012 the Company issued senior secured convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”).  The term of the Convertible Notes include an eight 
month maturity period and an annual interest rate of 12% which is accrued until payment or until the Convertible Notes are converted into equity. The 
Convertible Notes were issued at a price of $200,000 per unit, for total gross proceeds of $2,000,000 with an original issue discount of 0.2%. On March 28, 
2013, the Company issued additional Convertible Notes for total gross proceeds of $1,130,000 with an original issue discount of 0.2%. 

 
On April 8, 2013, the Company issued senior secured convertible notes (the “April Convertible Notes”). The term of the April Convertible Notes include an 
eight month maturity period and an annual interest rate of 12% which is accrued until payment or until the Convertible Notes are converted into equity. The 
Convertible Notes were issued at a price of $200,000 per unit, for total gross proceeds of $250,000. The investor is an affiliate of Mr. Victor Azrak, who was 
appointed as the Company’s director effective as of April 8, 2013. 

 
The Convertible Notes and April Convertible Notes are convertible at a per share conversion price of $0.25, which is subject to a one-time reset right (the 
“Conversion Price Reset”) as well as “weighted average” and other customary anti-dilution protections (the “Debt Conversion Feature”). The Conversion 
Price Reset will be available on the earlier of: (i) the date of maturity of the 12% Notes or (ii) the completion of a subsequent financing by the Company of at 
least $5,000,000, (the “Reset Date”), if the closing price of the Company’s stock is less than $0.30 on the Reset Date. The conversion price after the reset will 
be equal to 70% of the 5-day VWAP immediately preceding the Reset Date. 

 
In connection with the issuance of Convertible Notes, 12,520,000 five-year cashless exercise warrants (“Convertible Note Warrants”) were issued with 
“weighted average” and other customary anti-dilution protections. 6,260,000 Convertible Note Warrants are exercisable at $0.50 and 6,260,000 Convertible 
Note Warrants are exercisable at $0.25 (see Note 7 for further detail). 

 
In connection with the issuance of April Convertible Notes, 1,000,000 five-year cashless exercise warrants (“April Convertible Note Warrants”) were issued 
with “weighted average” and other customary anti-dilution protections. 500,000 Convertible Note Warrants are exercisable at $0.50 and 500,000 Convertible 
Note Warrants are exercisable at $0.25 (see Note 7 for further detail). 

 
As of June 20, 2013, the Convertible Notes, the April Convertible Notes, the Convertible Note Warrants and the April Convertible Note Warrants were 
converted into equity. The Convertible Notes and April Convertible Notes were converted at a per share price of $0.07, as the Company’s stock price was 
less than $0.30 on the Reset Date, for 50,575,333 shares. The Convertible Note Warrants and April Convertible Note Warrants were converted into 11,830,000 
shares of the Company’s common stock. 
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Debt Discounts 

 
Convertible Note Warrants and Debt Conversion Feature 
  
The fair value of the Convertible Note Warrants and the Debt Conversion Feature, issued as of December 21, 2012, totaling $1,353,720 was recorded as a debt 
discount in the accompanying balance sheet and was amortized as interest expense in the accompanying statement of operations over the term of the 
Convertible Note using the effective interest method (see Note 7 for further detail). As of June 30, 2013, the full value of this debt discount had been 
amortized as a result of the conversion of the Convertible Notes and Convertible Note Warrants into equity. 
 
The fair value of the Convertible Note Warrants and the Debt Conversion Feature, issued on March 28, 2013, totaling $274,957 was recorded as a debt 
discounts in the accompanying balance sheet and was amortized as interest expense in the accompanying statement of operations over the term of the 
Convertible Note using the effective interest method (see Note 7 for further detail). As of June 30, 2013, the full value of this debt discount had been 
amortized as a result of the conversion of the Convertible Notes and Convertible Note Warrants into equity. 
 
The fair value of the April Convertible Note Warrants and the Debt Conversion Feature, issued on April 8, 2013, totaling $39,851 was recorded as a debt 
discounts in the accompanying balance sheet and was amortized as interest expense in the accompanying statement of operations over the term of the April 
Convertible Note using the effective interest method (see Note 7 for further detail). As of June 30, 2013, the full value of this debt discount had been 
amortized as a result of the conversion of the April Convertible Notes and April Convertible Note Warrants into equity. 
  
Original Issue Discount 
  
For certain convertible debt issued, the Company may provide the debt holder with an original issue discount. The Convertible Notes issued on December 
21, 2012 and March 28, 2013 were issued with an original issue discount of 0.2%. The original issue discount is recorded to debt discount, reducing the face 
amount of the note and is amortized to interest expense over the term of the Convertible Note. 

 

  

  

  

Convertible Note Face Value   $ 3,380,000 
Debt Discount       
Convertible Note Warrant Derivative     908,649  
Conversion Feature Derivative     713,768 
Original Issue Discount     6,260  
Total Debt Discount   $ 1,628,677 
Amortization of Debt Discount, as of June 30, 2013     (1,628,677 )
Debt Discount, Net   $ 0  
        
Convertible Note Carrying Value at June 30, 2013, gross   $ 3,380,000  
Conversion of Convertible Note into Equity   $ 3,380,000  
Convertible Note Carrying Value at June 30, 2013   $ 0  

April Convertible Note Face Value   $ 250,000  
Debt Discount       
Convertible Note Warrant Derivative     35,434  
Conversion Feature Derivative     4,417  
Total Debt Discount   $ 39,851  
Amortization of Debt Discount, as of June 30, 2013     (39,851 )
Debt Discount, Net   $ 0  
        
Convertible Note Carrying Value at June 30, 2013, gross   $ 250,000  
Conversion of Convertible Note into Equity   $ 250,000  
Convertible Note Carrying Value at June 30, 2013   $ 0  
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Deferred Financing Costs 

 
Transaction Fees 
The Company paid Aegis Capital Corp. (“Aegis”) who acted as the sole placement agent for the closings of the Convertible Notes Offering a commission of 
10% of the funds raised in the Convertible Notes offering and a 3% non-accountable reimbursement of its expenses, for a total payment of $406,900, which is 
recorded as a deferred financing cost in the accompanying balance sheet. 

 
The Company incurred additional fees of $96,556 for legal and escrow agent fees in connection with the Convertible Notes Offering, which are recorded as a 
deferred financing cost in the accompanying balance sheet. 

 
The Company paid Gottbetter Capital Markets (“GCM”) who acted as the sole placement agent for the April Convertible Notes a commission of 10% of the 
funds raised in the April Convertible Notes offering and a 1.5% non-accountable reimbursement of expenses, for a total payment of $28,750. 

 
Convertible Note Broker Warrants 
In addition, Aegis received five-year warrants (the “Convertible Note Broker Warrants”) to purchase 2,504,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. The 
Convertible Note Broker Warrants were issued with “weighted average” and other customary anti-dilution protections. The Convertible Note Broker 
Warrants are identical to the Convertible Note Warrants in all material respects, except that they are exercisable at $0.25. As of June 20, 2013, the Convertible 
Note Broker Warrants were considered converted into 2,253,600 shares of common stock based on the same conversion terms as the Convertible Note 
Warrants. The Convertible Note Broker Warrants were valued at approximately $194,000 based on a Black-Scholes model (see Note 7 for further detail). 

 
April Convertible Note Broker Warrants 
In addition, GCM received five-year warrants (the “April Convertible Note Broker Warrants”) to purchase 200,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. 
The April Convertible Note Broker Warrants were issued with “weighted average” and other customary anti-dilution protections. The April Convertible Note 
Broker Warrants are identical to the April Convertible Note Warrants in all material respects, except that they are exercisable at $0.25. As of June 20, 2013, the 
Convertible Note Broker Warrants were converted into 180,000 shares of common stock based on the same conversion terms as the Convertible Note 
Warrants. The April Convertible Note Broker Warrants were valued at approximately $57,000 based on a Black-Scholes model (see Note 7 for further detail). 

 
Third Party Share Sale 
The Convertible Note holders were sold 6,260,000 free trading shares by non-affiliated, third party shareholders of the Company at par value. Although the 
Company was not a party to the sale of these shares by third party shareholders, per FASB ASC Topic 718, the fair value of this non-affiliated third party 
transaction is recognized by the Company as a deferred financing cost of the Convertible Note transaction. Additionally, the Company will provide no 
reimbursement or compensation to the selling shareholders of the 6,260,000 free trading shares. As such, the Company does not anticipate recognizing any 
further expenses in relation to this third-party transaction. The fair value of this third party transaction of $1,537,940 is recorded under deferred financing 
costs in the accompanying balance sheet. 
  
The unamortized deferred financing costs were expensed under Loss from Debt Extinguishment in the accompany statement of operations due to the June 
20, 2013 conversion (see Note 8 for further detail). 
  

  

  

       
Placement agent and other fees associated with Convertible Note offering   $ 503,457  
Convertible Note Broker Warrants     194,381  
Third Party Share Grant     1,537,940  
Total Deferred Financing Costs   $ 2,235,777  
Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs, as of June 30, 2013     (2,235,777 )
Deferred Financing Costs, Net, as of June 30, 2013   $ 0  
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NOTE 6.                 JUNE CONVERTIBLE DEBT OFFERING 
 

June Convertible Note Offering 
 

On June 20, 2013 the Company issued $1,500,000 senior secured convertible notes (the “June Convertible Notes”) with an original issue discount of 12%, 
and a conversion price of $0.068 per share (the “June Conversion Price”), for face value of $1,680,000.  The term of the June Convertible Notes includes an 
eighteen-month maturity period, with partial redemptions beginning on June 1, 2014. The June Convertible Notes bear an annual interest rate of 8%, which is 
paid quarterly in the form of cash or equity beginning November 2013. Interest is payable in cash or at the Company’s option in shares of common stock, 
provided certain conditions are met, based on a share value equal to the lesser of (a) 90% of the average of the volume weighted average price (the 
“VWAP”) for the 20 consecutive trading days prior to the applicable interest payment date and (b) 100% of the average of the VWAP for the 20 consecutive 
trading days prior to the applicable interest payment date less $0.01.  Upon any Event of Default (as defined in the June Convertible Note), the outstanding 
principal amount of the June Convertible Note, plus liquidated damages, interest, a premium of 30% and other amounts owing in respect thereof through the 
date of acceleration, shall become, at the June Convertible Note holders’ election, immediately due and payable in cash.  Commencing five days after the 
occurrence of any Event of Default, the interest rate on the June Convertible Note shall accrue at an interest rate equal to the lesser of 18% per annum or the 
maximum rate permitted under applicable law.  The June Conversion Price is subject to  “full ratchet” and other customary anti-dilution protections. As of 
October 15, 2013, with the timely filing of our Form 10-K, the Company will remain in compliance with the covenants of the Debentures. The June Convertible 
Notes limit the Company from incurring additional indebtedness, pay dividends or make distributions to shareholders, incur liens that would rank senior in 
priority or pari passu to the June Convertible Notes, sell or otherwise dispose of any assets or rights of the Company or its subsidiaries. 

 
In connection with the issuance of the June Convertible Notes, 24,705,882 five-year cashless exercise warrants (“June Convertible Note Warrants”) were 
issued with “weighted average” and other customary anti-dilution protections. The June Convertible Note Warrants are exercisable at $0.082 per share and 
are subject to “weighted average” and other customary anti-dilution protections (see Note 7 for further detail). 

 
June Convertible Note Redemption 
On each of June 1, 2014, July 1, 2014, August 1, 2014, September 1, 2014, October 1, 2014 and November 1, 2014, the Company is obligated to redeem an 
amount equal to $140,000 and on December 1, 2014, the Company is obligated to redeem an amount equal to $840,000, (plus accrued but unpaid interest, 
liquidated damages and any other amounts then owing in respect of the June Convertible Note) (collectively, the “Periodic Redemption Amount”).  In lieu of 
a cash redemption and subject to the Company meeting certain equity conditions described in the June Convertible Note, the Company may elect to pay the 
Periodic Redemption Amount in shares based on a conversion price equal to the lesser of (a) $0.068 per share, subject to adjustments upon certain events, 
and (b) 90% of the average of the VWAP for the 20 consecutive trading days prior to the applicable redemption date. 

  

  

Placement agent and other fees associated with April Convertible Note offering   $ 28,855  
April Convertible Note Broker Warrants     9,253  
Total Deferred Financing Costs   $ 38,108  
Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs, as of June 30, 2013     38,108  
Deferred Financing Costs, Net, as of June 30, 2013   $ 0  
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Debt Discounts 

 
The fair value of the June Convertible Note Warrants and the corresponding Debt Conversion Feature, issued on June 20, 2013, totaling $1,243,177 is 
recorded as a debt discounts in the accompanying balance sheet and is amortized as interest expense in the accompanying statement of operations over the 
term of the June Convertible Note using the effective interest method (see Note 7 for further detail). 
 
Original Issue Discount 
For certain convertible debt issued, the Company may provide the debt holder with an original issue discount. The June Convertible Notes were issued with 
an original issue discount of 12%. The original issue discount is recorded to debt discount, reducing the face amount of the note and is amortized to interest 
expense over the term of the June Convertible Note. 

 

 
Deferred Financing Costs 

 
Transaction Fees 

 
The Company paid Gottbetter Capital Markets (“GCM”) who acted as the sole placement agent for the June Convertible Notes a commission of 7.2% of the 
first $1,400,000 funds raised in the June Convertible Notes offering for a total payment of $100,000. In addition, the placement agent received five-year broker 
warrants to purchase approximately 2.0 million shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.082 per share.  The broker warrants are identical to the 
warrants in all material respects.  We also paid $117,446 in legal fees to Gottbetter & Partners and $85,207 in professional fees to the lead investor in the 
Debenture. 

 
June Convertible Note Broker Warrants 
In addition, GCM received five-year warrants (the “June Convertible Note Broker Warrants”) to purchase 2,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. 
The June Convertible Note Broker Warrants were issued with “weighted average” and other customary anti-dilution protections. The June Convertible Note 
Broker Warrants are identical to the June Convertible Note Warrants in all material respects. 
  

  

  

June Convertible Note Face Value   $ 1,680,000  
Debt Discount       

June Convertible Note Warrant Derivative     752,126  
Conversion Feature Derivative     491,051  
Original Issue Discount     180,000  

Total Debt Discount   $ 1,423,177  
Amortization of Debt Discount, as of June 30, 2013     (24,893 )
Debt Discount, Net   $ 1,398,284  
June Convertible Note Carrying Value at June 30, 2013   $ 281,716  

Placement agent and other fees associated with June Convertible Note offering   $ 304,293  
June Convertible Note Broker Warrants     60,886  
Total Deferred Financing Costs   $ 365,179  
Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs, as of June 30, 2013     6,387 
Deferred Financing Costs, Net, as of June 30, 2013   $ 358,792  
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NOTE 7.                 DERIVATIVE LIABILITY 
 

As of June 30, 2013, the Company had reserved 60,751,751 shares of common stock for issuance upon exercise of the Company’s outstanding warrants. The 
Company had reserved 24,705,882 shares of common stock for issuance upon exercise of the Company’s outstanding convertible debt as of June 30, 2013. 

 
On March 28, 2013, the Company repurchased 499,840 shares of common stock and cancelled 499,840 warrants for $125,000. The repurchased shares are 
reflected under treasury stock in the accompanying balance sheet. On June 30, 2013, the Company had agreed to repurchase an additional 499,840 shares of 
common stock for $125,000. The commitment to repurchase these shares are represented under treasury stock and accrued expenses in the accompanying 
balance sheet. 

 
July 2012 Merger 

 
Upon the completion of the July 12, 2012 Merger, $1,925,030 of the Bridge Notes converted into PPO Units. The holders of the Bridge Notes received 
7,700,120 five-year bridge warrants (the “Bridge Warrants”), each exercisable to purchase one share of the Company’s Common Stock. 3,850,060 of the 
Bridge Warrants are exercisable at $0.25 per share (the “Series A Warrants”) and 3,850,060 of the Bridge Warrants (the “Series B Warrants”) are exercisable 
at $0.50 per share. As of August 29, 2013, the Series A Warrants are exercisable at $0.01 per share and the Series B Warrants are exercisable at $0.015 per 
share, (See Note 14 for further detail). Except as to exercise price, the Bridge Warrants are identical, in all material respects to the Investor Warrants (as 
defined below). 

 
Licensor Warrants 

 
The Company also issued to the Licensors warrants exercisable for the purchase of an aggregate of 10,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for a 
term of ten years at an exercise price of $0.24 per share (the “Licensor Warrants”). The exercise price and number of shares of common stock issuable upon 
exercise of the Licensor Warrants may be adjusted in certain circumstances including stock splits and stock dividends (but excluding future issuances of our 
equity securities, regardless if for no consideration or for consideration per share less than $0.24). They are exercisable on a cashless basis at any time prior 
to their expiration. Except as otherwise described herein, the Licensor Warrants are identical in all material respects to the Investor Warrants. On May 8, 2013, 
the Company reduced the Licensor Warrant exercise price to $0.12 in consideration of value received. 

 
Private Placement Offering 

 
Concurrently with the closing of the Merger, the Company completed an initial closing of a private offering (the “Offering”) wherein 500,000 units (the “PPO 
Units”) were sold, at a price of $0.25 per PPO Unit, for a total cash consideration of $125,000. Each PPO Unit consists of one share of the Company’s common 
stock and a redeemable Investor Warrant to purchase one share of the Company’s common stock. The Investor Warrants are exercisable for a period of five 
years at a purchase price of $1.00 per share of the Company’s common stock. If at any time during the two year period following the closing date the 
Company issues additional shares of Common Stock for a consideration per share less than $0.25 (the “Reduced Price”), then the Company will issue to the 
purchasers in the Offering, concurrently with such issue and without any additional consideration from the purchasers, the number of additional shares of 
the Company’s common stock and Investor Warrants equal to the difference between (A) the purchase price of the PPO Units being subscribed for divided 
by the Reduced Price and (B) the number of shares of the Company’s common stock included in the units being subscribed for in the Offering. In addition, 
we effected the conversion of the $1,925,030 in Bridge Notes. The Bridge Notes were converted into 7,700,120 PPO Units and 7,700,120 five-year Investor 
Warrants each exercisable to purchase one share of the Company’s Common Stock. As of August 29, 2013, the Investor Warrants are exercisable at $0.03 per 
share (See Note 14 for further detail). 
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On July 20, 2012, the Company completed the second closing under the Offering through the sale of 124,000 PPO Units (for aggregate gross proceeds of 
$31,000) consisting of 124,000 shares of common stock and 124,000 five-year Investor Warrants with an exercise price of $1.00. 

 
On July 31, 2012, the Company completed the third closing under the Offering through the sale of 1,639,920 PPO Units (for aggregate gross proceeds of 
$409,980) consisting of 1,639,920 shares of common stock and 1,639,920 five-year Investor Warrants with an exercise price of $1.00. 

 
On August 24, 2012, the Company completed the fourth closing under the Offering through the sale of 500,000 PPO Units (for aggregate gross proceeds of 
$125,000) consisting of 500,000 shares of common stock and 500,000 five-year Investor Warrants with an exercise price of $1.00. 

  
On September 10, 2012, the Company completed the fifth closing under the Offering through the sale of 80,000 PPO Units (for aggregate gross proceeds of 
$20,000) consisting of 80,000 shares of common stock and 80,000 five-year Investor Warrants with an exercise price of $1.00. 

 
On December 6, 2012, the Company completed the sixth closing under the Offering through the sale of 600,000 PPO Units (for aggregate gross proceeds of 
$150,000) consisting of 600,000 shares of common stock and 600,000 five-year Investor Warrants with an exercise price of $1.00. 

 
On December 10, 2012, the Company completed the seventh closing under the Offering through the sale of 200,000 PPO Units (for aggregate gross proceeds 
of $50,000) consisting of 200,000 shares of common stock and 200,000 five-year Investor Warrants with an exercise price of $1.00. 

 
On December 12, 2012, the Company completed the eighth closing under the Offering through the sale of 100,000 PPO Units (for aggregate gross proceeds of 
$25,000) consisting of 100,000 shares of common stock and 100,000 five-year Investor Warrants with an exercise price of $1.00. 

 
On February 8, 2013, the Company completed the ninth closing under the Offering through the sale of 200,000 PPO Units (for aggregate gross proceeds of 
$50,000) consisting of 200,000 shares of common stock and 200,000 five-year Investor Warrants with an exercise price of $1.00. 

 
As of August 29, 2013, the Investor Warrants are exercisable at $0.03 per share (See Note 14 for further detail). 

 
In connection with the July 12, 2012 PPO closing, the Company issued an aggregate of 656,010 five year broker warrants with an exercise price of $0.25 per 
share. Effective as of June 30, 2013, 79,975 broker warrants have been cancelled with the repurchase of 999,680 shares. In connection with the July 20, 2012, 
July 31, 2012, August 24, 2012, and September 10, 2012 closings, the Company issued an aggregate of 187,514 five-year broker warrants with an exercise price 
of $0.25 per share. In connection with the December 6, 2012, December 10, 2012, and December 12, 2012 closings, the Company issued an aggregate of 72,000 
five-year broker warrants with an exercise price of $0.25 per share. In connection with the February 8, 2013 closing, the Company issued 16,000 five-year 
broker warrants with an exercise price of $0.25 per share. As of August 29, 2013, the broker warrants are exercisable at $0.01 per share (See Note 14 for further 
detail). 
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Short Term Loan 

 
In connection with two short-term notes that were issued on September 7, 2012 and an additional short-term note that the Company issued on September 24, 
2012, for an aggregate principal amount of $300,000, the Company issued 1,200,000 warrants to holders of these notes (the “Series D Warrants”). These 
warrants are exercisable for a period of five years at a purchase price of $0.25 per share of the Company’s common stock. These warrants contain certain anti-
dilution and other customary terms. 

  
On March 28, 2013, in connection with a repayment of a short-term shareholder note, the Company issued an additional 150,000 five-year warrants to the 
holder to compensate the holder as the shareholder note was past due. The fair value of the warrants was $9,482. These warrants are exercisable for a period 
of five years at a purchase price of $0.25 per share of the Company’s common stock. These warrants contain certain anti-dilution and other customary terms. 

 
As of August 29, 2013, the Series D warrants are exercisable at $0.01 per share (See Note 14 for further detail). 

  
Convertible Note Warrants, April Convertible Note Warrants, June Convertible Note Warrants 

 
In connection with the Convertible Note offering on December 21, 2012, the Company issued 8,000,000 Convertible Note Warrants. 4,000,000 Convertible 
Note Warrants are exercisable at $0.50 and 4,000,000 Convertible Note Warrants are exercisable at $1.00. In connection with the second closing of the 
offering which occurred on March 28, 2013, the Company and Aegis agreed to modify the exercise price of these Convertible Note Warrants and the 
placement agent warrants issued by the Company as part of the first closing. As a result of such modification, 4,000,000 of such Convertible Note Warrants 
are exercisable at $0.25 per share and 4,000,000 of such Convertible Note Warrants are exercisable at $0.50 per share, and all of the placement agent warrants 
are exercisable at $0.25 per share. 

 
The relative fair value of the warrants at issuance was estimated at $686,192 using a Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions: expected volatility 
of 60%, risk free interest rate of 0.95%, expected life of five years and no dividends. Expected volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities in 
the beauty and personal care industry. The relative fair value of the warrants was recorded in the long-term liability and debt discount on the balance sheet. 

 
In connection with the Convertible Note offering on March 28, 2013, the Company issued 4,520,000 Convertible Note Warrants. 2,260,000 Convertible Note 
Warrants are exercisable at $0.50 and 2,260,000 Convertible Note Warrants are exercisable at $0.25. 

 
The relative fair value of the warrants at issuance was estimated at $222,457 using a Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions: expected volatility 
of 55%, risk free interest rate of 1.005%, expected life of five years and no dividends. Expected volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities 
in the beauty and personal care industry. The relative fair value of the warrants was recorded in the long-term liability and debt discount on the balance 
sheet. 
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In connection with the April Convertible Note offering on April 8, 2013, the Company issued 1,000,000 April Convertible Note Warrants. 500,000 April 
Convertible Note Warrants are exercisable at $0.25 and 500,000 April Convertible Note Warrants are exercisable at $0.50. 

  
The relative fair value of the warrants at issuance was estimated at $35,434 using a Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions: expected volatility 
of 55%, risk free interest rate of 1.685%, expected life of five years and no dividends. Expected volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities 
in the beauty and personal care industry. The relative fair value of the warrants was recorded in the long-term liability and debt discount on the balance 
sheet. 

 
In connection with the June Convertible Note offering on June 20, 2013, the Company issued 24,705,882 June Convertible Note Warrants, which are 
exercisable at $0.082 and contain weighted average anti-dilution protections. 

 
The relative fair value of the warrants at issuance was estimated at $752,126 using a Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions: expected volatility 
of 55%, risk free interest rate of 1.685%, expected life of five years and no dividends. Expected volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities 
in the beauty and personal care industry. The relative fair value of the warrants was recorded in the long-term liability and debt discount on the balance 
sheet. 

 
Convertible Note Broker Warrants, April Convertible Note Broker Warrants, June Convertible Note Broker Warrants 

 
In connection with the Convertible Note offering on December 21, 2012, the Company issued 1,600,000 Convertible Note Broker Warrants. The Convertible 
Note Broker Warrants are exercisable at $0.25. 

 
The relative fair value of the warrants at issuance was estimated at $137,238 using a Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions: expected volatility 
of 60%, risk free interest rate of 0.95%, expected life of five years and no dividends. Expected volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities in 
the beauty and personal care industry. The relative fair value of the warrants was recorded in the long-term liability and deferred financing cost on the 
balance sheet. 

 
In connection with the Convertible Note offering on March 28, 2013, the Company issued 904,000 Convertible Note Broker Warrants. The Convertible Note 
Broker Warrants are exercisable at $0.25. 

 
The relative fair value of the warrants at issuance was estimated at $57,143 using a Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions: expected volatility 
of 55%, risk free interest rate of 1.005%, expected life of five years and no dividends. Expected volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities 
in the beauty and personal care industry. The relative fair value of the warrants was recorded in the long-term liability and debt discount on the balance 
sheet. 
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In connection with the April Convertible Note offering on April 8, 2013, the Company issued 200,000 April Convertible Note Broker Warrants. The April 
Convertible Note Broker Warrants are exercisable at $0.25. 

 
The relative fair value of the warrants at issuance was estimated at $9,253 using a Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions: expected volatility of 
55%, risk free interest rate of 1.685%, expected life of five years and no dividends. Expected volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities in 
the beauty and personal care industry. The relative fair value of the warrants was recorded in the long-term liability and debt discount on the balance sheet. 
  
In connection with the June Convertible Note offering on June 20, 2013, the Company issued 2,000,000 Convertible Note Broker Warrants. The Convertible 
Note Broker Warrants are exercisable at $0.082. 

 
The relative fair value of the warrants at issuance was estimated at $60,886 using a Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions: expected volatility 
of 55%, risk free interest rate of 1.685%, expected life of five years and no dividends. Expected volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities 
in the beauty and personal care industry. The relative fair value of the warrants was recorded in the long-term liability and deferred financing cost on the 
balance sheet. 

 
Founder Warrants 
  
In connection with the acquisition of the Third License on April 17, 2013, the Company issued 2,500,000 warrants. The warrants are exercisable at $0.13. 

 
The relative fair value of the warrants at issuance was estimated at $210,349 using a Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions: expected volatility 
of 55%, risk free interest rate of 1.685%, expected life of five years and no dividends. Expected volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities 
in the beauty and personal care industry. The relative fair value of the warrants was recorded in the long-term liability and deferred financing cost on the 
balance sheet. 

 
Debt Conversion Feature 

 
The Convertible Note, April Convertible Note, and June Convertible Note offerings included a Debt Conversion Feature (see Note 5 and 6). 

 
The relative fair value of the Debt Conversion Feature of the December 21, 2012 closing was estimated, using Level 2 inputs, at $663,528 using a Black-
Scholes model with the following assumptions: expected volatility of 60%, risk free interest rate of 0.95%, expected life of right months and no dividends. 
Expected volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities in the beauty and personal care industry. 

 
The relative fair value of the Debt Conversion Feature of the March 28, 2013 closing was estimated, using Level 2 inputs, at $50,240 using a Black-Scholes 
model with the following assumptions: expected volatility of 55%, risk free interest rate of 1.005%, expected life of eight months and no dividends. Expected 
volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities in the beauty and personal care industry. 

 
The relative fair value of the Debt Conversion Feature of the April 8, 2013 closing was estimated, using Level 2 inputs, at $4,361 using a Black-Scholes model 
with the following assumptions: expected volatility of 55%, risk free interest rate of 1.685%, expected life of eight months and no dividends. Expected 
volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities in the beauty and personal care industry. 
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The relative fair value of the Debt Conversion Feature of the June 20, 2013 closing was estimated, using Level 2 inputs, at $491,051 using a Black-Scholes 
model with the following assumptions: expected volatility of 55%, risk free interest rate of 1.685%, expected life of eighteen months and no dividends. 
Expected volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities in the beauty and personal care industry. 

  
Fair Value Measurement of Warrants 

 
The relative fair value at issuance of those warrants granted during the quarter ended September 30, 2012 was estimated at $3,788,687 using a Black-Scholes 
model with the following assumptions: expected volatility of 70%, risk free interest rate of 0.83%, expected life of 5.0 – 10.0 years, based upon the term of the 
warrant, and no dividends. Expected volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities in the beauty and personal care industry. The relative fair 
value of the warrants was recorded in the long-term liability and equity sections of the balance sheet. 

 
The relative fair value at issuance of those warrants granted during the quarter ended December 31, 2012 was $888,596 using a Black-Scholes model with the 
following assumptions: expected volatility of 60%, risk free interest rate of 0.95%, expected life of 0.8 - 5.0 years, based upon the term of the warrant, and no 
dividends. Expected volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities in the beauty and personal care industry. The relative fair value of the 
warrants was recorded in the long-term liability and equity sections of the balance sheet. 

 
The relative fair value at issuance of those warrants granted during the quarter ended March 31, 2013 was estimated at $297,716 using a Black-Scholes model 
with the following assumptions: expected volatility of 55%, risk free interest rate of 1.005%, expected life of 5.0 years, based upon the term of the warrant, and 
no dividends. Expected volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities in the beauty and personal care industry. The relative fair value of the 
warrants was recorded in the long-term liability and equity sections of the balance sheet. 

 
The relative fair value at issuance of those warrants granted during the quarter ended June 30, 2013 was estimated at $1,067,196 using a Black-Scholes model 
with the following assumptions: expected volatility of 55%, risk free interest rate of 1.685%, expected life of eighteen months to 10 years, based upon the term 
of the warrant, and no dividends. Expected volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities in the beauty and personal care industry. The 
relative fair value of the warrants was recorded in the long-term liability and equity sections of the balance sheet. 

 
The Company’s warrant liability was valued at June 30, 2013 using a Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions: expected volatility of 55%, risk 
free interest rate of 1.005%, expected life of eighteen months – 10 years, based upon the term of the warrant or convertible note, and no dividends. Expected 
volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities in the beauty industry. The following table is a rollforward of the fair value of the warrant 
liability: 

 

  

  

    June 30, 2013     June 30, 2012  
Beginning Balance   $ 0    $ 0  
Issuance of Warrants and Conversion Feature     7,252,283      0  
Repurchase / Exercise / Cancellation of Warrants and Conversion Feature     (179,884)     0  
Change in fair value     (5,411,959)     0  
Ending Balance   $ 1,660,440    $ 0  
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During the quarter ended June 30, 2013, the Company changed the exercise price of the 13,520,000 Convertible Note Warrants and April Convertible Note 
Warrants issued as of December 21, 2012, March 28, 2013 and April 8, 2013 from $0.50 to $0.015 and from $0.25 to $0.01 and changed the exercise price of 
2,704,000 Convertible Note Broker Warrants and April Convertible Note Broker Warrants from $0.25 to $0.01. At the same time, the 13,520,000 Convertible 
Note Warrants and April Convertible Note Warrants and 2,704,000 Convertible Note Broker Warrants and April Convertible Note Broker Warrants were 
exercised into 11,830,000 and 2,433,600 shares, respectively, (see Note 8). 

  
The relative fair value of the Company’s outstanding warrants and derivative instruments was estimated at $0 and $1,660,440 as of June 30, 2012 and June 30, 
2013. The gain / (loss) in the fair value of the warrants of $0 and $5,411,959 for the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013, respectively, 
was recognized as a gain in the derivative liability section on the accompanying statement of operations. 
  
A summary of the Company’s warrant activity is as follows: 
  

  
NOTE 8.                LOSS FROM EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT 
 

On June 20, 2013, the Company effected the conversion of the principal and accrued interest of the Convertible Notes and April Convertible Notes of 
$3,540,273 in accordance with the provisions of the respective notes. As a result of such conversion, the Company issued 50,575,333 shares. At the same 
time, the Company effected the conversion of the underlying warrants and broker warrants related to the notes for exercise prices of $0.01 (for such warrants 
with an exercise price of $0.25) and $0.015 (for such warrants with an exercise price of $0.50). In accordance with FASB 470.20.40.20, the Company has 
recognized a loss equal to the fair value of all securities and other consideration transferred in the transaction in excess of the fair value of consideration 
issuable in accordance with the original conversion terms. The Company has recognized a non-cash expense of $2,098,819, which is recorded under Loss 
from Extinguishment of Debt in the accompanying statement of operations for the year ended June 30, 2013. The Company did not have any expenses related 
to the Loss from Conversion of Debt for the period ended June 30, 2012. 

 
NOTE 9.                COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 

License agreements 
 

In May 2012, the Company entered into a licensing agreement with the Licensors (see Note 3 for further detail). 
 

During the term of the licensing agreement the Company has agreed to pay a guaranteed minimum royalty payment of $4,686,125 or $5,206,900 depending on 
launch date of various products in accordance with the following schedule, but subject to adjustments: 

 
●           Contract period one: $1,000,000 
●           Contract period two: $925,000 or $1,000,000 
●           Contract period three: $1,188,625 or $1,285,000 
●           Contract period four: $1,572,500 or $1,700,000 

 
In July 2012, the Company entered into the Second License (see Note 3). The Company agreed to pay a guaranteed minimum royalty payment of $600,000 
depending on launch date of various products in accordance with the following schedule, but subject to adjustments: 

  
● Contract period one: $100,000 
● Contract period two: $225,000 
● Contract period three: $275,000 

  

  

    

Number of 
shares 

underlying 
warrants     

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price   
Weighted Average 
Contractual Term 

Outstanding June 30, 2012                     
Granted     77,555,566     $ 0.33      5.8 years 
Exercised     (16,224,000)     $ 0.01      5.0 years 
Forfeited / Repurchased     (579,815)     $ 0.37      5.0 years 
Outstanding June 30, 2013     60,751,751     $ 0.06      6.9 years 

  
F-25



  
BOLDFACE GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

  
In May 2013, the Company entered into a licensing agreement with the Third Licensor (see Note 3). The Company agreed to pay a guaranteed minimum 
royalty payment of $100,000 depending on launch date of various products in accordance with the following schedule, but subject to adjustments: 

  
● Contract period one: $33,333 
● Contract period two: $33,333 
● Contract period three: $33,334 

  
Operating Lease 

 
On May 8, 2012, the Company executed a one-year operating lease for its corporate office commencing on May 15, 2012 at a monthly rent payment of $1,785 
per month. Total rent expense related to this operating lease was $0 and $21,420 for the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013, 
respectively, and is included in general and administrative expenses in accompanying statement of operations. As of June 30, 2013, the lease has expired and 
the Company is renting the office space on a month-to-month basis. 
 
On January 7, 2013, the Company executed a five-month operating lease for storage commencing on January 1, 2013 at a monthly rent payment of $1,500 per 
month. Total rent expense related to this operating lease was $0 and $9,000 for the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013, respectively, 
and is included in general and administrative expenses in accompanying statement of operations. As of June 30, 2013, the storage space lease has expired 
and the Company is renting the space on a month-to-month basis. 
 
Contractual Obligations and Commitments: 
 
The table below provides information concerning obligations of our contractual commitment as of June 30, 2013: 

 

 
Litigation 

 
In the normal course of business, the Company may become involved in various legal proceedings. Except as described below, management knows of no 
pending or threatened legal proceeding to which they are or will be a party and which, if successful, might result in a material adverse change in our 
business, properties or financial condition. 

  
On November 19, 2012, an action entitled Chroma Makeup Studio, LLC. v. BOLDFACE Group, Inc. and BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding was filed in the 
United States District Court for the Central District of California, Western Division (the “Court”). Chroma Makeup Studio, LLC (“Chroma”) alleged that the 
Company’s use of the term Khroma, including the marks Khroma Beauty and Khroma Beauty By Kourtney, Kim and Khloe (the "Khroma Beauty Marks"), for 
cosmetics is infringing upon Chroma's rights in its Chroma mark. The Complaint included claims for trademark infringement under the Lanham Act and unfair 
competition under applicable California law. The Court set a tentative trial date of April 22, 2014. The parties also agreed to pursue private mediation in an 
attempt to resolve the disputed issues in this case. On August 2, 2013, the parties participated in mediation in an attempt to settle the case but were unable to 
do so. 

  

  

    Total     Less than 1 year     1 – 3 years     3 - 5 years    
More than 5 

years  
License agreement obligations  $ 7,427,125   $ 33,333   $ 2,851,667   $ 4,542,125   $ 0  
Operating lease obligation  $ 0   $ 0   $ 0   $ 0   $ 0  
Total  $ 7,427,125   $ 33,333   $ 2,851,667   $ 4,542,125   $ 0  
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On November 30, 2012, BLB filed a complaint for a declaratory judgment in the United States District Court for the Central District of California, Western 
Division entitled BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding v. By Lee Tillett, Inc. (“Tillett”). BLB’s complaint requests a declaration from the Court that (1) BLB’s use 
of the Khroma term, including the Khroma Beauty marks does not infringe on Tillett’s rights in its Kroma trademark, and (2) BLB’s two pending trademark 
applications for Khroma Beauty marks should be allowed to register with the USPTO. On January 9, 2013 Tillet filed an answer and counterclaims for (1) 
trademark infringement, (2) false designation of origin, (3) trademark infringement, and (4) unfair competition pursuant. In addition to BLB, Tillett's 
Counterclaims are made against the following additional parties: Kimsaprincess Inc., 2Die4Kourt Inc., Khlomoney Inc., and individuals Kim Kardashian, 
Kourtney Kardashian, and Khloe Kardashian (collectively, the “Kardashian Parties”). In March 2013, Tillet obtained a preliminary injunction enjoining BLB’s 
use of the Khroma Beauty mark. BLB appealed the injunction and moved for a stay in the Ninth Circuit. As a result, the injunction was stayed until May 31, 
2013. By the time the stay expired, BLB had already changed the name of its mark from Khroma Beauty by Kourtney, Kim and Khloe to Kardashian Beauty. 
On August 9, 2013, BLB and the Kardashian Parties filed a joint motion to dismiss the appeal. On August 2, 2013, the parties participated in mediation in an 
attempt to settle the case but were unable to do so. The Court set a tentative trial date of April 22, 2014. 
  
Based on the existing status of the two cases, Management believes it has adequately reserved for these matters such that there would not be a material 
effect on future financial statements. 
  
Registration Agreement 
  
As of June 30, 2013, the Company had 300,000,000 shares of common stock authorized. As of June 30, 2013, the Company had 155,301,468 shares issued and 
154,301,788 shares outstanding. 
  
Each share of common stock entitles the holder to one vote on all matters submitted to a vote of the Company's stockholders. Common stockholders are not 
entitled to receive dividends unless declared by the Company's Board of Directors. 
  
PPO Offering Registration Rights 
In connection with the Merger and Offering (as defined in Notes 1, 4 and 7), the Company entered into a registration rights agreement (the “Registration 
Rights Agreement”) with each of the investors participating in the Offering. Under the Registration Rights Agreement, as amended, the Company committed 
to file a registration statement on Form S-1, or other applicable form (the “Registration Statement”), covering the resale of (i) the Company’s common stock 
underlying the Bridge Warrants (as defined in Note 7), (ii) common stock underlying the PPO Units (as defined in Note 7) sold or to be sold in the Offering, 
and (iii) common stock underlying the Investor Warrants (as defined in Note 7) (including securities issued in the Offering as a result of the conversion of 
the Bridge Notes (as defined in Note 7), but not common stock that is issuable upon exercise of the broker warrants issued to the placement agent for the 
Offering) (collectively, the “Registrable Securities”) no later than October 29, 2012 (the “Filing Date”), and to use commercially reasonable efforts to cause 
the Registration Statement to become effective no later than 150 days after it is filed (the “Effectiveness Date”). As of the date of this Annual Report the 
Company has not filed the Registration Statement with the SEC and anticipates filing the Registration Statement during the quarter ended December 31, 2013. 
The Company agreed to use its commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the effectiveness of the Registration Statement for at least one year from the date 
the Registration Statement is declared effective by the SEC or for such shorter period ending on the earlier to occur of (i) until Rule 144 of the Securities Act 
is available to investors with respect to all of their Registrable Securities or (ii) the date when all of the Registrable Securities registered thereunder shall have 
been sold. 
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The Company will be liable for liquidated damages at the rate of 1% of the purchase price per PPO Unit paid by each investor for the Registrable Securities 
then held by such investor for each full period of 30 days for which the Company fails to file the registration statement by the Filing Date or if the Company 
fails to have the Registration Statement declared effective by the Effectiveness Date (each, a “Registration Event”), until such failure is cured. The payment 
amount shall be prorated for partial 30-day periods. The aggregate penalty accrued with respect to each investor may not exceed 10% of the original 
purchase price paid by such investor. However, if a Registration Event occurs (or is continuing) on a date more than one year after July 12, 2012 or the final 
closing of the Offering, liquidated damages shall be paid only with respect to that portion of the Registrable Securities that cannot then be immediately 
resold in reliance on Rule 144. If the Company fails to pay any partial liquidated damages or refund pursuant in full within seven days after the date payable, 
the Company will pay interest thereon at a rate of 8% per annum (or such lesser maximum amount that is permitted to be paid by applicable law) to the holder 
of the PPO Unit.  
  
In December 2006, the FASB issued guidance on accounting for registration payment arrangements. This guidance specifies that the contingent obligation 
to make future payments or otherwise transfer consideration under a registration payment arrangement, whether issued as a separate agreement or included 
as a provision of a financial instrument or other agreement, should be separately recognized and measured in accordance with FASB guidance on accounting 
for contingencies. This guidance further clarifies that a financial instrument subject to a registration payment arrangement should be accounted for in 
accordance with US GAAP without regard to the contingent obligation to transfer consideration pursuant to the registration payment arrangement. The 
Company applied the recognition and measurement provisions of the FASB guidance to the registration rights associated with the Registration Rights 
Agreement. As of June 30, 2013, the Company has recorded $206,381 in general and administrative expenses on the accompanying statement of operations 
associated with these registration rights. 

 
Convertible Note Offering Registration Rights 
In connection with the Convertible Note offering (as defined in Note 5), the Company also entered into a registration rights agreement with the Investors (the 
“Convertible Note Registration Rights Agreement”). Under the terms of the Convertible Note Registration Rights Agreement, the Company committed to file 
a registration statement on Form S-1, or other applicable form, covering the resale of (i) the Common Stock underlying the Warrants and (ii) the Common 
Stock underlying the Notes (collectively, the “Convertible Note Registrable Securities”) within 45 days from the final closing of the Offering (the “Filing 
Date”), and to use its commercially reasonable efforts to cause the registration statement to become effective no later than 90 days after it is filed (the 
“Effectiveness Date”). As the Company delayed the registration due to the June Convertible Offering, and such delay was communicated to the Convertible 
Note Offering investors, the Company has not recorded any registration right penalties. The Company anticipates filing the registration statement on or prior 
to November 1, 2013. 
 
The Company agreed to use its commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the effectiveness of the registration statement for at least one year from the date 
the registration statement is declared effective by the SEC or for such shorter period ending on the earlier to occur of (i) until Rule 144 of the Securities Act of 
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), is available to Investors with respect to all of their Convertible Note Registrable Securities or (ii) the date when all of 
the Convertible Note Registrable Securities registered thereunder shall have been sold. The Company will be liable for monetary penalties equal to 0.5% of 
the purchase price per Unit paid by such Investor for the Convertible Note Registrable Securities then held by each investor for each full period of period of 
30 days if the Company fails to file the registration statement by the Filing Date or if the Company fails to use its reasonable efforts to have the registration 
statement declared effective by the Effectiveness Date until such failure is cured. The payment amount shall be prorated for partial 30-day periods. The 
maximum aggregate amount of payments to be made by the Company as the result of such failures, whether by reason of a filing deadline failure, 
effectiveness deadline failure or any combination thereof, shall be an amount equal to 6% of the purchase price per Unit paid by such Investor for the 
Convertible Note Registrable Securities held by such Investor at the time of the first occurrence of such failure to file with, or to have the registration 
statement be declared effective by, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). 
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Moreover, no such payments shall be due and payable with respect to any Convertible Note Registrable Securities that the Company is unable to register 
due to limits imposed by the SEC’s interpretation of Rule 415 under the Securities Act. The holders of any Convertible Note Registrable Securities removed 
from the registration statement as the result of a Rule 415 comment or other comment from the SEC shall have “piggyback” registration rights for the shares 
of Common Stock underlying the Convertible Note Registrable Securities, until such shares can be sold without limitation under Rule 144, with respect to any 
registration statement filed by the Company following the effectiveness of the registration statement which would permit the inclusion of these shares. 

 
NOTE 10.              EQUITY TRANSACTIONS 
 

On January 8, 2013, the Company issued 169,355 shares of common stock to a third party for consulting services provided, valued at $52,500. 
 

On February 1, 2013, the Company issued 57,252 shares of common stock to a third party for consulting services provided, valued at $16,030. 
 

On March 1, 2013, the Company issued 76,531 shares of common stock to a third party for consulting services provided, valued at $14,923. 
 

On March 28, 2013, the Company issued 1,000,000 shares of common stock to a third party for a reduction in fees for services provided, valued at $170,000. 
 

On April 8, 2013, the Company issued 500,000 five-year warrants with an exercise price of $0.25 to its new consultant, engaged effective as of the same date 
for consulting services to the Company. The warrants shall vest ratably in arrears over six 30-day periods beginning on April 8, 2013, with one-sixth of the 
warrants vesting on each successive thirtieth day following April 8, 2013, subject to the termination of the consulting agreement prior thereto. 

 
On April 15, 2013, the Company issued 90,361 shares of common stock to a third party for consulting services provided, valued at $15,000. 

 
On June 28, 2013, the Company issued 200,000 shares of common stock to a third party for consulting services provided, valued at $10,000. 

  
On June 28, 2013, the Company issued 100,000 shares of common stock to a third party for consulting services provided, valued at $5,000. 

  
On June 28, 2013, the Company issued 125,000 shares of common stock to a board member per the compensation package of said board member, valued at 
$6,250. 
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NOTE 11.              STOCK COMPENSATION EXPENSE AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 

  
In July 2012, the Company's Board of Directors adopted the 2012 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the "2012 Equity Incentive Plan"). The 2012 Equity 
Incentive Plan provides for the grants of incentive and non-qualified stock options, restricted stock and other equity awards to employees, officers, 
directors, consultants and advisors of the Company. Provisions such as vesting, repurchase and exercise conditions, and limitations are determined by the 
Board of Directors on the grant date. There are 20,000,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock reserved for issuance under its 2012 Equity Incentive 
Plan. 
  
As of June 30, 2013, the Company has reserved 13,450,000 for future issuance upon exercise of outstanding and future grants of common stock options and 
future issuances of restricted stock awards pursuant to the Company's 2012 Equity Incentive Plan. 
  
Effective as of July 12, 2012 the Company issued 4,600,000 stock options under its 2012 Equity Incentive Plan to the Company’s CEO, a consultant and the 
Chairman of the Board of Directors; 3,600,000 of which have a five-year term and 1,000,000 of which have a ten-year term. All of the options are exercisable 
for the purchase of one share of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.24 per share. Such options, which will vest annually at a rate of 33% 
beginning on the first anniversary date of the Merger, in each case, if the grantee remains employed by the Company or any of its subsidiaries on each 
annual vesting date. 

  
Effective as of August 15, 2012 the Company issued 400,000 stock options under its 2012 Equity Incentive Plan to certain of the Company’s employees and 
consultants. All of the options have a ten-year term and are exercisable for the purchase of one share of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of 
$0.24 per share. Vesting on these awards is a three-year period. Such options, which will vest annually at a rate of 33% beginning on the first anniversary 
date of the grant, in each case, if the grantee remains employed by the Company or any of its subsidiaries on each annual vesting date. 

  
Effective as of November 21, 2012 the Company issued 500,000 stock options under its 2012 Equity Incentive Plan to the Company’s newly appointed 
director. All of the options have a ten-year term and are exercisable for the purchase of one share of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of 
$0.24 per share. Vesting on these awards is a three-year period. Such options, which will vest annually at a rate of 33% beginning on the first anniversary 
date of the grant, in each case, if the grantee remains employed by the Company or any of its subsidiaries on each annual vesting date. 

  
Effective as of March 28, 2013 the Company issued 500,000 stock options under its 2012 Equity Incentive Plan to the Company’s newly appointed director. 
All of the options have a ten-year term and are exercisable for the purchase of one share of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.17 per 
share. Vesting on these awards is a three-year period. Such options, which will vest annually at a rate of 33% beginning on the first anniversary date of the 
grant, in each case, if the grantee remains employed by the Company or any of its subsidiaries on each annual vesting date. 

 
Effective as of April 8, 2013 the Company issued 500,000 stock options under its 2012 Equity Incentive Plan to the Company’s newly appointed director. All 
of the options have a ten-year term and are exercisable for the purchase of one share of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.14 per share. 
Vesting on these awards is a three-year period. Such options, which will vest annually at a rate of 33% beginning on the first anniversary date of the grant, in 
each case, if the grantee remains employed by the Company or any of its subsidiaries on each annual vesting date. 
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Effective as of June 28, 2013 the Company issued 50,000 stock options under its 2012 Equity Incentive Plan to two of the Company’s directors pursuant to 
the Company’s board compensation package, effective as of March 15, 2013. All of the options have a ten-year term and are exercisable for the purchase of 
one share of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.05 per share. Vesting on these awards is a three-year period. Such options, which will 
vest annually at a rate of 33% beginning on the first anniversary date of the grant, in each case, if the grantee remains employed by the Company or any of 
its subsidiaries on each annual vesting date. 
  
The fair value of each stock option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The expected life assumption is 
based on the estimated forfeiture rate. Expected volatility is based on a blend of the volatility of the Company and similar public entities in the beauty 
industry. The risk-free interest rate is the yield currently available on U.S. Treasury five-year and seven-year zero-coupon issues approximating the expected 
term used as the input to the Black-Scholes model. FASB accounting guidance requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if 
necessary, in subsequent periods as options vest, if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. During the year ended June 30, 2013, because substantially 
all of the Company's stock option grants vest annually, stock-based employee compensation expense includes the actual impact of forfeitures. No stock 
options are exercisable as of June 30, 2013. The relevant inputs used to determine the value of the stock option grants is as follows: 
 

 
The relative fair value of the Company’s outstanding options issued to non-employees was $659,895 as of June 30, 2013. These options were valued at June 
30, 2013 using a Black-Scholes model with Level 2 inputs. Expected volatility was based on the volatility of similar public entities in the beauty industry. 
 
The total fair value of the stock options was $0 and $1,371,910 as of June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2013, respectively. As a result, share-based compensation 
expense totaled $0 and $407,491 for the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013, respectively, and is recorded in general and 
administrative expenses. The loss in the fair value of the options was recorded under stock compensation expense and is reflected in general and 
administrative expenses in the accompanying statement of operations. 

 
The following table summarizes stock option activity for the Company during the year ended June 30, 2013: 
  

 
As of June 30, 2013, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock options amounted to $908,803, which will be fully amortized by June 
30, 2015. 

  

  

   
July 12,  

2012    
August 15,  

2012    
November 21,  

2012    
March 28,  

2013    
April 8,  

2013    
June 28,  

2013  
Number of options outstanding     3,600,000      1,400,000      500,000      500,000      500,000      50,000 
Weighted average risk-free 
rate     0.83%    0.83%    0.95%    1.005%    1.685%    1.685%
Expected life in years     3.5      6.0      6.0      6.0      6.0      6.0 
Expected volatility     70%    70%    60%    55%    55%    55%
Expected dividends     0%    0%    0%    0%    0%    0%

    Options     

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price     

Weighted 
Average 

Contractual 
Term     

Aggregate 
Intrinsic Value   

Outstanding June 30, 2012     -      -    -    -  
Granted     6,550,000     $ 0.23     7.3     $ 0   
Exercised     -        -      -     -  

Forfeited     -        -      -     -  
Outstanding June 30, 2013     6,550,000     $ 0.23       7.3     $ 1,150,000   

Exercisable at year-end     -     $ 0       0     $ 0   
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NOTE 12.              INCOME TAXES 
 

The Company did not incur any income tax expense for the period ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013. At June 30, 2013, $2,778,488 of 
federal and state net operating losses were available to the Company to offset future taxable income, which will expire in 2033. Given the short history of the 
Company and the uncertainty as to the likelihood of future taxable income, the Company has recorded a 100% valuation reserve against the anticipated 
recovery from the use of the net operating losses created at the inception or generated thereafter. The Company will evaluate the appropriateness of the 
valuation allowance on an annual basis and adjust the allowance as considered necessary. 

 
The Company’s effective tax rate differs from the federal statutory rate of 34% primarily due to the impact of state income taxes and the valuation allowance 
recorded against its deferred tax assets. 

 

 
The principal components of deferred tax assets and (liabilities) are as follows as of June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012 on a tax effected basis: 
  

  
The Company follows the provisions of FASB ASC Subtopic 740-10-65-1, Income Taxes. As of June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2013, the Company did not 
recognize any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. 

 
Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code can limit the amount of net operating losses, which may be utilized if certain changes to a company’s ownership 
occur. While the Company underwent a shift in ownership in 2013 as defined by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code, the Company has not incurred 
any limitations on its ability to utilize its net operating losses under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code, it may incur limitations in the future if there is a 
change in ownership. 

 
The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in operating expenses. No such interest or 
penalties were recognized during the period presented. The Company had no accruals for interest and penalties at June 30, 2012 or June 30, 2013. The period 
ended June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013 are subject to examination by the federal and state taxing authorities. There are no income tax 
examinations currently in process and as of the date of this report. 
 

NOTE 13.              RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

The Company entered into a consulting agreement with Gold Grenade, LLC (“Gold Grenade”), a related entity co-owned by two of the shareholders to 
receive product development services. As of June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2013, $108,475 and $0, respectively, was due to Gold Grenade. For the period ended 
June 30, 2012 and the year ended June 30, 2013, the Company incurred approximately $212,014 and $872,700 respectively, in product development fees 
payable to Gold Grenade. The agreement is to remain in effect unless either party desires to cancel the agreement. 
  

  

    2013     2012  
Statutory rate    34.0%    34.0 %
State income taxes    5.8%    8.8 %
Valuation allowance    (39.8)%    (42.8 )%
     Total    0.0%    0.0 %

    2013     2012   
Net operating losses carryforward   $ 2,002,842     $ 126,987   
Start-up costs     60,005       25,541   
Property and equipment     56,270       -   
Stock based compensation     192,786       -   
Gross deferred taxes   $ 2,311,903     $ 152,528   
Valuation allowance     (2,311,903 )     (152,528 ) 
Net deferred taxes   $ -     $ -   
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NOTE 14.              SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
  

On August 29, 2013, the Company issued senior secured convertible notes (the “August Convertible Notes”) with an original issue discount of 12% and a 
conversion price of $0.068 per share (the “August Conversion Price”) for gross proceeds of $616,000.  The term of the August Convertible Notes include an 
eighteen-month maturity period, with partial redemption beginning on September 1, 2014. The August Convertible Notes bear an annual interest rate of 8%, 
which is paid quarterly in the form of cash or equity. Interest is payable in cash or at the Company’s option in shares of common stock, provided certain 
conditions are met, based on a share value equal to the lesser of (a) 90% of the average of the volume weighted average price (the “VWAP”) for the 20 
consecutive trading days prior to the applicable interest payment date and (b) 100% of the average of the VWAP for the 20 consecutive trading days prior to 
the applicable interest payment date less $0.01. 

 
In connection with the financing described above, the Company entered into Amendment and Waiver Agreements (collectively, the “Amendment 
Agreements”) with the holders (collectively, the “Holders”) of substantially all of the securities issued in connection with the Company’s Bridge Notes, PPO, 
short-term loans and PPO and Bridge Broker Warrants (collectively, the Transactions”) pursuant to which the Company reduced the exercise prices of all of 
its outstanding Series A, Series B, Series C, Series D and Series E common stock purchase warrants (collectively, the “Warrants”) as follows: the exercise 
price per share of the Series A Warrants that had an initial exercise price of $0.25 was reduced to $.01; the exercise price per share of the Series B Warrants 
that had an initial exercise price of $0.50 was reduced to $.015; the exercise price per share of the Series C Warrants that had an initial exercise price of $1.00 
was reduced to $0.03; and the exercise price per share of the Series D and Series E Warrants that had an initial exercise price of $0.25 was reduced to $0.01. 

 
In consideration of the exercise price reductions, the Holders of substantially all of the securities agreed to permanently waive all past and future exercise 
price and share number anti-dilution adjustment provisions that would otherwise be triggered by share issuances by the Company at prices less than the 
purchase, exercise or conversion price of any securities acquired by the holders in the Transactions or underlying any of such securities.  The Amendment 
Agreements also provided for a waiver of all penalties incurred by the Company under the terms of the PPO registration rights agreement as a result of the 
Company’s failure to timely file and effect the registration for resale of the private placement securities.  
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 
 

No events occurred requiring disclosure under Item 304(b) of Regulation S-K during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 
  
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 
 
Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
  

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that material information required to be disclosed in our periodic reports filed under the 
Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and to ensure that such information is 
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required 
disclosure. During the year ended June 30, 2013, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal 
executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13(a)-15(e) under 
the Exchange Act. Based on this evaluation, because of the identification of the material weakness described below, management concluded that as of June 30, 2013 our 
disclosure controls and procedures were ineffective. 
  

As reported in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2012, our management has identified a control deficiency relating to inadequate 
accounting resources. Management believes that this material weakness is primarily due to the limited number of accounting personnel. To mitigate the effects of this 
deficiency, we rely heavily on the use of external consultants. 

  
Subject to availability of funds, we plan to hire additional personnel with financial accounting expertise to further support our current accounting personnel. If and 

when implemented, our internal accounting personnel will be responsible for performing regular internal audits of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, internal 
control over financial reporting and performing other financial functions. 
  

Management believes that hiring of additional accounting personnel who have the financial expertise and knowledge will result in both proper recording of financial 
transactions and a much more knowledgeable accounting staff. Additional accounting personnel will also ensure the proper segregation of duties and provide more checks 
and balances. Additional accounting personnel will better enable us to deal with any personnel losses within the accounting staff. We believe this will greatly decrease any 
disclosure control and procedure issues we may encounter in the future.  
  
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
  

Our company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f) of the Exchange Act) for our company. Our company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance, not absolute assurance, 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP. Internal control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that: (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of our company’s assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America, and that our company’s receipts and expenditures are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. In addition, projections of any evaluation of 
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions and that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

  
Our Management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, conducted an evaluation of the design and operation of our internal control 

over financial reporting as of June 30, 2013 based on the criteria set forth in 1992 Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. This evaluation included review of the documentation of controls, evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls, testing of 
the operating effectiveness of controls and a conclusion on this evaluation. Based on this evaluation, our management concluded our internal control over financial reporting 
was ineffective as of June 30, 2013 for the reasons set forth above under the heading “Disclosure Controls and Procedures.” 
  
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. 
  

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the year ended June 30, 2013 that have materially affected, or are reasonably 
likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 
  
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 
  
None. 
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PART III 

  
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
  

The information called for by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement relating to the Company’s 2013 Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC.  If such proxy statement is not filed on or before October 28, 2013, the information called for by this Item will be filed as part of 
an amendment to this Form 10-K. 
 
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 
 

The information called for by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement relating to the Company’s 2013 Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC.  If such proxy statement is not filed on or before October 28, 2013, the information called for by this Item will be filed as part of 
an amendment to this Form 10-K. 
 
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 
 

The information called for by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement relating to the Company’s 2013 Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC.  If such proxy statement is not filed on or before October 28, 2013, the information called for by this Item will be filed as part of 
an amendment to this Form 10-K. 
 
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 
 

The information called for by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement relating to the Company’s 2013 Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC.  If such proxy statement is not filed on or before October 28, 2013, the information called for by this Item will be filed as part of 
an amendment to this Form 10-K. 
 
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES 
  

The information called for by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement relating to the Company’s 2013 Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC.  If such proxy statement is not filed on or before October 28, 2013, the information called for by this Item will be filed as part of 
an amendment to this Form 10-K. 
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PART IV 

  
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SCHEDULES  
  
(a)            Documents filed as part of this report 
 

(1) Financial Statements 
 

Reference is made to the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company under Item 8 of Part II of this Form 10-K. 
 

(2)  Financial Statement Schedules 
 

None. 
  
(b)            Exhibits 
 

  

  

Exhibit 
No. 

    
Description 

2.1   Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, dated as of July 12, 2012, by and among the Company, BOLDFACE Acquisition Corp., and BOLDFACE 
Licensing + Branding (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 

2.2   Articles of Merger, dated as of July 12, 2012, for the merger of BOLDFACE Acquisition Corp. into BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 2.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 

3.1   Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation as filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on May 21, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the 
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 22, 2012) 

3.2   By-Laws of Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed with the SEC on January 17, 2008) 
4.1   Form of Investor Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
4.2   Form of Broker Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
4.3   Form of Bridge Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
4.4   Form of Licensor Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
4.5   Form of 10% Secured Convertible Promissory Note (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 

18, 2012) 
4.6   Form of Registration Rights Agreement by and between the Company and the investors in the Private Placement Offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 

to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
4.7   Form of 10% Secured Convertible Promissory Note issued by BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding to the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the 

Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
4.8   Form of 12% Secured Convertible Promissory Note (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on 

December 28, 2012) 
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Exhibit 
No. 

    
Description 

4.9   Form of $0.50 Investor Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 28, 2012) 
4.10   Form of $1.00 Investor Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 28, 2012) 
4.11   Form of Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2012, by and among the Company and the investors in the Offering (incorporated by reference to 

Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 28, 2012) 
4.12   Form of 12% Secured Convertible Promissory Note (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on 

April 3, 2013) 
4.13   Form of $0.25 Investor Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 3, 2013) 
4.14   Form of $0.50 Investor Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 3, 2013) 
4.15   Form of Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 8, 2013, by and among the Company and the investor in the offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 

10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 12, 2013) 
4.16   Form of 12% Secured Convertible Promissory Note (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on 

April 12, 2013) 
4.17   Form of $0.25 Investor Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 12, 2013) 
4.18   Form of $0.50 Investor Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 12, 2013) 
4.19   Form of 12% Secured Convertible Promissory Note issued on June 20, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K 

filed with the SEC on June 26, 2013) 
4.20   Form of Warrants issued on June 20, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 26, 

2013) 
4.21   Form of Convertible Debenture issued on August 29, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC 

on June 26, 2013) 
4.22   Form of Warrant issued on August 29, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 26, 

2013) 
10.1   Split-Off Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2012, by and among the Company, BOLDFACE Split Corp., and Noah Levinson (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to 

the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
10.2   General Release Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2012, by and among the Company, BOLDFACE Split Corp. and Noah Levinson (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 

10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
10.3   Form of Securities Purchase Agreement between the Company and the investors in the Private Placement Offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the 

Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
10.4   Subscription Escrow Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2012, by and among the Company, Gottbetter Capital Markets, LLC, and CSC Trust Company of Delaware, as 

amended on June 28, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
10.5   Placement Agency Agreement, dated as of May 2, 2012, by and between the Placement Agent and the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the 

Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
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Exhibit 
No. 

  
Description 

10.6   Escrow (Indemnification) Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2012, among the Company, Nicole Ostoya, Robin Coe-Hutshing, Maria Torres, and Gottbetter & Partners, 
LLP, as escrow agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 

10.7   Form of Lock-Up Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
10.8†   Employment Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2012, between the Company and Nicole Ostoya (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Current 

Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
10.9†   Employment Agreement, dated as of May 30, 2012, between BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding and Ashumi Kothary (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to 

the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
10.10†   Consulting Agreement, dated as of July 3, 2012, between the Company and Gold Grenade, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Current 

Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
10.11   Indemnification Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2012, between the Company and John Derby (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Current 

Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
10.12†   2012 Equity Incentive Plan of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 

2012) 
10.13   Form of Securities Purchase Agreement between the Company and the investors in the Bridge Financing (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the 

Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
10.14   Bridge Loan Agreement, dated as of May 16, 2012, between the Company and BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the 

Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
10.15   Pledge Agreement, dated as of May 16, 2012, among the Company and each person and entity listed as a pledger on the signature pages thereto (incorporated by 

reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
10.16   Company Security Agreement, dated as of May 16, 2012, among the Company, BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding and Gottbetter & Partners, LLP, as collateral agent 

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
10.17   NewCo Bridge Loan Agreement, dated as of May 16, 2012, between BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding and Gottbetter & Partners, LLP, as collateral agent 

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 
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Exhibit 
No. 

  
Description 

10.18   Subscription Escrow Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2012, by and among the Company, Gottbetter Capital Markets, LLC, and CSC Trust Company of Delaware 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2012) 

10.19   Form of Factoring Agreement, dated as of October 17, 2012, entered into by and between Star Funding, Inc. and each of BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding and 
BOLDFACE Group, Inc. (contains a Schedule of Omitted Documents in the form of Exhibit 10.1, including material detail in which such documents differ from Exhibit 
10.1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 28, 2012) 

10.20   Form of Supply Agreement, dated as of October 17, 2012, entered into by and between Star Funding, Inc. and each of BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding and 
BOLDFACE Group, Inc. (contains a Schedule of Omitted Documents in the form of Exhibit 10.2, including material detail in which such documents differ from Exhibit 
10.2) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 28, 2012) 

10.21   Form of Guarantee, dated as of October 17, 2012, issued by each of BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding and BOLDFACE Group, Inc. in favor of Star Funding, Inc. 
(contains a Schedule of Omitted Documents in the form of Exhibit 10.3, including material detail in which such documents differ from Exhibit 10.3) (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 28, 2012) 

10.22   Form of Validity Guarantee, dated as of October 17, 2012, entered into by and between Star Funding, Inc. and each of Nicole Ostoya, Ashumi Kothary and Robin 
Coe-Hutshing (contains a Schedule of Omitted Documents in the form of Exhibit 10.4, including material detail in which such documents differ from Exhibit 10.4) 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 28, 2012) 

10.23   Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2012, by and among the Company and the investors in the Offering (incorporated by reference 
from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 28, 2012) 

10.24   Subscription Escrow Agreement, effective as of December 19, 2012, by and among the Company, Aegis Capital Corp. and CSC Trust Company of Delaware 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 28, 2012) 

10.25   Security Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2012, by and among the Company, BOLDFACE licensing + branding and Gottbetter & Partners, LLP, as collateral 
agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 28, 2012) 

10.26   Guaranty, dated as of December 21, 2012, issued by BOLDFACE licensing + branding in favor of the investors in the offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 28, 2012) 
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* Filed herewith. 
^ Portions of this exhibit have been redacted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  The non-public information has been filed separately with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. 
† Indicates management contract or compensation plan or arrangement 
  

  

Exhibit 
No. 

  Description 

10.27   Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 8, 2013, by and between the Company and the investor in the Offering (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 12, 2013) 

10.28   Security Agreement, dated as of April 8, 2013, by and among the Company, BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding and Gottbetter & Partners, LLP, as collateral agent 
((incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 12, 2013) 

10.29   Guaranty, dated as of April 8, 2013, issued by BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding in favor of the investor in the Offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to 
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 12, 2013) 

10.30   Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 20, 2013, by and among the Company and the investors in the Offering (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 26, 2013) 

10.31   Form of Security Agreement, dated as of June 20, 2013, by and among the Company, BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding and the investors in the offering 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 26, 2013) 

10.32   Guarantee, dated as of June 20, 2013, issued by BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding in favor of the investors in the offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 26, 2013) 

10.33*^   Licensing Agreement, effective as of May 9, 2012, by and among BLB Licensing + Branding, 2Die4Kourt, Inc., Kimsaprincess, Inc. and Khlomoney, Inc. 
10.34*^   License Agreement, effective as of July 11, 2012, by and between BLB Licensing + Branding and Pez-Mar, Via Mar Productions Inc. 
10.35*^   Merchandising License Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2013, by and between BLB Licensing + Branding and Pretty Ugly, LLC. 

10.36   Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 29, 2013, by and between the Company and the investor in the Offering (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 26, 2013) 

10.37   Form of Security Agreement, dated as of August 29, 2013, by and between the Company and the investor in the Offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to 
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 26, 2013)

10.38   Guaranty of BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding, dated as August 29, 2013, by and between the Company and the investor in the Offering (incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 26, 2013) 

14.1   Code of Ethics (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2008 filed with the SEC 
on December 31, 2008) 

16.1   Letter from Webb & Company, P.A. to the Securities and Exchange Commission, dated as of May 17, 2012, regarding changes in Registrant’s certifying accountant 
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 16.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 8, 2012) 

21.1*   List of Subsidiaries 
31.1*   Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
31.2*   Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
32.1*   Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
32.2*   Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
101*   The following materials from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2013 formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting 

Language): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 
2012, (iii) Statement of Shareholders Equity (Deficit) from June 30, 2012 to June 30, 2013, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended June 30, 2013 
and 2012, (iv) and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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SIGNATURES 

  
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 

undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 
  

  
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the 

capacities and on the dates indicated. 
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  BOLDFACE Group, Inc.  
       
October  15, 2013 By: /s/ Nicole Ostoya  
    Nicole Ostoya  
    Chief Executive Officer and President  

Signature   Title   Date 
          

/s/ Nicole Ostoya   Director   October 15, 2013 
Nicole Ostoya   Chief Executive Officer and President     

          
/s/ Ashumi K. Shippee   Chief Financial Officer   October 15, 2013 
 Ashumi  K. Shippee         

          
/s/ Emil Rensing   Director   October 15, 2013 

Emil Rensing         
          

/s/ Patrick Collins   Director   October 15, 2013 
Patrick Collins         

          
/s/ Victor Azrak   Director   October 15, 2013 

Victor Azrak         



Exhibit 10.33 
  

EXECUTION COPY 
  

LICENSING AGREEMENT 
  

THIS LICENSING AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into effective May 9, 2012 (the “Effective Date”) by and between 
2Die4Kourt, Inc., Fed ID# *, a California corporation located at *, f/s/o Kourtney Kardashian, Kimsaprincess, Inc. Fed ID# *, a California corporation 
located at *, f/s/o Kimberly Kardashian, and Khlomoney, Inc., Fed ID# *, a California corporation located at * f/s/o Khloe Kardashian (all together, 
collectively, “the Licensors”) and BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding, a Nevada corporation located at 1945 Euclid St., Santa Monica, CA 90404 
(“Licensee”). Kim Kardashian, Khloe Kardashian and Kourtney Kardashian are referred to herein individually as “Kardashian” and collectively as “the 
Kardashians.” Each of the Licensors and Licensee will be referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

  
WITNESSETH: 

  
WHEREAS, the Kardashians are recognized as T.V. personalities, models and international celebrities; 
  
WHEREAS, Licensee is a company engaged in the business of developing, distributing, promoting and selling various products and services; 
  
WHEREAS, Licensee desires to: (1) acquire the exclusive right to use the Kardashian Image (defined below) in connection with the 

development, manufacture, production, distribution, advertisement, promotion and sale of Products (defined below) and (2) obtain certain ancillary 
services of the Kardashians, as defined herein; 

  
WHEREAS, Each Kardashian has licensed its Kardashian Image and the right to provide such services to their respective corporations along 

with the right to sublicense them to third Parties; 
  

*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
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WHEREAS, 2Die4Kourt, Inc., Kimsaprincess, Inc., and Khlomoney, Inc. has each agreed to authorize Licensee to use the Kardashian Image and 

to provide such services upon the terms and conditions contained below; and 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 
  
1.             Definitions. As used herein, the terms set forth below shall be defined as follows: 

  
A.          “Kardashian Image” shall mean the trademark “Kardashian” and each Kardashian’s name, fame, nickname, initials, autograph, 

voice, video, film portrayals or performances, photograph (including, without limitation, the Beauty Shots (as defined in Section 4.A below) likeness and 
image or facsimile image, and any other likeness of or means of endorsement by, each Kardashian used in connection with the advertising, promotion and 
sale of goods, products or services. 

  
B.           “Contract Territory” shall mean worldwide. 
  
C.           “Contract Period” shall mean each of the following designated periods during the Term of the Contract: “Contract Period One” 

shall mean *; “Contract Period Two” shall mean *; “Contract Period Three” shall mean *; “Contract Period Four” shall mean *. The Renewal Term (as 
defined below), if any, shall be considered a separate Contract Period, provided, however, that since the Renewal Term is eighteen (18) months in 
duration, the personal services obligations under this Agreement which are required to be performed at a certain rate “per Contract Period” (e.g., 
Production Days and Marketing Days) shall be performed at such rate stated in this Agreement multiplied by 1.5. 

  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
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D.           “Products” shall mean the Licensed Products and the High End Licensed Products. 
  
E.           “High End Licensed Products” shall mean a high end line of any of the Licensed Products to be sold at those retailers set forth 

on Exhibit A attached hereto. 
  
F.           “Licensed Products” shall mean foundation, concealer, primer, powder, blush, bronzer, face tints, gel blush, eye shadow and 

powder, eye liner, mascara, highlighter or shimmer, lip liner, lip gloss, lipstick, lip tints, palettes, body shimmer, cosmetic brushes, tweezers, foundation 
prepping facial masks, makeup remover and makeup removing wipes, nail polish remover, cosmetic tools and edible body creams, body preparations, and 
massage oils (collectively “Edible Beauty Products”); provided, that nail polish shall immediately and automatically be added to and become a part of the 
Licensed Products at such time that nail polish is no longer an exclusive product category with respect to the Kardashian Image pursuant to a license 
agreement between Licensors and *, including during any nonexclusive sell-off period under such license. 

  
G.           “Product IP Rights” means all rights in or to any and all designs and specifications for the Products, promotional materials, 

packaging materials, and other works subject to trademark, copyright, patent, design patent, trade dress or other intellectual property protection used in 
connection with or created for the Products during the Term (excluding the Kardashian Image). 

  
H.          “Professional Responsibilities” shall mean any and all responsibilities, obligations, commitments, duties, and the like arising 

under Kardashians’ involvement with their individual and collective television shows, businesses and career pursuits. 
  

*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
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I.           “Wholesale Sales” shall mean the gross invoice amount billed customers and actually received by or on behalf of Licensee (in 

the applicable currency of all sales of all Products sold by Licensee including discontinued, discounted and surplus sales), less (without double 
counting) discounts, credits, chargebacks, markdowns, and reasonable and customary allowances actually allowed customers, as reflected in the invoice 
itself (or other supporting documentation) and net of all returns actually made or allowed as supported by credit memos issued by customers. If sales are 
made to any party controlled by, controlling, under common control or otherwise affiliated with or related to Licensee, such sales shall be computed 
based upon the regular wholesale price for such Products charged to unrelated third parties if such regular wholesale price is higher than what is actually 
charged. No costs incurred, including but not limited to those incurred by Licensee, customers or other third parties, in the manufacturing, selling, 
marketing, advertising or distributing of the Products shall be deducted. All transactions shall be at arm’s length for fair market value. 

  
2.             Term.  Unless earlier commenced or terminated, in accordance with the provisions hereof, the initial term of this Agreement shall be and 

this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from the date of this Agreement through * (the “Initial Term”). Licensee shall have the option to 
extend the term of this Agreement for an additional period of eighteen (18) months (the “Renewal Term,” and together with the Initial Term, the “Term”). 

  
3.             Grant of Kardashian Image License. 

  
A.           In consideration of the remuneration to be paid to the Licensors pursuant hereto and subject to the conditions and limitations 

contained herein, each of the Licensors grants to Licensee the exclusive right and license during the Term and within the Contract Territory to use the 
Kardashian Image (as it relates to such Licensor) for the sole purpose of developing, manufacturing, advertising, promoting, selling, distributing and 
endorsing Products. Such license is sub-licensable by Licensee as it relates to the manufacture of Products; provided, that such manufacturer shall have 
signed a form of third party manufacturer’s agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference; 
provided further, that any manufacturer’s good faith negotiation in keeping with industry standards and execution of an agreement that is more -favorable 
than such form shall not be deemed to be a breach of this Agreement. Licensee may distribute or sell the Products during the Term through any lawful 
channels of distribution, including any channels of distribution as reasonably approved by Licensors and created after the date of this Agreement. It is 
understood that Licensee shall not use the Kardashian Image for any other purpose or in connection with any items, other than as specified herein. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the Licensors and Kardashians agree and acknowledge that, commencing upon 
the Effective Date of this Agreement through and including the date that this Agreement expires by its terms or is terminated in accordance with the 
provisions hereof and within the Contract Territory, the Licensors and Kardashians shall be prohibited from granting any rights to use the Kardashian 
Image during the Term to any individual or entity for the purpose of developing, manufacturing, promoting, advertising, selling, distributing or endorsing 
Products. Notwithstanding the foregoing, at any time nail polish is included in Products and the * License is non-exclusive, the grant of the license herein 
to nail polish shall be exclusive except for the rights granted under the * License. 

  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
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B.           The Licensors shall retain all right, title and interest in and to the Kardashian Image world-wide and in perpetuity which shall 

not be contested by Licensee nor shall Licensee assist others to do so. Other than as provided for herein, nothing in this Agreement shall give Licensee 
or any third party any interest or ownership right in the Kardashian Image. Licensee acknowledges the validity of the Kardashian Image and the 
secondary meaning associated with the Kardashian Image. Licensee acknowledges and agrees that all use of the Kardashian Image by Licensee and any 
goodwill generated by Licensee’s use of the Kardashian Image shall inure solely to the benefit of the Licensors. Licensee will ensure that no use of the 
Kardashian Image is unflattering or disparaging and that no statement is made that disparages any of the Licensors or any Kardashian; provided, that if 
any of the Licensors or Kardashians, or their respective representatives or agents, approves any proposed use of the Kardashian Image and the context 
in which such use will occur, then the Licensors and Kardashians covenant and agree not to object to such use of the Kardashian Image in such context 
during the Term. Licensee shall not join any name or names with the Kardashian Image so as to form a new mark, unless and until Licensee consents 
thereto in writing. Furthermore, the Licensors and the Kardashians shall not be prevented from using, permitting or licensing others to use the 
Kardashian Image in connection with the advertisement, promotion or sale of any product or service except as otherwise expressly restricted herein. 

  
C.           Each Party agrees that it shall promptly notify the other Party in writing of any infringing use by any third party of the 

Kardashian Image in connection with Products within the Contract Territory of which such Party becomes aware. Each Party agrees to reasonably 
cooperate with the other Party in protecting and defending the Kardashian Image. Licensee shall use its reasonable business judgment to determine what 
action, if any, that it shall take on account of any such infringement; provided, that if Licensee prosecutes any action to prevent the continuation of any 
such infringing or dilutive use, Licensee shall pay all costs and attorneys’ fees to bring such action; provided further, that, upon Licensee’s written 
request, the Licensors shall, at Licensee’s expense, use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Kardashians to, reasonably cooperate in such 
prosecution. Licensee shall consult with the Licensors regarding resolving infringing use by third parties of the Kardashian Image in connection with 
Products and in no instance shall any resolution diminish the value and marketability of the Kardashian Image, or, subject to the immediately following 
sentence, be a breach or basis for termination of the Agreement, and Licensee shall be entitled to any recovery thereunder subject to the terms of this 
Agreement. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 3.C. to the contrary, this Section 3.C. shall not apply to any claim or action in which such third 
party asserts any right or entitlement under or by reason of any actual licensing agreement with the Licensors or any of the Kardashians or any action or 
claim that arises from any breach by the Licensors of the exclusive rights granted to Licensee or other covenants and obligations in this Agreement. 

  
D.           Under no circumstances does this Agreement grant or purport to grant to Licensee the right to use any logo, trademark, or 

service mark owned by any third party. Licensee agrees and acknowledges that it must obtain approval from the third party or parties, for the use of any 
such marks or insignias, and in the absence of such written approval, shall not make any use whatsoever thereof. Licensee agrees that it shall not 
knowingly utilize the Kardashian Image in any manner which would cause a breach of any agreements of the Licensors and/or the Kardashians of which 
Licensee has been made aware . 

  
4.           Ancillary Services. To facilitate Licensee’s usage of the exclusive right and license to the Kardashian Image as provided herein, the 

Licensors agree to provide the ancillary services set forth below (the “Services”). 
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A.           As part of the Services to be rendered by the Licensors hereunder, the Licensors shall cause each Kardashian to: (i) appear at 

(a) a total of * Production Day appearances per Contract Period (and * additional Production Day per Contract Period if reasonably required (such 
additional day, the “Floating Photo Day”) in order to obtain a sufficient number of high quality photographs (“Beauty Shots”) for any Product 
packaging, posters, brochures, in-store displays, and/or any and other forms of print advertising and promotional materials to be produced by Licensee; 
provided that Licensee shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain a sufficient number of Beauty Shots for such purposes during the * 
Production Days of each Contract Period); (b) a total of * Marketing Day appearances per Contract Period; and (c) up to * additional Marketing Day 
Appearances for DRTV at any time during the Term; (ii) provide design input and consult with Licensee regarding Products; (iii) provide reasonable 
social media marketing support for Products including, without limitation, by (x) posting at least * per month on each of their respective verified * 
accounts (the contents and dates for which will be provided by Licensee, and reasonably approved by each Licensor, as part of a *); (y) posting at least 
* posts per month (the contents and dates for which will be provided by Licensee, and reasonably approved by each Licensor, as part of a *), on each of 
their respective official * accounts, that promote the Products; and (z) posting at least * posts per month (the contents and dates for which will be 
provided by Licensee, and reasonably approved by each Licensor, as part of a *), on each of their respective *, that promote *; (iv) provide a 
commercially reasonable number of references about * during * and (v) use commercially reasonable efforts to use and/or wear *. Without limiting the 
generality of any of the foregoing, if Licensee reasonably requests * by any of the Kardashians in addition to those required pursuant to this Section 
4.A., then the Licensors shall cause the Kardashians to provide such * at a price to Licensee of *% of the price charged by such Kardashian/Licensor to 
an unaffiliated third party. Payments for any * shall be payable within thirty (30) days after the end of the calendar quarter in which such * is made. 
Licensee understands that no recommendations or consultation made by any of the Kardashians shall be deemed to be guarantees or warranties of any 
of them and that Licensee shall be solely responsible for the implementation, if any, thereof. In addition, Licensee understands that Licensee has no right 
to any personal or personally identifiable information the Licensors or the Kardashians may have about any of the users or viewers of their websites, 
blogs, tweets or Facebook accounts. 

  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
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B.           A “Production Day” appearance shall be an in-person, no longer than * consecutive hours of appearance time in a twenty-four 

(24) hour period for the purpose of shooting photos for Product packaging, posters, brochures, in-store displays, and/or any and all such other forms of 
print advertising and promotional materials as Licensee may determine. A “Marketing Day” appearance shall be an in-person, no longer than * 
consecutive hours of appearance time in a twenty-four (24) hour period for an “on-air” appearance for the purpose of promoting Products. Scheduling of 
such appearances shall be as provided hereunder for in Section 4.C.(ii). 

  
C.           For each appearance made by each Kardashian under this Section 4: 

  
(i)           In the event that any Kardashian is required to travel more than thirty (30) miles from their respective principal place of 

residence in connection therewith, Licensee agrees to pay all reasonable *out-of-pocket expenses incurred by each Kardashian (including, but not limited 
to*, hotel accommodations, meals and ground transportation). Individual expenses exceeding One Thousand Dollars (USD $1,000.00) must be pre-
approved in writing by Licensee; subject to the following provisions: 
  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
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FOR US TRAVEL: 
  

If * Kardashian is required to so travel, then she receives a * in first class and * in coach; 
  
If * Kardashians are required to so travel, then each of such Kardashians receives a * in first class, and there shall be a total of * additional 

companions for such Kardashians, collectively, in coach; 
  
If * Kardashians are required to so travel, then each of such Kardashians receives a * in first class, and there shall be a total of * additional 

companions for such Kardashians, collectively, in coach; 
  
Provided, that if * travels with *, then an additional business class ticket is required. 

  
FOR INTERNATIONAL TRAVEL: 
  

If * Kardashian is required to so travel, then she receives a * in first class and * in business class; 
  
If *Kardashians are required to so travel, then each of such Kardashians receives a * in first class, and there shall be a total of * additional 

companions for such Kardashians, collectively, in business class 
  
If * Kardashians are required to so travel, then each of such Kardashians receives a * in first class, and there shall be a total of * additional 

companions for such Kardashians, collectively, in business class; 
  
Provided, that if * travels with *, then an additional business class ticket is required. 
  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
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(ii)            Licensee shall give the Licensors not less than thirty (30) days’ written notice of the time and place Licensee desires 

Kardashians to appear, which notice shall then be subject to acceptance/approval by the Licensors; 
  
(iii)           Licensee shall provide each Kardashian with stylist, hair and makeup personnel in connection with each Kardashian 

Production Day or Marketing Day appearance. Each Kardashian may elect to use her own hair and make-up personnel and Licensee shall reimburse such 
Kardashian’s Licensor for such expense; provided, however, that if such election is made, Licensee shall have no obligation to reimburse such Licensor 
in an amount that is greater than * for such Production Day or Marketing Day; and 

  
(iv)          Any Production Day and/or Marketing Day appearance agreed to by Licensor and scheduled in accordance with the 

provisions of this Agreement that is canceled  (except for any reason outside of Licensee’s reasonable control) and/or unused by Licensee shall be 
considered a fulfillment of a Production Day and/or Marketing Day obligation as set forth hereunder. 

  
(v)           Each of the Licensors acknowledges and agrees that Licensee may photograph or capture live action footage (either 

A-roll or B-roll) of the Kardashians during any Production Day or Marketing Day for purposes of promoting the Products; provided, that any use of any 
such photography or footage shall be subject to the Licensors’ approval rights contained in Section 7. 
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(vi)           Neither the Licensors nor Kardashians shall be required to participate in any activities: (1) which are subject to 

federal or state securities laws, (2) which would impose a fiduciary duty upon the Licensors or Kardashians to Licensee’s members, (3) which would 
cause the Licensors or Kardashians to violate any laws, (4) which would or could cause injury to the Licensors or Kardashians or diminish the value of 
the Kardashian Image, or (5) which may subject any Kardashian to public disrepute. Neither the Licensors nor Kardashians shall receive any additional 
remuneration for such appearances (other than payment of expenses as provided herein). Licensee further understands that Licensee’s failure to utilize 
the Services of the Kardashians hereunder shall not result in any reduction in payments to the Licensors hereunder, nor may unused appearances in any 
Contract Period of one type be used or classified for another type or carried forward to any future Contract Period. The obligations of the Licensors to 
provide the services of Kardashians hereunder are subject to the condition that payments to the Licensors (which are not then the subject of a good faith 
dispute by Licensee) are current and up to date and Licensee is not otherwise in material breach of any provisions of this Agreement. 

  
D.           If the Licensors confirm the Kardashians’ (or any of their) availability for any appearance and any Kardashian is unable to 

appear due to illness, injury or emergency, then as long as there is reasonable evidence of such illness, injury or emergency, such non-appearance shall 
not be a breach of this Agreement and neither any Licensor nor any Kardashian shall be responsible for any expenses incurred due to such non-
appearance. In such event, the Licensors and Licensee shall attempt in good faith to reschedule the appearance date. 
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5.             Remuneration. 

  
A.          During the Term of this Agreement and as consideration for the grant of rights and license to the Kardashian Image as set forth 

herein, for the Services of Kardashians required to be performed hereunder, and for the obligations undertaken by the Licensors and Kardashians herein, 
Licensee shall pay the Licensors, collectively, a royalty on all Wholesale Sales of all Products within the Contract Territory equal to *% of all Wholesale 
Sales of Licensed Products and *% of all Wholesale Sales of * (collectively, the “Royalty Payment”). Licensee agrees to pay the Licensors, collectively, a 
guaranteed minimum Royalty Payment (“Guaranteed Minimum Royalty Payment”) of * or, depending on the launch date of *, * in accordance with the 
following schedule, but subject to adjustment for inclusion of * as part of the Licensed Products, as provided in Section 5.F. below: 

  
i.              Contract Period One: *; 
  
ii.             Contract Period Two: *. If * have been developed and made available for sale by the commencement of Contract 
Period Two, the Guaranteed Minimum Royalty Payment for Contract Period Two shall be *; 
  
iii.            Contract Period Three: *. If * have been developed and made available for sale by the commencement of the Contract 

Period Three, the Guaranteed Minimum Royalty Payment for Contract Period Three shall be *; 
  
iv.            Contract Period Four: *. If * have been developed and made available for sale by the commencement of the Contract 

Period Four, the Guaranteed Minimum Royalty Payment for Contract Period Four shall be *. 
  

*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
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B.           Licensee shall pay * to the Licensors, collectively, as a non-refundable advance payment (“Advance”) no later than seven 

days after the date of this Agreement. The Advance is non-refundable but recoupable from Royalty Payments payable or to be payable by Licensee to 
the Licensors pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that this Agreement is terminated in Contract Period One by 
Licensee pursuant to the provisions of Section 12, the Advance shall be refunded by the Licensors, on a joint and several basis, to Licensee, prorated on 
a time basis from such effective termination date through the remainder of Contract Period One (e.g., if this Agreement is so terminated after one calendar 
quarter, then the Licensors, jointly and severally, shall be obligated to refund * and retain the other *). 

  
C.           In addition to the Royalty Payment and the Guaranteed Minimum Royalty Payment, Licensee agrees to pay the Licensors, 

collectively, the Exit Fee within thirty (30) days after any Licensee Sale. For purposes of this Agreement, (i) “Exit Fee” means an amount equal to * of all 
Net Sale Proceeds; (ii) “Licensee Sale” means a sale of all or substantially all of Licensee’s assets relating to or used in connection with the Products, or a 
* which occurs at any time during the Term or within * months thereafter; (iii) “Net Sale Proceeds” means the total consideration and all economic 
benefits actually received directly or indirectly by the Licensee and/or its shareholders and/or their respective affiliates in connection with a Licensee 
Sale, less an amount equal to the sum of (a) the total reasonable expenses incurred by Licensee and its shareholders in connection with such Licensee 
Sale (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and other selling expenses and commissions) and (b) if such Licensee Sale is in the form of 
a *, the total liabilities of Licensee that are satisfied out of such amounts received by Licensee at or around the closing of the Licensee Sale. The total 
consideration and economic benefits to be received directly or indirectly by Licensee, the shareholders of Licensee and/or their respective affiliates as a 
result of a Licensee Sale include but shall not be limited to: *, all liabilities, whether recorded or unrecorded such as bank debt or pension liabilities 
assumed or paid by the purchaser (including but not limited to accounts payable, accrued employee wages and benefits), all operating assets retained by 
Licensee or any shareholder of Licensee (except cash) including but not limited to * to the extent such payments exceed the fair market value of services 
provided, non-competition agreements, and stock or other securities or equity that are received in exchange for Licensee’s assets or *. The portion of the 
Exit Fee attributable to contingent payments including but not limited to earnouts and/or royalties (i.e., financial instruments or agreements whose value 
at closing cannot be determined due to their being based solely on future performance) may be deferred by Licensee, in its sole and absolute discretion, 
until the contingent payments are received. If the value of the consideration provided in the definitive Licensee Sale agreement (the “Stated 
Consideration”) is expressed to be subject to adjustment, which adjustment cannot be determined at the closing of the Licensee Sale, then a provisional 
Exit Fee based on the Stated Consideration shall be paid to the Licensors at the closing of the Licensee Sale. When the value of the adjustment is finally 
determined, the difference between (x) the provisional amount paid to the Licensors on account of the Exit Fee as aforesaid; and (y) the Exit Fee actually 
payable, as determined by reference to the adjusted consideration, shall (in the case of a shortfall) be paid to Licensee or (in the case of an excess) 
refunded by Licensee. 

  
D.           Payment of each Contract Period’s Guaranteed Minimum Royalty Payment shall be made in equal installments and each 

installment shall be paid on a quarterly basis (payable within thirty (30) days after the last day of each three (3) month period of such Contract Period) 
(such 3-month period, a “Contract Quarter”). 

  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
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E.           Licensee shall make and keep full and accurate books and records showing the number of each of the Products and monetary 

value exploited, sold by or on behalf of Licensee during the Term and the Wind Down Period along with the number of Products returned. Within thirty 
(30) days after the end of each Contract Quarter, Licensee shall provide to the Licensors a written report setting forth the number of each of the Products 
sold and returned and credits during that Contract Quarter along with the amount of Wholesale Sales collected, and all other information reasonably 
required to calculate the payment due as a result of the sales of such Products. Upon receipt of the written report, the Licensors shall instruct A.P.A. or 
their then current representative to generate an invoice. Within five (5) business days of Licensee’s receipt of an invoice from A.P.A., Licensee shall pay 
the Licensors the payment of the amounts shown to be due, it being understood that any failure or delay in generating or delivering an invoice shall not 
affect the Licensors’ rights to receive the amounts due. For the avoidance of doubt, if any such invoice is delivered with respect to any Contract Quarter 
after the Guaranteed Minimum Royalty for such Contract Quarter has been paid, then such invoice shall not require payment of any amounts by Licensee 
other than that portion of actual royalties for such Contract Quarter that exceed the Guaranteed Minimum Royalty for such Contract Quarter. During the 
Term of this Agreement and for a period of one (1) year after the last such month in which Licensee is obligated to pay Royalty Payments or the Exit Fee 
to the Licensors hereunder, the Licensors or their duly authorized representative(s), shall have the right, at their sole expense and upon reasonable notice 
to Licensee, to examine, review and copy such books and records, at the principal place of business of Licensee in order to account for, confirm and/or 
verify Royalty Payments or Exit Fee payments, sales or other distributions or dispositions related to or otherwise affecting the Products, including the 
amount of Royalty Payments due and owing, the accuracy of any and all reports produced by Licensee to the Licensors pursuant to and in accordance 
with this Agreement. In the event that an underpayment is discovered in calculation of the amount of Royalty Payments or Exit Fee payments payable to 
the Licensors, Licensee shall promptly thereafter pay to the Licensors the amount of underpayment, as the case may be, within thirty (30) days after 
written notification is provided to Licensee; provided, that in the event an overpayment is discovered in calculation of the amount of Royalty Payments, 
then Licensee shall have the right to set off such overpayment against future Royalty Payments or Exit Fee Payments until Licensee recoups an amount 
equal to such overpayment; provided further, that if such overpayment is with respect to an Exit Fee Payment, then Licensor shall promptly refund such 
overpayment to Licensee. Any underpayment by Licensee based upon an error in such calculation shall not be deemed to be breach of this Agreement 
so long as the calculation is made in good faith. If any underpayment by Licensee for a period examined by Licensee is 5% or more, Licensee shall pay the 
Licensors’ reasonable out-of-pocket expenses and costs with respect to such examination. The Licensors’ receipt of any royalty statement, Royalty 
Payment or Exit Fee payment does not preclude them from challenging the correctness of such Royalty or Exit Fee statement. 
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F.           In the event that * is included in the Products (i.e., after the * License ceases) during Contract Period Two, Contract Period 

Three, Contract Period Four, then the Guaranteed Minimum Royalty Payments shall be * or * (including, *), * or * (including *), and * or * (including *), 
respectively, for Contract Period Two, Contract Period Three and Contract Period Four; provided, than in any such case, such Guaranteed Minimum 
Royalty Payments shall be prorated for such Contract Period based on the number of days remaining in such Contract Period. In the event there is a 
Renewal Term, then the Guaranteed Minimum Royalties for the Renewal Term shall be * for the Products, * if * are included, and * if * and * are included. 
The Licensors shall have the right and option (the “Option”), exercisable for a period of thirty (30) days after the date of this Agreement, by delivering 
written notice thereof to Licensee, to exchange all of their rights under Section 5.C of this Agreement for 10,000,000 shares of restricted common stock, or 
warrants (which shall provide for cashless exercise thereof) to purchase 10,000,000 shares of common stock, of the parent company of Licensee (the 
“Parent Company”), representing at least *% of the common stock of the Parent Company, on a fully diluted basis, as set forth on the pro forma cap table 
of the Parent Company attached to this Agreement as Appendix I (the “Equity Securities”), at the fair market value of such common stock at such time 
(the “Exercise Price”). The Equity Securities will be issued within 30 days after the delivery of such written notice. The Equity Securities (or shares 
underlying the Equity Securities), when issued to the Licensors, shall be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and free and clear 
of all liens, security interests, charges or other encumbrances. Any warrants issued pursuant to the exercise of the Option shall be exercisable for a period 
of ten years from the grant date of such warrants. In the event of any merger, recapitalization, exchange, stock dividend or other extraordinary or capital 
event with respect to the Parent Company which occurs at any time between the date of this Agreement and effective exercise date of the Option, the 
Equity Securities (or shares underlying the Equity Securities) and the exercise price for any warrants shall be equitably adjusted; in the event of any 
merger, recapitalization, exchange, stock dividend or other extraordinary or capital event with respect to the Parent Company which occurs at any time 
between the issuance of the warrants (if warrants are elected pursuant to the Option) and effective exercise date of the warrants, the shares underlying 
the warrants and the exercise price of the warrants shall be equitably adjusted. Within thirty (30) days after the exercise of the Option, the Licensors and 
Licensee shall enter into a written amendment to this Agreement (in form and substance mutually agreed by the Licensors and Licensee) which shall 
provide, among other things, as the material terms thereof, that (x) the Licensors shall forfeit (I) their rights to the Exit Fee and (II) any of their rights to 
remuneration for * provided in Section 4.A, (y) Licensee shall forfeit its right to the Floating Photo Day, and (z) the Licensors shall provide to Licensee 
the suite of services set forth on Appendix II attached hereto (the “Option Services”), and that Licensee may provide to Parent Company the promotional 
benefits of the Option Services in exchange for the Equity Securities in the form (e.g., warrants or restricted stock) determined by the Licensors; provided, 
that the Parties may mutually agree that the Option Services and related transactions may take a different form of documentation than such amendment 
and may involve the Parent Company as a party to such documentation (such amendment or alternative documentation, together with the warrants, the 
“Option Documents”). Such amendment shall be coterminous with, and shall not extend the term of, this Agreement and shall continue in the case of the 
Renewal Term for the same duration. Upon the exercise of the Option, Section 5.C and all references in this Agreement to the Exit Fee immediately shall 
cease to be of any further force or effect. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event that the Licensors elect not to exercise the Option, then the provisions 
of Section 5.C. of this Agreement and all references to the Exit Fee shall remain in full force and effect. 

  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
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6.             Kardashians’ Security. Licensee agrees and acknowledges that it shall, at its sole cost and expense, take all necessary and reasonable 

precautions during any Production Day or Marketing Day including, but not limited to providing first class security personnel, airport greeters and other 
measures as reasonably required by the Licensors. 

  
7.             Prior Approval. The Licensors shall be entitled to approve, as well as disapprove, of any images, live action footage or other uses of 

the Kardashian Image that would in the Licensors’ or Kardashians’ sole judgment impair the value and marketability of the Kardashian Image or subject 
the Kardashians to public ridicule or scorn. Additionally, Licensee agrees that no use of the Kardashian Image or any item used in connection therewith, 
and any other means of endorsement by the Kardashians will be made hereunder without the written approval of Licensors prior to any public release. 
The Licensors shall provide Licensee specific grounds for any disapproval within seven (7) business days of the Licensors’ receipt of an intended use of 
the Kardashian Image. Any items or matters submitted to the Licensors for their approval which are not disapproved within seven (7) business days after 
the Licensors’ receipt thereof shall be deemed approved hereunder. The Licensors’ approvals pursuant to this Agreement shall not be withheld 
unreasonably and Licensors shall cooperate with Licensee in connection with the approval of any items or matters hereunder. 

  
8.             Quality Control and Samples. 

  
A.           The license granted hereunder is conditioned upon Licensee’s full and complete compliance with the marking provisions of the 

trademark, patent and copyright laws of the United States and other countries in the Contract Territory where Products are then being sold. Licensee 
further agrees that the Products, as well as all promotional, packaging and advertising material relative thereto, shall be developed, manufactured, 
distributed, advertised and sold in accordance with all laws, rules and regulations applicable in the countries in which Products are sold, shall contain all 
notices, labels, instructions, legends as may be required by any applicable law or regulation, and Licensee shall otherwise be in compliance therewith in 
all respects. Licensee further agrees to include all appropriate legal notices as required by the Licensors. 
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B.           The Products shall be of a high quality which is at least equal to comparable products manufactured and marketed by Licensee 

and in conformity with a sample approved in writing by the Licensors pursuant to Section 7. 
  
C.           Upon written notice by the Licensors to Licensee that Products and/or the advertisements associated with Products fall below 

the standards referenced within this Agreement or as previously approved by the Licensors, Licensee shall restore such quality. In the event that 
Licensee fails to take such steps to restore the quality and has not restored such quality within fifteen (15) days after written notification by the 
Licensors, the Licensors shall have the immediate right to terminate this Agreement; provided that, in the event that the restoration of such quality will 
reasonably take more than fifteen (15) days, Licensee shall still have the opportunity to restore such quality (and the Licensors shall not have the right to 
terminate this Agreement) so long as Licensee commences good faith efforts to do so within ten (10) days after written notification by the Licensors and 
thereafter diligently pursues such remedy to completion; provided that, in any event, such quality is restored in within sixty (60) days after notification by 
the Licensors. 

  
D.           Licensee shall, at Licensee’s sole cost, provide the Licensors with a reasonable amount of Products for the Kardashians’ 

personal use. 
  

9.             Development/Marketing Commitment.  The Licensors and Licensee acknowledge that the Kardashian Image has significant commercial 
value and is highly marketable, and that the marketing by Licensee of the Kardashian Image in connection with the development, manufacture, 
distribution, advertisement, promotion, sale and endorsement of Products is in the best interest of both Parties. In furtherance of such acknowledgement, 
Licensee hereby agrees that, during the Term, it shall use reasonable best efforts to develop, promote, market, sell and distribute Products. Licensee’s 
obligations herein include but are not limited to: (i) implementation of design, sourcing, and manufacturing of all SKU’s of Products, (ii) selling Products 
into retailers, (iii) financing all aspects of the Products development including but not limited to production, formulation, testing and Product fulfillment 
and (iv) providing all “back office” support including but not limited to shipping, vendor compliance, accounting and invoicing. Additionally, during 
each Contract Period of this Agreement, Licensee agrees to budget for and pay towards the advertising, promoting and marketing of Products a minimum 
amount equal to *% of the prior Contract Period’s annual Wholesale Sales. 

  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
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10.           Warranties and Additional Covenants. 

  
A.           The Licensors warrant and represent to Licensee that neither they nor any Kardashian is a party to any oral or written 

agreement, contract or understanding, which grants to any other entity or person a right or license to use the Kardashian Image in connection with the 
advertisement, promotion or endorsement of any Products or would prevent, limit or hinder the performance of any of its obligations under this 
Agreement. 

  
B.           Nothing contained in this Agreement shall prevent the Kardashians from appearing in the entertainment, news or information 

portion of any radio, television, motion picture, media, charity or other entertainment or philanthropic program or event, and there shall be no restrictions 
on the Kardashians’ participation in merchandising or commercial tie-ups or tie-ins related thereto to the extent these activities do not violate the 
exclusivity granted herein nor shall the Licensors or the Kardashians be deemed to be in contravention or breach of this Agreement as a result of such 
appearance, merchandising or commercial tie-ups or tie-ins. For the avoidance of doubt, there shall be no royalties payable on any merchandise sold 
together with Products as a commercial tie-in or tie-up. 
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C.           Licensee shall not have any right to use the Kardashian Image in connection with any sale or barter of merchandise other than 

Products. 
  
D.           Each Party acknowledges and agrees that (i) all copyrights and trademarks used in connection herewith that are owned by a 

Party shall be and remain the sole and complete property of such Party; (ii) the other Party shall not at any time acquire or claim any right, title or interest 
of any nature whatsoever in any such copyright or trademark by virtue of this Agreement; (iii) the other Party shall not contest or assist others to contest 
the validity of all such copyrights and trademarks; and (iv) it will not incur or create any expenses chargeable to the other Party. 

  
E.           Licensee shall be the owner of all right, title and interest in or to any and all Product IP Rights. 
  
F.           Each of the Licensors covenants and agrees during the Term that it shall, and shall cause each of the Kardashians to, create 

and maintain a hyperlink from their respective primary websites to the website created by or for Licensee to market and sell the Products. 
  
G.           The Licensors shall, and shall cause the Kardashians to, use commercially reasonable efforts when possible and appropriate, in 

the Kardashians’ sole discretion, to mention the Products during public appearances. 
  
H.           The Licensors shall, and shall cause the Kardashians to, comply with all endorsements and celebrity spokespersons, it being 

understood that any action taken in compliance with such rules shall not be a breach of any term or condition hereunder (including but not limited to if 
such rules would restrict or prohibit a Kardashian from performing as requested by Licensee or as otherwise required hereunder). 
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I.            Licensee shall operate its business in accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations. 

  
11.           Right of Termination by the Licensors. The Licensors shall have the right, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies the 

Licensors may have, to terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice to Licensee if: 
  
A.           Licensee is adjudicated as insolvent or declares bankruptcy; 
  
B.           Licensee fails in any obligation to make timely payments due the Licensors pursuant to this Agreement and any such payment 

is not received within ten (10) business days after Licensee’s receipt of the written notice of such failure from the Licensors; 
  
C.           Licensee breaches any other material term of this Agreement, which breach Licensee has failed to cure within thirty (30) days 

after Licensee’s receipt of the Licensors’ written notice of such breach; 
  
D.           Licensee makes or publishes any statement (or allows the making or publishing of any statement) which disparages or defames 

any of the Licensors or the Kardashians (or any of their family members) or subjects any of the Kardashians or any of their family members to ridicule, 
contempt or scorn; 

  
E.           Licensee discontinues any material portion of its business operations for a period of at least sixty (60) days, other than for 

ordinary course seasonal stoppages or any such discontinuation that is the result of a Force Majeure Event. 
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F.           The Licensors exercise the Option (as provided in Section 5.G) and Licensee and/or Parent Company, as the case may be, fail to 

enter into the Option Documents within the time stated in such Section 5.G; provided, that the Licensors shall not have the right to terminate pursuant to 
this Section 11.F if Licensee/and or Parent Company, as the case may be, have acted in good faith to deliver, finalize and execute the Option Documents, 
which shall reasonably reflect the terms contemplated in Section 5.G and Appendix II attached hereto within the thirty (30) day time period contemplated 
in Section 5.G. 

  
G.           Upon termination by the Licensors, in addition to any other remedies available to the Licensors, Licensee shall accelerate and 

immediately pay to the Licensors, collectively, any unpaid Guaranteed Minimum Royalty Payments and any Royalty Payments that are due or would have 
become due during the remainder of the Term had the Agreement not been earlier terminated. 

  
12.           Right of Termination by Licensee. Licensee shall have the right, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies Licensee may have, 

to terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice to the Licensors if: 
  
A.           Any Kardashian commits any act that results in an indictment, or conviction of a felony or results in a charge, indictment, or 

conviction of any misdemeanor involving a controlled substance; 
  
B.           Any Kardashian (i) engages in conduct that brings her into public disrepute, contempt, scandal or ridicule, or that shocks or 

offends (“Offending Conduct”) a significantly sized group of the community and (ii) such conduct results in a material number of orders for Products 
being cancelled. Licensee agrees and acknowledges that the content of  “Keeping up with the Kardashians,” “Khloe and Lamar” and “Kourtney and Kim 
take New York” is not to be considered Offending Conduct hereunder; 

  

  

  
20



  
C.           Any Kardashian dies. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of the death of any of the Kardashians, Licensee may elect 

not to terminate this Agreement, but instead may continue this Agreement on the same terms and conditions contained herein other than a 
corresponding ratable reduction in the Guaranteed Minimum Royalty Payments due hereunder (i.e., a * reduction in all Guaranteed Minimum Royalty 
Payments if any one Kardashian dies); 

  
D.           Any Licensor or Kardashian makes any public statement (written or oral) that materially disparages Licensee; or 
  
E.           Any Licensor breaches any material term of this Agreement, which breach the Licensors fail to cure within thirty (30) days after 

the Licensors’ receipt of Licensee’s written notice of such breach. 
  
F.           Upon termination of this Agreement by Licensee under this Section 12, the Licensors shall not be entitled to any unpaid 

Guaranteed Minimum Royalty Payment or Royalty Payment hereunder, other than amounts earned or accrued to date, including but not limited to the 
Guaranteed Minimum Royalty Payment for the then current Contract Period, prorated through the effective termination date. 

  
13.           No Right to Use Image upon Expiration or Termination. Licensee acknowledges and agrees that upon and after the expiration or earlier 

termination of this Agreement, it shall not be entitled to, and shall not, make use of or deal with any of the rights granted by the Licensors herein 
including right to use the Kardashian Image, or any print advertisements, other advertising or promotional or other materials (or any parts or portions 
thereof) that contain the Kardashian Image, in any manner whatsoever; provided that, for a period of six (6) months following the expiration of this 
Agreement or early termination of this Agreement by Licensee pursuant to Section 12, Licensee shall have the non exclusive right to utilize the 
Kardashian Image in connection with the winding down of its business related to the Products (“Wind Down Period”), which shall include but not be 
limited to the completion of work-in-process and the sell-off of Product inventory in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, including but not 
limited to Licensee’s accounting for sales of Products and the payment of Royalties pursuant to Section 5. At the conclusion of the Wind Down Period, 
the Licensors shall have the right, but not the obligation, to purchase any remaining Product inventory at cost and at a fair and reasonable discount for 
any such inventory which is not current or in first quality condition. 

  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
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14.           Representations and Warranties; Indemnity. 

  
A.           Each of the Parties hereby represents and warrants to the other Party as follows: 

  
(i)             It has been duly organized and is validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction in which it 

was organized; 
  
(ii)            It has the power and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement; 
  
(iii)           This Agreement has been duly authorized by all necessary action on its part and has been duly executed and 

delivered on its behalf by an individual authorized to do so; and 
  
(iv)           It has not entered into any other agreement, contract or obligation, and is not subject to any order, decree or ruling, 

which would prohibit or constrain it from performing its obligations under this Agreement. 
  
B.           Each of the Licensors represents and warrants that (i) it has all rights necessary to enter into this Agreement and grant the 

rights to Licensee granted herein and (ii) the Kardashian Image itself will not infringe any trademark or other intellectual property rights of any third party 
(it being understood that the Licensors are not making any representations or warranties as to the use of the Kardashian Image when combined with 
other creative materials or intellectual property). 
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C.           Licensee agrees to defend, indemnify and hold each of the Licensors and Kardashians and their respective affiliates and 

associates (as such terms are defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) and all their respective officers, directors, employees, agents, 
and attorneys (collectively, the “Indemnified Parties”) harmless from and against any and all claims of third parties (and liabilities, judgments, penalties, 
losses, costs, damages and expenses resulting therefrom, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) whether or not a suit is instituted and if 
instituted, whether at the trial or appellate level, arising from (i) the production, distribution, or other use by Licensee of the Kardashian Image in 
connection with Products pursuant to this Agreement, including claims of false advertising, (ii) a breach by Licensee of any warranty, representation, 
covenant, promise or undertaking made by Licensee hereunder, (iii) the development, manufacture, distribution, marketing, promotion, sale or other 
exploitation of the Products or the purchase or use thereof by any consumer; (iv) any claims or representations made by Licensee, (v) the operation of 
Licensee’s business, and/or (vi) any acts or omissions by Licensee, including but not limited to any violations of law; except, in the case of each of 
clauses (i)-(vi), for any such claims only to the extent arising from the gross negligence or willful acts of one or more of the Indemnified Parties or a breach 
of the Licensors’ representations or warranties contained in Section 14.B. Licensee’s obligations set forth above are in addition to any other liability it 
may otherwise have hereunder and shall be independent of its obligations under any other provision of this Agreement. 
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D.           The Licensors agree, jointly and severally, to defend, indemnify and hold Licensee, and its respective affiliates and associates 

(as such terms are defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) and their respective officers, directors, members, managers, employees, 
agents, and attorneys harmless from and against any and all claims of third parties (and liabilities, judgments, penalties, losses, costs, damages and 
expenses resulting therefrom, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) whether or not a suit is instituted and if instituted, whether at the trial or 
appellate level, arising out of or in connection with any breach of any of the Licensors’ or Kardashians’ representations, warranties, obligations, 
covenants or agreements herein, except in each case to the extent any such claim arises from the gross negligence, intentional misconduct or violation of 
law or breach of any representation, warranty or covenant by any of the indemnified parties. The Licensor’s obligations set forth above are in addition to 
any other liability it may otherwise have hereunder and shall be independent of its obligations under any other provision of this Agreement. 

  
15.           Insurance. Licensee shall, throughout the Term of this Agreement and for at least two (2) years thereafter, obtain and maintain at its 

own cost and expense from a qualified insurance company acceptable to Licensor a general liability insurance policy including, without limitation, 
coverage for products liability and personal injury, naming each of the Licensors and the Kardashians as additional named insured. Such policy shall 
provide adequate protection with a limit of liability (in addition to costs of defense) of not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence 
and Four Million Dollars ($4,000,000.00) in the aggregate, insuring, without limitation, against any and all claims, demands and causes of action arising 
out of any defects or failure to perform, alleged or otherwise, of Products or any material used in connection therewith or any use thereof. A certificate of 
insurance evidencing such coverage shall be furnished to the Licensors within ten (10) days of the full execution of this Agreement. The insurance 
described in this Section is understood to be primary and is not subject to contribution by any other insurance which may be available to the Licensors. 
Such insurance policy shall provide that the insurer shall not terminate or materially modify such policy or remove any of the Licensors or Kardashians as 
additional insureds without prior written notice to the Licensors at least thirty (30) days in advance thereof. Failure to timely obtain insurance shall be 
considered a material breach of this Agreement and shall give Licensors the right to terminate the agreement on written notice to Licensee, if Licensee has 
failed to cure such breach within ten (10) days of Licensee’s receipt of notice thereof. 
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16.           Force Majeure.  If either Party is prevented from carrying out any of its obligations hereunder (other than payment of money) as a result 

of any act of God, strike, fire, storm, riot, war (whether declared or not), pandemic, epidemic, embargo, import control, international restriction, shortage of 
transport facilities, any order of any international or national authority, any court order, any requirement of any regional or municipal or other competent 
authority, or in any other circumstances whatsoever which are not within the reasonable control of such Party, that Party shall be deemed to have its 
obligations to perform hereunder suspended to the extent that and for as long as it is so prevented from so performing by the event of Force Majeure. To 
that extent, this Agreement shall be deemed to have been suspended for the period concerned. If such suspension continues for a period of longer than 
90 consecutive days, the other Party may terminate this Agreement by written notice. 

  
17.           Good Faith and Fair Dealing, The Parties agree that their rights, duties and obligations will be subject to a duty of good faith and fair 

dealing on the part of each Party. 
  
18.           Waiver. The failure at any time of either Party to demand of the other strict performance of any of the terms, covenants or conditions 

set forth herein shall not be construed as a continuing waiver or relinquishment thereof, and either Party may, at any time, demand strict and complete 
performance by the other of such terms, covenants and conditions. No waiver is valid unless in writing signed by both Parties. 

  
19.           Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be declared illegal, invalid, void or unenforceable by any judicial or administrative 

authority, the validity of any other provision and of the entire Agreement shall not be affected thereby so long as the material benefits of the Agreement 
as bargained for by each Party remain substantially unimpaired. 

  
20.           Section Headings. Section and other headings and captions contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and are in no 

way intended to describe, interpret, define or limit the scope, extent or intent of the Agreement or any provision hereof. 
  
21.           Payments. Licensee may elect to have payments made by check, wire transfer or bank transfer. Past due payments hereunder (including 

the making of underpayments) shall bear interest at the lesser of 1.5% per month, or the maximum interest rate allowable by law; such interest shall accrue 
from the date of non-payment. 
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22.           Notices. Any notice, request, request for approval, instruction or other document to be given hereunder by any Party to another Party 

hereto shall be in writing, and shall be deemed duly given and received when same is delivered personally or when sent by confirmed fax, email, or three 
(3) days after same is sent by air courier, as follows: 

  
(a)           If to Licensee: 

  
BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding 
1945 Euclid St. 
Santa Monica, CA 90404 
Fax: 310-581-4652 
Attn: Nicole Ostoya 

  

  
(b)           If to the Licensors: 
  

Khlomoney, Inc. 
  

* 
  

Kimsaprincess, Inc. 
  

* 
  

2Die4Kourt, Inc. 
  

* 
  

  

  

  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
  

  

   With a copy to: Eisner, Kahan & Gorry, 
    a Professional Corporation 
    9601 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 700 
    Beverly Hills, CA 90210 
    Fax: 310-855-3201 
    Attn: Joseph O’Hara, Esq. 

   With a copy to: * 

   and 

   * 
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Any Party may change the address to which notices are to be sent by giving notice of such change to the other Parties in the manner herein provided for 
giving notice. 

  
23.           Third Parties. Except as specifically set forth or referred to herein, nothing herein express or implied is intended or shall be construed to 

confer upon or give to any person, corporation or other entity other than the Parties hereto and their successors or assigns, any rights or remedies under 
or by reason of this Agreement. 

  
24.           Assignment/Delegation.  Except as otherwise provided elsewhere in this Agreement, none of the Licensors or Licensee shall assign or 

delegate their rights and obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party, such consent can be withheld for any 
reason whatsoever; however, each of the Licensors shall have the right to assign its financial benefits hereunder without the necessity of obtaining 
Licensee’s consent, and Licensee hereby consents to such assignment, provided that the Licensors continue to perform their obligations hereunder. 
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25.           Entire Agreement. As of the effective date hereof, this Agreement shall constitute the entire understanding between Licensors and 

Licensee and cannot be altered or modified except by an agreement in writing, signed by both Parties. Any previous agreements between the Parties shall 
have no further force and effect. 

  
26.           Confidentiality. Except as may be required by any applicable law, government order or regulation, or by order or decree of any court of 

competent jurisdiction, the Licensors and Licensee agree to hold all non-public, proprietary or confidential information and materials provided to each 
other, and the terms of this Agreement strictly confidential and shall not disclose such information and materials to any third party (except to a Party’s 
business advisors, legal counsel, tax advisors, and the like and, with respect to the terms of this Agreement only, as reasonably required of Licensee, to 
any third party retailers of the Products) without the prior written consent of the other Party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, with regards to obligations 
of nondisclosure or limitations as to use, no Party hereto shall have any liability to the other Party with respect to the disclosure and/or use of any 
information or materials which one Party can establish to have (i) become publicly known without breach of this Agreement; (ii) been known to such 
Party, without any obligation of confidentiality, prior to disclosure of such information by the other Party; or (iii) been received in good faith by such 
Party from a third party source having the right to so disclose. No press releases, publicity statements or other information regarding this Agreement 
shall be released by any Party without the prior written approval of the other Party. 
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27.           Dispute Resolution/Governing Law. 

  
A.           This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California applicable to 

agreements made and to be performed within such state. All claims, disputes and other matters arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be 
submitted to, and determined by, binding arbitration in accordance with Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services (JAMS) and, subject to the next 
sentence, in accordance with its Commercial Rules as then in effect if the Parties are unable to settle the matter through good faith negotiations within 30 
days of the date from which such claim, dispute or other matter arose. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, if the amount in dispute is less 
than $3,000,000, such arbitration shall be before a single arbitrator; if the amount in dispute is at least $3,000,000, the arbitration shall be before a panel of 
three (3) arbitrators. The arbitration shall take place in Los Angeles, California. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall restrict or limit a Party 
from seeking or obtaining injunctive relief as provided herein. 

  
B.           The Parties hereto recognize that a breach of any of the covenants and agreements contained herein regarding the licensing or 

use of the Kardashian Image will cause irreparable harm and that monetary damages alone will not be sufficient to cure any resultant harm to the injured 
Party. Therefore, the Parties agree that in the event of any actual or threatened breach by the Licensors, on the one hand, or by Licensee, on the other 
hand, during the Term hereof or after the termination or expiration of the term hereof, of any of the covenants and agreements contained herein relating to 
the licensing or use of the Kardashian Image, the other shall be entitled, in addition to such other rights and remedies which may be available to such 
party or parties at law or in equity, to injunctive relief, without being required to give any notice, to show actual damages, or to post any bond or other 
security, against any such actual or threatened breach. 
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28.           Survival. Notwithstanding termination or expiration of this Agreement, for any 
  
reason whatsoever, the conditions and provisions of this Agreement contained in Sections 3.B, 5.C-E, 11.F, 12.F, 13, 14.C-D, 15, and 18-31 shall 

continue and survive. 
  
29.           Authorization. Each of the Parties signing this Agreement represents and warrants to the other that he/she has the authority to enter 

into this Agreement on behalf of the Parties they represent. 
  
30.           Interpretation. In the event any claim is made by either Party relating to any conflict, omission or ambiguity in this Agreement, no 

presumption or burden of proof or persuasion shall be implied by virtue of the fact that this Agreement was prepared by or at the request of a particular 
Party or his, her or its counsel. 

  
31.           Multiple Counterparts and Facsimile Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. This Agreement may be executed by facsimile and such signature shall 
be valid, legal and binding. 

 
Remainder of page left intentionally blank 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed and delivered by their proper and duly authorized 

officers as of the day and year first above written. 
  

  

  

BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding  
     
By: /s/ Nicole Ostoya  

  Name:  Nicole Ostoya  
  Title:  CEO  
     
2Die4Kourt, Inc.  
     
By: /s/ Kourtney Kardashian  
  Name:  Kourtney Kardashian  
  Title:  Principal  
     
Kimsaprincess, Inc.  
     
By: /s/ Kim Kardashian  
  Name:  Kim Kardashian  
  Title:  Principal  
     
Khlomoney, Inc.  
     
By:  /s/Khloe Kardashian  
  Name:  Khloe Kardashian  
  Title:  Principal  
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Exhibit A 

  
Retailers 

  
* 
  
  
  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
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Exhibit B 

  
THIRD PARTY MANUFACTURER’S AGREEMENT 

  
This Third Party Manufacturer’s Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this ______________ day of ___, 2012, by and between 

___________ (“Manufacturer”) and BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding (“Licensee”). 
  

Recitals 
  

A.            WHEREAS, Licensee, on one hand, and 2Die4Kourt, Inc., Kimsaprincess, Inc. and Khlomoney, Inc. (collectively, the “Licensors”), on 
the other hand, entered in that certain License Agreement dated May 9, 2012 (the “License Agreement”), pursuant to which Licensors licensed to 
Licensee the right to manufacture and sell certain goods bearing certain assets of Licensors (the “Property”); 
  

B.             WHEREAS, the Licensors are owned by Kourtney Kardashian, Kim Kardashian and Khloe Kardashian, respectively (collectively, the 
“Kardashians,” and each individually, a “Kardashian”); and 
  

C.             WHEREAS, Licensee wishes to have Manufacturer manufacture the goods bearing the Property (the “Products”), and Manufacturer 
wishes to accept such obligation pursuant to the terms hereof. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows: 
  

Agreement 
  
1.              Definitions. 
  

(a)           “Products”. The “Products” shall consist of foundation, concealer, primer, powder, blush, bronzer, face tints, gel blush, eye shadow 
and powder, eye liner, mascara, highlighter or shimmer, lip liner, lip gloss, lipstick, lip tints, palettes, body shimmer, cosmetic brushes, tweezers, 
foundation prepping facial masks, makeup remover and makeup removing wipes, nail polish, nail polish remover, cosmetic tools and edible body creams, 
body preparations, and massage oils. 
  

(b)           “Property”. The “Property” shall consist of the trademark “Kardashian” and each Kardashian’s name, fame, nickname, initials, 
autograph, voice, video, film portrayals or performances, photograph, likeness and image or facsimile image, and any other likeness of, or means of 
endorsement by, each Kardashian used in connection with the advertising, promotion and sale of goods, products or services. 
  
2.             Manufacture. Manufacturer shall manufacture for Licensee the Products pursuant to the specifications provided to Manufacturer. Manufacturer 
shall not manufacture or produce any items bearing any of the Property unless such production is exclusively for, and only delivered pursuant to the 
written directions of Licensee. Manufacturer agrees to carry out its obligations in accordance with, and shall be bound by, any and all applicable terms of 
the License Agreement. Manufacturer may not sublicense the Property or delegate any of its obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of 
Licensee. 
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3.             Inspection. 
  

(a)           Licensee or any of its agents or representatives may inspect the Products, and any packing or packaging materials (collectively, the 
“Materials”) at any stage of any production, assembly, packaging, boxing or shipping process, and as well as personally pull samples from any 
production, assembly, packaging or boxing line during all shifts at any of the manufacturing facilities utilized for the production of Products and/or 
Materials, and/or Manufacturer’s places of business (the “Production Facilities”). 
  

(b)           Licensee or any of its agents or representatives shall have access to the Production Facilities during any scheduled production time for 
the Products and/or Materials, and all stages of their production. A suitable inspection station shall be made available at the Production Facilities in order 
for Licensee or its agents or representatives, as the case may be, to accomplish the inspection as herein described, and Manufacturer shall make available 
its employees and agents for consultation to assist in this inspection program. 
  

(c)           This inspection right may be exercised from time to time and at any time throughout the term of this Agreement. 
  

(d)           No such inspection or any approval therefrom by Licensee or any of its agents shall be or constitute a waiver of Manufacturer’s 
responsibility to make all Products and/or Materials in accordance with the specifications delivered to it by Licensee, and Manufacturer shall remain liable 
for any defect in or non-conformity to the specifications and all damage caused thereby. 
  

(e)           Should Licensee or any of its agents or representatives determine that any of the Materials fail to conform to the specifications 
provided by Licensee, it shall be the obligation of Manufacturer to bring such Products and/or Materials into conformity and no such Products and/or 
Materials shall be distributed unless and until they comply with the specifications therefore in all material respects. 
  
4.             Termination of License Agreement. Manufacturer understands that the right of Licensee to contract for the manufacture of Products bearing the 
Property is based upon the rights it derives under the License Agreement. Licensee may deliver written notice to Manufacturer of the termination or 
expiration of the License Agreement. Manufacturer shall immediately thereafter cease production and distribution of the Products and, within three (3) 
business days thereafter, shall prepare a detailed accounting of its workings with Licensee. Such accounting shall detail, among other information, the 
quantity and design/style of all finished product, the location of such finished product (i.e., delivered (to whom and when), in inventory, in progress (at 
what stage)), the amount of raw materials ordered, delivered and used, the location of all drawings, materials or other items bearing the Property, and such 
other information as may be requested. The information in such report shall be certified by an officer of Manufacturer as being true and correct. A copy 
of this report, as certified, shall be delivered to Licensee. 
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5.             Rights. Manufacturer hereby acknowledges that nothing herein shall be construed to convey to Manufacturer any rights in the Products, the 
Property, or to any name, logo, or other identifier of any of the Licensors. Additionally, Manufacturer shall not make or sell any item bearing any name, 
logo or other identifier of any of the Licensors, other than as specifically allowed for herein. 
  
6.              Compliance With Laws. Manufacturer shall comply, at its own expense, with all laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and other requirements of all 
governmental units or agencies having jurisdiction, whether in the place of manufacture or distribution, including, without limitation, laws, rules, 
regulations or other requirements concerning child or forced labor, fair labor standards, and product labeling. Manufacturer shall provide Licensee with 
written proof of compliance upon Licensee’s written request. 
  
7.              Confidentiality. Manufacturer covenants and agrees to keep the terms and existence of this Agreement confidential. 
  
8.              Indemnification; Insurance. 
  

(a)           Licensee agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Licensee and each of the Licensors and their respective officers, directors, shareholders, 
and affiliates (collectively, the “Indemnified Parties”) harmless from and against any and all claims of third parties (and liabilities, judgments, penalties, 
losses, costs, damages and expenses resulting therefrom, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) whether or not a suit is instituted and if 
instituted, whether at the trial or appellate level, arising from (i) any breach of this Agreement, (ii) the manufacture of the Products or use thereof by any 
consumer; or (iii) any violations of applicable law by Manufacturer. 
  

(b)           Upon Licensee’s request, Manufacturer shall provide Licensee with a certificate of insurance or statement of coverage issued by 
Manufacturer’s insurance carrier evidencing commercial general liability insurance is in effect during the term of this Agreement. Such policy shall (i) 
name Licensee, each of the Licensors, and their respective parent companies, subsidiaries, affiliates, directors, officers and shareholders as additional 
insureds; and (ii) provide minimum aggregate coverage that is customary for manufacturers of products similar to the Products. 
  
9.           Notice. All notices to be given or delivered hereunder to a party shall be in writing, shall be delivered by hand, by courier or sent via facsimile, 
and shall be deemed to have been given or delivered to the recipient as of: (1) the date of delivery by hand or by courier, if such delivery is made during 
regular business hours, recipient’s time, on a business day, but if not, then on the recipient’s next business day thereafter; or (2) upon sending of a 
facsimile to the facsimile number of recipient where such facsimile is sent during regular business hours, recipient’s time, on a business day, but if not, 
then on the recipient’s next business day thereafter. Each party’s address for notices is set forth under its signature to this Agreement. 
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10.           Miscellaneous. 
  

(a)           Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the state of California. The parties 
consent to the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of California and hereby waive all objections to such jurisdiction and venue. 
  

(b)           Modification/Assignment. This Agreement may not be modified or assigned, in whole or in part unless such modification or 
assignment is authorized in writing by all parties. 
  

(c)           Severability. If any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement are held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, in whole or in part, 
the same will not, in any respect, affect the validity, legality or enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement. 
  

(d)           Attorneys’ Fees. In the event that any action is brought hereunder to enforce any of the rights or obligations herein, the prevailing 
party shall recover, in addition to any other recovery that may be awarded, its reasonable attorney’s fees and litigation costs. 
  

(e)            Injunctive Relief. The parties hereby agree and acknowledge that a breach of any material term, condition or provision of this 
Agreement that provides for an obligation other than the payment of money would result in severe and irreparable injury to the other party, which injury 
could not be adequately compensated by an award of money damages, and the parties therefore agree and acknowledge that they shall be entitled to 
seek injunctive relief in the event of any breach of any material term, condition or provision of this Agreement, or to enjoin or prevent such a breach, 
including without limitation an action for specific performance hereof, and the parties hereby irrevocably consent to the issuance of any such injunction. 
The parties further agree that no bond or surety shall be required in connection therewith. 
  

(f)             Survivability. All representations, warranties, and obligations capable of surviving the termination or expiration of this Agreement shall 
so survive. 
  

(g)            Relationships. Licensee and Manufacturer are independent contractors, and nothing 
contained herein shall be construed to constitute Licensee and Manufacturer as licensor/licensee, employer/employee, principal/agent, or any other 
similar relationship. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Manufacturer’s Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized 

representatives as of the day and year first above written. 
  

  
  

  

  BOLDFACE Licensing and Branding  
       
  By:     

    Name:  
    Title:  
       
  Address for Notices:  
     
  [Name of Manufacturer]  
       
  By:     
    Name:  
    Title:  
       
  Address for Notices:  
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Appendix I 

  
Parent Company Pro Forma Cap Table 
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Capitalization 

  
Minimum PPO 

 

  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
  

  

    Actual     Fully Diluted  

    Shares    
% 

Ownership     Shares    
% 

Ownership  
Newco    *      *%    *      *%
Newco - Additional                            

Celeb Licenses                  *      *%
Bridge Notes    *      *%    *      *%
Bridge Warrants                  *      *%
PPO Shares    *      *%    *      *%
PPO Warrants                  *      *%
Brokers’ Bridge                          *%

Warrants                  *      *%
Brokers’ PPO                          *%
Warrants                  *      *%
Pubco Pre-Merger                          *%

Stockholders    *      *%    *      *%
EIP (future issuances)                  *      *%

Total    *     100.0%    *     100.0%
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Maximum PPO 

  

  
**Assumes no sales pursuant to the Over-Allotment Option. 
  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
  

  

    Actual     Fully Diluted  

    Shares    
% 

Ownership     Shares     ownership  
Newco    *      *%    *     *%
Newco - Additional                            

Celeb Licenses                  *     *%
Bridge Notes    *      *%    *     *%
Bridge Warrants                  *     *%
PPO Shares    *      *%    *     *%
PPO Warrants                  *     *%
Brokers’ Bridge                            

Warrants                  *     *%
Brokers’ PPO                            
Warrants                  *     *%
Pubco Pre-Merger                            

Stockholders    *      *%    *     *%
EIP (future issuances)                  *     *%

Total    *     100.0%    *     100.0%
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Appendix II 

  
Personal Services 
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and Exchange Commission. 
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  • Social media services (including Twitter, Facebook and website/blog posts) in addition to those provided in Section 4.A to market and promote 
the Products, subject to a social media calendar mutually approved by the Parties, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed 
or conditioned. 

  • Reasonable access to user information for all of Licensors’ websites for the use of promoting Products with an agreement to use of the 
Kardashians’ names for SEO and SEM; provided that the Parties will cooperate with Buzz Media to create online promotions, events and 
postings. 

  • In exchange for the Floating Photo Day under Section 4.A, the Licensors shall cause each Kardashian to appear at * additional Production Day 
or * additional Media Day, as determined by Licensee in its sole discretion, subject to the professional availability of the Kardashians; provided, 
that if the Parties are unable to agree upon a day on which all of the Kardashians are available, then as long as Licensee agrees to such date, 
none of the Licensors shall be in breach of such requirement if less than all of the Kardashians participate in such additional Production Day or 
Media Day, and any such participation by less than all of the Kardashians satisfies all of the Licensors’ requirements pursuant to this 
paragraph. 

  • The Licensors shall cause each of the Kardashians to participate in up to * meetings during Contract Period One via videoconference (Skype or 
otherwise) with * who will be effecting the transactions relating to * by the Parent Company (the “* Meetings”). Participation in the * Meetings 
may take the form of scripted presentations, Q&A sessions, or such other form mutually agreed to by the Parties. 



Exhibit 10.34 
  

BOLDFACE licensing + branding 
  

LICENSE AGREEMENT 
  

  
BUSINESS TERMS 
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and Exchange Commission. 
  

LICENSOR:   LICENSEE: 
Pez-Mar, Via Mar Productions Inc. 
(“Licensor”) 
f/s/a Mario Lopez (“Artist”) 

  BOLDFACE licensing + branding 
(“Licensee”) 

Address: 
  
* 
  
Fax No.: 

  Address: 
1309 Pico Blvd. 
Suite #A 
Santa Monica, CA 90405 
Attention:  President 
Fax No.: 

Wire Transfer Instructions: 
Account Name: 
Bank: 
  
Routing # 
Account # 

    

1.   Effective Date: July 11, 2012. 

2.   Licensed Marks: “Licensed Mark(s)” shall mean “Mario Lopez”, “Mario Lopez Rated M”, “Mario Lopez Malo” (collectively, the “Identified 
Marks”), or other mutually agreed upon marks owned by, or applied for by or on behalf of, Licensor as designated in writing by the parties. 
Notwithstanding any other provision herein contained, the parties acknowledge that Licensor is in the process of applying for U.S. trademark 
registration of the Identified Marks in the categories of the Licensed Products and Restricted Products, and no representations and warranties 
are made with respect to the trademark status of the Identified Marks in such categories. 

3.   Licensed Products: “Licensed Products” shall mean, collectively, men’s fragrance, women’s fragrance, the Restricted Products, and any other 
toiletries or grooming accessories containing, bearing or otherwise displaying the Licensed Mark(s) agreed to in writing by Licensor and 
Licensee. “Restricted Products” shall mean deodorant, after shave, shave cream, bath gel, body wash, body sprays, body lotions, body creams. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section 3, if: (a) Licensee shall have failed to deliver digital representations of the 
proposed packaging and branding of any category of the Restricted Products by May 11, 2013, or (b) Licensee shall have failed to design, 
develop and present to Licensor for its approval any category  of Restricted Products on or prior to December 31, 2013, then, in either case, 
Licensor shall have the right to rescind the license granted herein only insofar as it relates to such category of Restricted Products. Licensee 
further agrees that if Licensee abandons its development or commercial exploitation of any category of Restricted Products during the Term (as 
defined below), then Licensee shall give prompt written notice thereof to Licensor and such category of Restricted Product shall automatically 
cease to be included in the definition of “Restricted Products.” 
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4.   Territory: The United States and its territories and possessions, including Puerto Rico and military bases abroad, Canada, Mexico, and “duty-
free” zones and shops. 

5.   Channels of Distribution: Traditional retail (i.e., “brick and mortar”), Internet and wireless, catalog, television (including, without limitation, 
home shopping), and any other channels of distribution agreed to in writing by Licensor and Licensee. 

6.   Term: The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date hereof and, unless terminated in accordance with Section 6 of the Terms and 
Conditions or extended as described below, shall expire on the last day of Contract Year Three (the “Term”). The Term may be extended or 
renewed only upon mutual agreement of the parties. 

   a. Contract Year One: * 
   b. Contract Year Two: * 
   c. Contract Year Three: * 

7.   Royalty Rate: Licensee agrees to pay to Licensor a royalty of *% of Net Sales (the “Royalty”). For purposes of this Agreement, “Net Sales” 
means the actual gross sales price (exclusive of any sales or use taxes) invoiced by Licensee (“GSP”) during the term or any Sell-Off Period (as 
defined in Section 6.5 of the Terms and Conditions) on all wholesale shipments of Licensed Products by Licensee or any of Licensee’s affiliated, 
associated or subsidiary companies (collectively, “Affiliates”), less only amounts credited for returns, exchanges, reasonable advertising 
allowances (but only to the extent not already factored into the GSP), and allowances for uncollectible accounts. 

    a. Advance: As an inducement for Licensor to enter into this Agreement, Licensee agrees to pay Licensor (i) * no later than fourteen (14) 
days after the date hereof, and (ii) within one hundred eighty (180) days after the date of this Agreement an additional *. The amounts 
referred to in clauses (i) and (ii) are collectively referred to herein as the “Advance.” The Advance shall be a non-refundable advance 
against the Royalties payable pursuant to this Agreement and shall be recoupable as follows: * shall be recouped out of the 
Guaranteed Minimum Royalty payable with respect to Contract Year 1, * shall be recouped out of the Guaranteed Minimum Royalty 
payable with respect to Contract Year 2, and the balance shall be recouped out of the Guaranteed Minimum Royalty payable with 
respect to Contract Year 3, as set forth below. Without limiting the generality of Licensor’s termination rights stated elsewhere in this 
Agreement, if either (x) Licensee elects not to use any of the Identified Marks on the Licensed Products or (y) Licensor and Licensee 
are unable, after mutual good faith efforts, to agree upon any Licensed Marks, in either case, by September 15, 2012, then Licensor shall 
have the right to terminate this Agreement without any obligation to refund any amounts payable to it by such date. 
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There shall be no cross-collateralization between Contract Years for purposes of computing Royalties payable (i.e., each Contract Year 
shall represent a separate accounting period for purposes of determining whether the applicable Guaranteed Minimum Royalties have 
been exceeded for the applicable Contract Year, and there shall be no carrying forward of unearned Royalties from one Contract Year 
into the succeeding Contract Year). 
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    b. Guaranteed Minimum Royalties: During the Term, Licensee shall pay to Licensor the Guaranteed Minimum Royalties opposite the 
respective Contract Years: 

Contract Year Guaranteed Minimum Royalty 
1 * 
2 * 
3 * 

    c. Timely Payment: Timely payment in full to Licensor of the amounts set forth in this paragraph 7 is of the essence hereof. 

8.   Additional Terms: During the Term, Licensor will cause Artist to participate in the promotion and marketing of the Licensed Products, with the 
following commitments being the minimum requirements during each Contract Year: 

   a. Artist shall participate in up to * marketing days and * photo shoot days, in each case, up to * per day (inclusive of grooming, 
wardrobe and breaks), at times and locations mutually agreed upon in writing by Licensor and Licensee; 

   b. Artist shall personally provide * per month through his certified * account; 

     c.   Artist shall personally place * posts per month on his certified *; 

      d.   Artist shall use commercially reasonable efforts, when reasonably possible and appropriate, as determined by Artist in his reasonable 
discretion, to promote the Licensed Products during any interview or appearance Artist grants or makes in any media format existing as 
of the date of this Agreement, including, without limitation, print, television, radio, satellite, mobile, Internet, and any other media format 
that is conceived of or implemented after the date of this Agreement. 

      e.   Artist shall market and promote the Licensed Products each month on * in accordance with a monthly promotional calendar mutually 
approved by Licensor and Licensee prior to the end of the immediately preceding month. 

      f.   Artist shall use his celebrity status to promote and maximize the sales of the Licensed Products. 
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Licensee shall cause any and all communications that it prepares on behalf of Artist, whether for speaking, print or via the Internet, including 

without limitation, via social media platforms (e.g., Facebook and Twitter), to be in compliance with the Federal Trade Commission’s “Guides Concerning 
the Use of Endorsements and Testimonials in Advertising,” as the same may be amended from time to time. Furthermore, Licensee shall provide Licensor 
with written guidelines (“Licensee Guidelines”) for social media communications that Licensor or Artist posts or transmits without the involvement or 
approval of Licensee (“Artist Communications”). Licensee shall not have any liability for any Artist Communications that do not comply with the 
Licensee Guidelines (a “Noncompliant Communication”), and shall defend, indemnify and hold Licensee, its affiliates and their respective officers, 
directors, stockholders, employees, agents, representatives, successors and assigns harmless from and against any and all demands, claims, liabilities, 
suits, proceedings, damages, losses, judgments and settlements and all related costs and expenses including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and court costs, arising directly or indirectly from any Noncompliant Communications. 
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9.  Advertising Commitment by Licensor: Licensee agrees to budget for, after meaningful consultation with Licensor, and pay towards the 
unaffiliated third-party advertising, promotion and marketing of the Licensed Products for each Contract Year, commencing in Contract Year 
One, the following amounts: Contract Year One — at least *; each Contract Year thereafter — an amount equal to at least *% of the GSP of the 
prior Contract Year. 

10.   General: This Agreement consists of the Business Terms set forth above and the attached Terms and Conditions (collectively, this 
“Agreement”). This Agreement is the entire agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all previous and contemporaneous 
agreements, communications and course of dealings between the parties regarding the subject matter hereof.  The Business Terms shall control 
in the event of a conflict or inconsistency with any of the provisions of the Terms and Conditions. The parties agree to be bound by the terms of 
this Agreement and each party has caused this Agreement to be signed by its duly authorized representative. 

Pez-Mar, Via Mar Productions Inc.   BOLDFACE licensing + branding, a Nevada corporation  
           
By: /s/ Mario Lopez    By: /s/ Nicole Ostoya   
Name:  Mario Lopez   Name:  Nicole Ostoya  
Title: President   Title: President  
Date: 6/11/12   Date: 6/11/12  
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

  

  

  

  

  

  

1.   License. Subject to all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Licensor hereby grants to Licensee, and Licensee accepts, the exclusive 
right and license to use the Licensed Mark(s) on or in connection with the design, manufacture, production, packaging, shipping, distribution, 
marketing, advertising, promotion and sale within the Territory of the Licensed Products within the Channels of Distribution. This license is sub-
licensable as provided in Section 10 of the Terms and Conditions. 

2.   Quality Control. 

       2.1   Goodwill. It is the intent of the parties hereto to establish, through the performance of this Agreement, prestige and goodwill and 
recognition in the minds of the public with respect to the Licensed Mark(s) and, therefore, it is of great importance to each party that 
high quality standards and reputation be established in the Licensed Mark(s) and maintained in the manufacture, marketing, 
distribution and sale of the Licensed Products. Accordingly, all Licensed Products manufactured by or on behalf of the Licensee shall 
be of high quality and workmanship. Accordingly, Licensee agrees to conform at all times to such standards as Licensor may 
reasonably direct, from time to time, including, but not limited to, standards relating to the design, manufacturing, packaging, 
advertising and promotion of the Licensed Products. Licensee shall not knowingly take any action which may be reasonably expected 
to damage the reputation of Licensor or which diminishes and/or tarnishes the image and/or reputation of the Licensed Mark(s). 

       2.2   Approvals. In furtherance of maintaining Licensor’s high quality standards for the Licensed Mark(s), all products, all labels, packaging 
or advertising materials, including, without limitation, point of purchase advertising, bearing the Licensed Mark(s) or Artist’s image or 
likeness or any other personal attributes of Artist (the “Persona”), and all of the Licensed Products shall be subject to Licensor’s prior 
written approval, not to be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned. Licensee shall work with personnel from Licensor and its 
affiliates in performing product design and quality control functions, and Licensor hereby designates Mr. Mark Schulman as the 
Licensor’s primary point of contact for approvals under this Agreement. Licensee shall not commence the advertising, marketing, 
promotion, distribution, sale, offer for sale or exhibition of any Licensed Product not approved in advance by Licensor in writing 
(including email) and any violation of the foregoing shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement by Licensee. Licensor shall 
approve or reject all submissions within ten (10) business days after Licensor’s receipt. If Licensor does not notify Licensee of its 
approval or disapproval within such ten (10) day period, such submission shall be deemed to have been approved by Licensor. 
Licensor’s approval of a submission by Licensee shall not constitute a representation, warranty, agreement or certification of any kind 
by Licensor. Subsequent use of any previously approved submission shall not require any new approval by Licensor. 
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                  (i)   Designs. Licensee shall submit to Licensor, for Licensor’s approval, designs for all Licensed Products and all artwork, 
including the artwork to be used for labels, packaging materials, advertising, publicity and promotional materials for the 
Licensed Products. Licensee shall not publicly display any Licensed Product design or artwork that has not been approved in 
advance by Licensor. Licensee hereby represents, warrants and covenants that the fragrance formula (i.e., the “juice”) shall be 
exclusive to the Licensed Products. 

                  (ii)   Samples. Licensee shall provide Licensor, for Licensor’s approval, prototypes and pre-production samples of all Licensed 
Products, labeling and packaging during the Term. Licensee shall not publicly display any Licensed Product for which a 
sample has not been approved in advance by Licensor. In addition, Licensee shall provide Licensor, for Licensor’s prior 
approval, samples of all advertising, publicity and marketing materials to be utilized by Licensee in connection with the 
Licensed Products. Licensee shall maintain the quality of the Licensed Products and all advertising, publicity and marketing 
materials approved by Licensor consistent with the approved sample, and Licensee shall not materially depart from such 
quality and consistency without Licensor’s prior written approval. 

3.   Intellectual Property Rights. 

       3.1   Ownership. 

                    (i)   Licensee acknowledges that, as between the parties, the Persona, Licensed Mark(s) and all marks derivative of the Licensed 
Mark(s) (“Derivative Marks”) are and shall be owned solely and exclusively by Licensor. Licensee agrees that it will not attack 
or contest the validity of Licensor’s ownership of the Persona or any Licensed Mark(s) or Derivative Marks. Licensee hereby 
acknowledges and agrees that, except as set forth herein, Licensee has no rights, title or interest in or to the Persona, Licensed 
Mark(s) or Derivative Marks and that all use of the Persona, Licensed Mark(s) and Derivative Marks by Licensee shall inure to 
the benefit of Licensor. 

                    (ii)   Licensor acknowledges that, as between the parties, the product formulas, chemical and formulaic characteristics of the 
fragrance and any other tangible or intangible embodiments of the Licensed Products (e.g., the scent, color, concentration and 
other characteristics of the fragrance or other products) and any bottles, stoppers and pumps used in connection with the 
Licensed Products developed by or at the direction of Licensee (collectively, the “Licensee IP”) are and shall be owned solely 
and exclusively by Licensee during the Term. Licensor agrees that it will not attack or contest the validity of Licensee’s 
ownership of any Licensee IP in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Licensor hereby acknowledges and agrees that, 
except as set forth herein, Licensor has no rights, title or interest in or to any Licensee IP and that all use of the Licensee IP in 
connection with the Licensed Products shall inure to the benefit of Licensee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any and all 
packaging materials (including, without limitation, the bottle and stopper) and advertising materials featuring the Persona used 
in connection with the Licensed Products shall be the sole property of Licensor at all times after the Term, and all other 
aspects of the Licensee IP shall remain the sole property of Licensee at all times after the Term. 
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       3.2   Trademark Notices Policy. Licensee shall prominently display on all Licensed Products, labels, packaging material, and in all advertising 
and promotional materials using the Licensed Mark(s), such trademark notices as Licensor shall designate, including “®” or “ TM”

symbols as appropriate, denoting United States trademark registration or common law rights, respectively. 

       3.3   Infringement by Licensed Mark(s). Licensor represents, warrants and covenants that (i) it has all rights necessary to enter into this 
Agreement and grant the rights to Licensee granted herein, (ii) it owns each of the Identified Marks and will own each of the other 
Licensed Mark(s), (iii) it has caused applications for federal registrations of each of the Identified Marks to be filed with the US Patent 
and Trademark Office, and (iv) none of the Licensed Mark(s) will infringe any trademark or other rights of any third party. Licensee shall 
promptly notify Licensor of any legal action that is instituted against Licensee relating to Licensee’s use of any of the Licensed Mark
(s). 

       3.4   Third Party Infringement. Each party shall promptly notify the other party in writing of any counterfeiting of the Licensed Products or 
infringement of the Licensed Mark(s), or any diversion of the Licensed Products from the applicable Channels of Distribution or the 
Territory, of which such party becomes aware. Licensee shall reasonably cooperate with Licensor, at Licensor’s sole cost and expense, 
to the extent commercially reasonable, to protect and defend the Licensed Mark(s). Licensor will obtain and maintain trademark 
registrations for the Licensed Mark(s) for the Licensed Products within the Territory and use commercially reasonable efforts to protect 
and defend the Licensed Mark(s) with respect to the Licensed Products. Licensee shall have the right, but not any obligation, to take 
any action including instituting legal action or taking other actions which it deems necessary in its sole and absolute discretion to 
protect its interest in the Licensed Products. Licensor shall reasonably cooperate with and assist Licensee in any such action. 
Notwithstanding anything in this Section 3.4 to the contrary, if Licensor elects to defend or initiate an action regarding the Licensed 
Mark(s) or Persona (as the Persona relates to the Licensed Products), then Licensee may participate in such defense or action at its 
own cost. 
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4.   Royalty Payments and Accounting. 

        4.1   Royalty Payments. All payments by Licensee hereunder shall be made in U.S. dollars by wire transfer to Licensor in accordance with 
the instructions set forth on the first page of this Agreement or by such other method of payment as Licensor may designate from time 
to time, and shall be made simultaneously with the delivery of the royalty statements described in Section 4.3 of these Terms and 
Conditions. 

        4.2   Books and Records. Licensee shall keep true and accurate books of account and records covering all transactions relating to this 
Agreement and the license granted hereunder. Licensee shall keep such books of account and records available during the Term and 
for not less than three (3) years thereafter. To the extent that Licensor has reasonable inquiries regarding such books and records, 
Licensee shall use commercially reasonable efforts to promptly respond to such inquiries as soon as commercially practicable. 

        4.3   Royalty Statements. Within thirty (30) days following the last day of each calendar quarter during the Term, Licensee shall deliver to 
Licensor, whether or not any Licensed Products are sold, a complete and accurate written report with respect to the most recently 
ended quarter. The report shall set forth, for each of the Licensed Products sold during the quarter and with respect to each purchaser, 
the following information: (i) the number of units sold, (ii) the GSP of each unit sold, (iii) itemized deductions from the GSP, (iv) the 
number of units returned, and (v) the amount of Royalties payable by Licensee. 

        4.4   Audit. During the Term and for two (2) years thereafter, Licensor and its duly authorized representatives shall have the right, upon 
reasonable advance notice, during normal business hours, to examine and copy such books of account and records and all other 
documents and materials in the possession or under the control of Licensee and its successors with respect to the information and 
reports to be maintained and/or provided by Licensee pursuant to this Agreement. Licensee shall promptly pay to Licensor the amount 
of any underpayment of any amount payable by Licensee hereunder revealed by such audit; provided, that in the event of any 
overpayment, Licensee shall have the right to set off such amount against future Royalty payments. The cost and expense of such 
examination shall be borne by Licensor, provided, however, that if the amount of any underpayment identified in such audit exceeds 
five percent (5%) of the amount of Royalties payable by Licensee during the period being audited (a “Material Underpayment”), then 
Licensee shall reimburse Licensor’s reasonable costs and expenses of the audit (in addition to the unpaid Royalties). 

5.   Representations, Warranties and Covenants. 

       5.1   Licensor and Licensee each represent and warrant to the other that: 

      i.   It is duly organized and is validly existing in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction in which it was organized; 
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       ii.   It has the power and is duly authorized to enter into and perform this Agreement; 

        iii.   It has taken all necessary action to authorize the execution and delivery of this Agreement; and 

        iv.   It has not entered into any other agreement, and is not subject to any order, decree or ruling, which would prohibit it from performing 
its obligations under this Agreement. 

        5.2   Licensee covenants to Licensor that: 

                     (i)   It will comply in all material respects with all applicable laws in connection with its performance under this Agreement and with 
all contracts with third parties respecting the Licensed Products and its activities hereunder; 

                       (ii)   Its performance under this Agreement will not infringe on the intellectual property or other rights of any person; provided, 
that this covenant shall not apply to the Licensed Mark(s) and Persona, as those assets are the property of Licensor; 

                        (iii)   The Licensed Products and packaging thereof will comply with applicable laws; 

                        (iv)   Licensee shall cause any and all communications that it prepares on behalf of Licensor or Artist, whether for speaking, print or 
via the Internet, including without limitation, via social media platforms (e.g., Facebook and Twitter), to be in compliance with 
the Licensee Guidelines, and 

                       (v)   Licensee will not test, and will not permit the testing of, any of the Licensed Products on animals. 

6.   Term and Termination. 

       6.1   Termination by Licensor. Licensor shall have the right to terminate this Agreement (without prejudicing any of its other rights under 
this Agreement, at law or in equity) immediately upon written notice to Licensee if: 

                      (i)   Licensee asserts any ownership or proprietary interest in the Licensed Mark(s) or contests Licensor’s ownership rights 
therein; 

                       (ii)   Licensee (a) seeks protection under any bankruptcy, receivership, trust deed, creditors arrangement, composition or 
comparable proceeding, or if any such proceeding is instituted against Licensee and not dismissed within sixty (60) days, (b) 
is declared insolvent, (c) makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or (d) dissolves, is liquidated, ceases to do business 
in the ordinary course or otherwise terminates its business operations; 
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                        (iii)   A custodian, trustee or receiver is appointed for Licensee and is not discharged within thirty (30) days; 

                        (iv)   Licensee or its principals or top management engage in conduct that brings Licensee into public disrepute, contempt, scandal 
or ridicule, or that shocks or offends a significantly sized group of the community; 

                       (v)   Licensor provides three (3) or more Notices of Breach (as defined below) to Licensee relating to Licensee’s breach or default 
of the same provision(s) of this Agreement during any twelve (12) month period of the Term; 

                        (vi)   Licensee materially breaches this Agreement and such breach is not curable by Licensee, as determined in good faith by 
Licensor, and Licensor provides written notice of such breach to Licensee in reasonable detail; or 

                         (vii)   A Material Underpayment has occurred. 

       6.2   Termination by Licensee. Licensee shall have the right to terminate this Agreement (without prejudicing any of its other rights under 
this Agreement, at law or in equity) immediately upon written notice to Licensor if: 

                      (i)   Licensor asserts any ownership or proprietary interest in the Licensee IP or contests Licensee’s ownership rights therein; 

                       (ii)   Artist commits any act that results in an indictment or conviction of a felony, or results in a charge, indictment, or conviction 
of any misdemeanor involving a controlled substance; 

                        (iii)   Artist engages in conduct that brings him into public disrepute, contempt, scandal or ridicule, or that shocks or offends a 
significantly sized group of the community; 

                        (iv)   Licensee provides three (3) or more Notices of Breach (as defined below) to Licensor relating to Licensor’s breach or default of 
the same provision(s) of this Agreement during any twelve (12) month period of the Term; or 

                       (v)   Licensor materially breaches this Agreement and such breach is not curable by Licensor, as determined in good faith by 
Licensee, and Licensee provides written notice of such breach to Licensor in reasonable detail; 
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       6.3   Termination for Breach. This Agreement shall automatically terminate fifteen (15) days after written notice by either party to the other 
party of any breach or default by the other party in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, other than those set forth 
in Section 6.1 or Section 6.2, as applicable, which shall include a detailed description of the breach or default (each, a “Notice of 
Breach”), unless such breach or default is cured within such fifteen (15) day period, provided that if the nature of the breach or default 
is such that it cannot reasonably be cured within such fifteen (15) day period, then the breaching party shall have an additional twenty 
(20) days to cure if such breaching party commences the cure within such fifteen (15) day period, or the breaching party represents to 
the non-breaching party’s satisfaction that the breaching party will commence the cure, and diligently pursues such cure to completion. 
If a material breach is timely cured, the non-breaching party’s Notice of Breach shall be withdrawn, except as it relates to Section 6.1(iv) 
or Section 6.2(iv), as applicable, and this Agreement shall not terminate. 

        6.4   Effect of Termination. Immediately upon expiration or any termination of this Agreement, all rights granted to Licensee hereunder shall 
automatically revert to Licensor, and Licensee (except as specifically permitted in Section 6.5 below) shall cease all use of the Licensed 
Mark(s). Licensee shall immediately cease the manufacture of all Licensed Products on the effective date of termination or expiration, 
except that any work-in-process may be completed at Licensee’s option, to fill orders taken prior to the date of termination or expiration. 

       6.5   Disposal of Stock upon Termination. Upon expiration or any termination of this Agreement, Licensee may, on a non-exclusive basis for 
a period of 120 days (the “Sell-Off Period”), sell only those units of the Licensed Products which are on hand in Licensee’s inventory, 
in transit or in process of manufacture on the effective date of termination or expiration, provided that: (i) Licensee does not increase 
production during the 90-day period immediately preceding the end of the Term in anticipation of the Sell-Off Period, (ii) all such sales 
shall be duly accounted for and shall be subject to all provisions of this Agreement (including, but not limited to, the furnishing of 
statements of Royalties and the payment of Royalties to Licensor), (iii) all sales are made in accordance with the provisions of this 
Agreement, and (iv) no defective or unapproved Licensed Products may be sold; provided further, that in the event of Licensee’s 
termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 6.2 or Section 6.3, (x) the Sell-Off Period shall be perpetual or, at Licensee’s election, 
Licensee shall have the right to sell, and Licensor shall be obligated to purchase, all remaining inventory of Licensed Products and all 
work in process and unfinished raw materials at Licensee’s cost, and (y) the Royalty payable during the Sell-Off Period shall be equal to 
3.5% of Net Sales. Upon expiration of the Sell-Off Period, Licensor shall have the right, for a period of 30 days, to purchase any 
Licensed Products which are not disposed of in accordance with this Section 6.5 at Licensee’s actual production cost. For the 
avoidance of doubt, in the event of the expiration of the Term or any termination of this Agreement other than termination by Licensee 
pursuant to Section 6.2 or Section 6.3, Licensor shall be permitted to enter into a license agreement for Licensed Products with a third 
party as long as Licensor does not, and causes the counterparty to such license agreement not to, make any public announcements 
regarding such license until after the end of the Sell-Off Period. 
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7.   Compliance with Laws. 

       7.1   Licensee shall comply in all material respects with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations in its performance 
under this Agreement. 

       7.2   Licensor shall, and shall cause Artist to, comply with all applicable rules and regulations of the Federal Trade Commission pertaining to 
commercial endorsements and celebrity spokespersons. 

       7.3   Licensee acknowledges and agrees that there shall not be any use by Licensee or its manufacturers of child, forced, prison, or 
indentured labor in connection with the production of Licensed Products. 

       7.4   Licensee covenants and agrees that its and its manufacturers’ practices in connection with the manufacture of Licensed Products shall 
adhere to industry standards relating to ethical sourcing 

8.   Indemnification; Insurance. 

       8.1   Licensee shall defend, indemnify and hold Licensor, its affiliates and their respective officers, directors, stockholders, employees, 
agents, representatives, successors and assigns harmless from and against any and all demands, claims, liabilities, suits, proceedings, 
damages, losses, judgments and settlements and all related costs and expenses including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees 
and court costs, arising directly or indirectly from or in connection with (i) the design, development, manufacture, production, labeling, 
packaging, marketing, distribution, advertising, promotion, sale or use of the Licensed Products (excluding trademark infringement by 
the Licensed Mark(s)), (ii) any alleged or actual defect in any Licensed Product, (iii) infringement of any third party intellectual property 
rights by the Licensed Products (other than arising from the Licensed Mark(s)) or any trademark of Licensee’s (iv) any grossly 
negligent act or omission by Licensee or any sublicensee, manufacturer, distributor, sales agent or subcontractor of Licensee, or (v) 
any failure to timely pay Licensor all amounts due and payable pursuant to paragraph 7 if the Agreement to which these Terms and 
Conditions are attached. If any action or proceeding shall be brought or asserted against Licensor in which indemnity from Licensee 
may be sought under this Section 8, Licensor shall notify Licensee in writing and, at Licensee’s option, Licensee shall promptly assume 
the defense thereof.  Licensor may, at its own expense, be represented by its own counsel in such action or proceeding; provided, that 
such representation does not give Licensor any right to control such defense without Licensee’s prior written approval. 

       8.2   Licensor shall defend, indemnify and hold Licensee, its affiliates and their respective officers, directors, stockholders, employees, 
agents, representatives, successors and assigns harmless from and against any and all demands, claims, liabilities, suits, proceedings, 
damages, losses, judgments and settlements and all related costs and expenses including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees 
and court costs, arising directly or indirectly from a breach of this Agreement (including, without limitation, Section 3.3) by Licensor. If 
any action or proceeding shall be brought or asserted against Licensee in which indemnity from Licensor may be sought under this 
Section 8, Licensee shall notify Licensor in writing and, at Licensor’s option, Licensor shall promptly assume the defense 
thereof.  Licensee may, at its own expense, be represented by its own counsel in such action or proceeding; provided, that such 
representation does not give Licensee any right to control such defense without Licensor’s prior written approval. 
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       8.3   Licensee shall, throughout the Term of this Agreement and for at least two (2) years thereafter, obtain and maintain at its own cost and 
expense from a qualified insurance company a general liability insurance policy including, without limitation, coverage for products 
liability and personal injury, naming Licensor and Artist as additional named insureds. Such policy shall provide adequate protection 
with a limit of liability (in addition to costs of defense) of not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence and Four 
Million Dollars ($4,000,000.00) in the aggregate, insuring, without limitation, against any and all claims, demands and causes of action 
arising out of any defects or failure to perform, alleged or otherwise, of Licensed Products or any material used in connection therewith 
or any use thereof. A certificate of insurance evidencing such coverage shall be furnished to Licensor within thirty (30) days of the full 
execution of this Agreement, which certificate shall stipulate that insurance is not cancelable except on at least 30 days’ prior written 
notice to Licensor. 

9.   Confidentiality. Each party understands and acknowledges that it may have access to information concerning the other party that is confidential 
or proprietary including, without limitation, information about such party’s business and marketing plans, sales volumes, pricing, customers, 
manufacturers, licensees, suppliers, and distributors (“Confidential Information”). Each party (the “receiving party”) shall maintain such 
Confidential Information disclosed by the other party (the “disclosing party”) and the financial terms of this Agreement in strict confidence 
during the Term and for a period of not less than two (2) years following the expiration or termination of this Agreement. The receiving party 
shall not disclose to any third party or make any use of the disclosing party’s Confidential Information except as may be necessary to perform its 
obligations hereunder. The foregoing obligations and restrictions shall not apply to any information that is or becomes public knowledge 
through no fault or action of the receiving party prior to the disclosing party’s disclosure. 

10.   Outside Agencies. Licensor acknowledges and agrees that Licensee may engage and consult with outside agencies or firms in connection with 
the creation, development, design and manufacture of the Licensee IP. 
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Copies of any notice to Licensee shall be sent to Eisner, Kahan & Gorry, a Professional Corporation, 9601 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 700, 
Beverly Hills, CA 90210, Attention: Joseph O’Hara, Esq. 

  
Copies of any notice to Licensor shall also be sent to: 

  
* 

  
and 

  
* 

  
and 

  
* 

  
and 

  
* 
  

*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
  

  

11.   No Assignment or Sublicensing.  The license granted hereunder is and shall be personal to Licensee. Except for sublicensing the right to 
manufacture the Licensed Products, which is hereby expressly permitted, Licensee shall not assign this Agreement or any of its rights under this 
Agreement, by any act of Licensee or by operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written consent of Licensor. 

12.   Miscellaneous. 

        12.1   Relationship of Parties. The parties are independent contractors. Nothing herein shall be deemed to establish a partnership, joint 
venture, association or employment relationship between the parties. Neither party shall incur any obligations for or in the name of the 
other party, or have the authority to bind or obligate the other party. 

        12.2   Publicity. Except to the extent necessary under applicable laws, Licensee shall not make any public announcement or issue any press 
release relating to the existence or terms of this Agreement or the business relationship contemplated herein without Licensor’s prior 
written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned. 

        12.3   Notices. Any notice, request for approval or other communication required or permitted to be made or given to either party under this 
Agreement shall be deemed sufficient if sent to such party’s address as set forth on the first page of this Agreement, or such other 
address or fax numbers as may be given from time to time under the terms of this Section 12.3 and shall be deemed given (i) on the date 
of delivery only if delivered by a commercial overnight courier service, with confirmation of receipt and costs prepaid, (ii) on the date of 
receipt if sent by facsimile to the fax number for notices set forth on the first page of this Agreement, or (iii) on the earlier of (x) the date 
of receipt and (y) three (3) days after deposit in the U.S. mails if sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested and postage 
prepaid. 
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        12.4   Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of all successors and permitted assigns 
of the parties. 

        12.5   Third Party Beneficiary. This Agreement is not for the benefit of any third party, other than Artist, and shall not be deemed to grant any 
right or remedy to any third party. 

        12.6   Amendment and Waiver. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, no provision of this Agreement may be amended, and the 
rights under any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waived, except as set forth in a writing signed by a duly 
authorized representative of each party. 

        12.7   No Waiver. The failure of either party at any time to require performance by the other party of any provision hereof shall not diminish 
the full right to require such performance at any time thereafter. The waiver by either party of a breach of any provision hereof shall not 
be a waiver of the provision itself or any other breach thereof. No failure on the part of either party to exercise any right or remedy 
hereunder, and no delay on the part of either party hereto in exercising any such right or remedy, shall preclude any other or further 
exercise thereof or of any other right or remedy. 

        12.8   Force Majeure. If either party is prevented from carrying out any of its obligations hereunder as a result of any act of God, strike, fire, 
storm, riot, war (whether declared or not), pandemic, epidemic, embargo, import control, international restriction, shortage of transport 
facilities, any order of any international or national authority, any court order, any requirement of any regional or municipal or other 
competent authority, or in any other circumstances whatsoever which are not within the reasonable control of such party, that party 
shall be deemed to have its obligations to perform hereunder suspended to the extent that and for as long as it is so prevented from so 
performing by the event of force majeure. To that extent, this Agreement shall be deemed to have been suspended for the period 
concerned. 

        12.9   Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, that 
provision shall be limited or eliminated to the minimum extent necessary so that this Agreement shall otherwise remain in full force and 
effect and enforceable. 
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          12.10   Governing Law; Legal Actions. This Agreement shall be construed according to the laws of the State of California and the United 
States of America applicable to contracts entered into and wholly to be performed within California, without regard to the conflict of 
laws provisions thereof. The parties hereby submit to the jurisdiction of the state and federal courts in the Central District of California 
and agree that said courts have the sole and exclusive jurisdiction over any and all disputes and causes of action involving such party 
that arise out of or relate to this Agreement or its performance. Should either party bring legal action to enforce its rights under this 
Agreement, the prevailing party in such action shall be entitled to recover from the losing party its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs 
in addition to any other relief to which such party is entitled. 

          12.11   Injunctive Relief. The parties hereby agree and acknowledge that a breach of any material term, condition or provision of this 
Agreement that provides for an obligation other than the payment of money would result in severe and irreparable injury to the other 
party, which injury could not be adequately compensated by an award of money damages, and the parties therefore agree and 
acknowledge that they shall be entitled to seek injunctive relief in the event of any breach of any material term, condition or provision 
of this Agreement, or to enjoin or prevent such a breach, including without limitation an action for specific performance hereof, and the 
parties hereby irrevocably consent to the issuance of any such injunction. The parties further agree that no bond or surety shall be 
required in connection therewith. 

          12.12   Headings; Construction. Headings and captions are for convenience only and are not to be used in the interpretation of the 
Agreement. Each party agrees that any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party 
shall not be applied in the construction or interpretation of this Agreement. 

          12.13   Counterparts; Facsimile Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed an 
original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. A facsimile signature shall be deemed an original 
for purposes of evidencing execution of this Agreement. 



Exhibit 10.35 
  

MERCHANDISING LICENSE AGREEMENT 
  

This merchandising license agreement (this “Agreement”) dated as of April 25, 2013 (the “Effective Date”) is by and between Pretty Ugly, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company, located at * (“PUL”), and Boldface Licensing + Branding, a Nevada corporation (“Licensee”). Capitalized terms 
used but not defined in this Agreement shall have their respective meanings set forth in the Standard Terms and Conditions attached hereto (the “Terms 
and Conditions”), which are incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement. Any reference to this Agreement, whether in this Agreement or in the 
Terms and Conditions, shall be deemed to be a reference to this Agreement, together with the Terms and Conditions. 
  

DEAL TERMS 
  

  

  

  

  

  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
  

1. Property: The “Property” means certain Uglydoll characters as determined by PUL as set forth in “Exhibit C”. 

2. Products: The “Products” mean beauty, bath, body, fragrance and cosmetics (including, without limitation, color cosmetics) products, 
accessories and aids. PUL will have the right to approve all designs and styles of the Products, and Licensee will offer PUL the opportunity to 
be involved in the design of each Product from conception to finished Product, in each case, as set forth in this Agreement. 

3. Exclusivity: The rights granted to Licensee hereunder are exclusive. 

4. Term: The term of this Agreement will commence on * and, unless terminated earlier or renewed in accordance with the provisions hereof, will 
expire on * (such period is hereinafter referred to as the “Term”). As long as no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, this 
Agreement shall be automatically renewed for two additional one year periods, provided that (a) the Royalties including the Advance payment 
equal or exceed the Guarantee and (b) neither party has delivered written notice to the other party of non-renewal at least 90 days prior to the 
end of the Term (as then in effect). Licensee will market the Products via its wholesale catalog and trade shows no later than * (“Initial Sales 
Date”) with distribution no later than *. 

5. Territory: The “Territory” means the *. Each quarter during the Term, the parties will review the countries within the Territory in which Licensee 
is promoting and selling the Products, and in those countries in which Licensee is not exploiting the Property in connection with the Products, 
Licensee will have ninety (90) days after receipt written notice from PUL to secure distribution or forfeit its exclusive rights therein. 

  
  



  

  
All “brick and mortar” retail, including, without limitation, pharmacy, mass market, supermarket and grocery stores (in the health and beauty 
sections), specialty and mid-tier retailers other than value stores and dollar stores; provided, that Distribution Channels shall not include mass 
market retail (e.g., without limitation, *) until *. 

  
All Internet/online sites (whether mobile, traditional website or other application now or hereafter created) of any of the “brick and mortar” 
retailers described above (subject to the time limitation placed on mass market retailers above). 

  
Licensee’s Internet/online sites (whether mobile, traditional website or other application now or hereafter created). 

  

  

  

  

  
Pretty Ugly, LLC 

  
* 

  

  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
  

  

6.  Distribution Channels: “Distribution Channels” means the market(s) in which Licensee is authorized to sell and/or distribute the Products 
outlined as follows: 

7.  License: PUL grants to Licensee and Licensee accepts the non-transferable, non-assignable right and obligation to use the Property solely in 
connection with the manufacture by Licensee (or an approved third party manufacturer) of the Products and the promotion and sale by Licensee 
and its distributors of the Products in the Territory in the Distribution Channels during the Term (the “License”). PUL reserves all rights now 
known or hereafter devised not expressly granted herein. 

8.  Advance: * payable in accordance with the Terms and Conditions. 

9.  Guarantee: *, payable as follows: the Advance payment plus at least * payable on the first anniversary of the Effective Date, * on the second 
anniversary of the Effective Date, and at least * on the third anniversary of the Effective Date. 

(i)         Reporting. Refer to “Exhibit D” for PUL Royalty Statement which is to be completed and submitted on a quarterly basis. Any 
and all payments under this contract should be made payable to Pretty Ugly, LLC and submitted to: 

10.  Royalty: An amount equal to *% of 100% of Net Sales (as defined below) for all Products other than * Products and *% of 100% of Net Sales for 
* Products (collectively, the “Regular Royalty”); provided, that Licensee shall cooperate with PUL regarding the designation of “prestige” 
Products. “Net Sales” means one hundred percent (100%) of the sums and other valuable consideration received by Licensee from sales of the 
Products less only actual discounts (including actual, verifiable customary trade and volume discounts), advertising allowances and returns 
without any other deductions of any kind. For the avoidance of doubt, if Licensee sells any Products at retail, the Royalty payable with respect 
to such sales shall be based on Net Sales calculated using then prevailing wholesale prices charged by Licensee to US-based retailers. To the 
extent Licensee sells and ships Products “FOB” (free on board), an additional royalty equal to *% of 100% of Net Sales for such Products sold 
FOB will be payable (the “FOB Royalty”, and together with the Regular Royalty, the “Royalty”). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
contained herein, Licensee shall not be required to pay any Royalty on sales of Products purchased by PUL or any of its affiliates. 
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UglydollTM and ©20xx Pretty Ugly, LLC. All Rights Reserved. Created by Sun-Min Kim and David Horvath. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

11.  Copyright and Trademark Notice: The following notice must appear on all Products and on any tags, advertisements, catalogues and other 
sales or marketing materials: 

12.  Signature Logo: The signature logo attached hereto as Exhibit “B” must appear on all Products and on any tags, advertisements, catalogues 
and other sales or marketing materials. 

13.  Approval Process: Licensee, at its, expense, shall submit to PUL samples of all items including, but not limited to, the Products, packaging, 
labeling, point of sale materials, trade show displays, sales materials and advertising bearing the Property and/or creations, and if such items are 
in a foreign language, certification that the translations of such items are accurate, for PUL’s advance written approval prior to sale or 
distribution at all approval stages contemplated below. 

14.  Approval Stages: The approval stages shall consist of the following: 

  a. Stage 1 Concept (Rough sketches or concept layouts in color) 
  b. Stage 2 Prototypes/Pre-Production Samples or finished artwork 
  c. Stage 3 Final Production samples 

15.  Agreements Applicable at Each Stage: At each stage of the approval process, Licensee agrees that: 

      a.   Licensee will not make any use of, sell or distribute any Products, prior to PUL granting final written approval thereof. 

       b.   PUL, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to reject a later or revised version of a Product or related items at any approval stage, even 
if approved at a prior stage, if, in its physical form, the Product or related item does not meet PUL’s marketing standards or if the later or 
revised version of said Product or related item materially departs from the approved sample. 

      c.   In the event of any modification or change in quality of the items, whether during the approval process or after final approval has been 
granted, such items shall be resubmitted for approval. 
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      d.   Licensee shall at all times insure that the Products and related packaging is of high quality and workmanship. 

      e.   Licensee shall supply PUL with (12) production samples of each branded merchandise. 

      f.   All press releases and/or public announcements by Licensee shall be subject to prior written approval by PUL, both as to the content, 
timing and distribution of any such release. Licensee shall not have any rights against PUL for damages or other remedy by reason of 
PUL’s failure or refusal to grant approval of any press release. Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing, (i) PUL agrees to use 
best efforts to reply to Licensee regarding the content of any such press releases or public announcements within 24 hours and (ii) PUL 
acknowledges that Licensee is the wholly-owned subsidiary of a publicly traded corporation, Boldface Group, Inc., and as such, certain 
aspects of this Agreement and the Products will be required to be disclosed to the public under the US securities laws (including, 
without limitation, the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as well as state 
securities laws) (the “Securities Laws”). 

      g.   Upon PUL’s written request, Licensee agrees to furnish to PUL its DHL, Federal Express and/or UPS billing number for PUL to use to 
return samples at Licensee’s expense to expedite the approval process. 

16. Trademark Registrations or Domain Names: Licensee will neither, directly or indirectly, register any trademark, corporate or other entity name 
or domain name incorporating the PUL IP (as defined below) in whole or in part, nor assist any third party in doing so. PUL, at Licensee’s written 
request and at PUL’s cost, will agree to file for and maintain trademark registrations in all applicable classes in each country within the Territory 
in which Licensee is prepared to exploit the Trademarks, provided that a trademark registration for each applicable product is available, as well as 
to obtain domain names, where available, in all of such jurisdictions. PUL makes no representation or warranty as to ownership of any trademark 
rights outside the United States. 

17.   Promotion of Products: PUL shall use commercially reasonable efforts to market and promote the Products via its regular advertising channels 
for other products (licensed or not) bearing the Property and other intellectual property of PUL, including, without limitation, promotion via 
social media efforts consistent with PUL’s ordinary course of business. 

18.   Relationship of the Parties: It is specifically understood and agreed that Licensee is not the exclusive or non-exclusive representative of PUL, 
David Horvath, Sun-Min Kim, and/or Uglydoll in the Territory or any other territory. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, nothing 
herein contained will be construed to place the parties in the relationship of partners or joint venturers, and Licensee will have no power to 
obligate or bind PUL in any manner whatsoever. 
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By signing in the spaces provided below, the parties have agreed to all of the terms and conditions contained in (a) the above Deal Terms, (b) the 
attached Terms and Conditions, and (c) the attached Code of Conduct for Manufacturers and Distributors, each of which is incorporated herein by this 
reference and part of this Agreement. In the event of any conflict between any of the above Deal Terms and any provisions of the Terms and Conditions, 
the provisions of the Deal Terms will prevail, provided that the affected provisions of the Terms and Conditions will be curtailed and restricted only to the 
extent necessary to bring them into conformity with the Deal Terms. 
  

  

  

BOLDFACE LICENSING + BRANDING 
(“Licensee”) 

  PRETTY UGLY, LLC 
(“PUL”) 

 

           
By: /s/ Nicole Ostoya    By: /s/ Alita Friedman   
           
Print Name: Nicole Ostoya    Print Name: Alita Friedman   
           
Title:  CEO     Title:  Director  
           
Date: 4-25-13    Date: May 3, 2013  
           
Fax:     Fax:    
           
Email:      Email:     
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STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

  
1.   PAYMENTS:  
  
             (a)   Advance and Guarantee. Licensee will pay PUL the nonrefundable Advance, if any, no later than ten ( 10) business days after 
execution of this Agreement. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, if the Royalties including the advance paid to PUL are less than the 
Guarantee, if any, then Licensee will pay the difference to PUL within ten (10) business days of such expiration or termination. Payments under this 
Agreement may not be cross-collateralized with payments due under any other agreements between the parties. 
  
             (b)   Statements and Payments. Licensee will render Royalty statements and payments to PUL within thirty (30) calendar days after each 
calendar quarter close regardless of whether Royalties are actually due and payable. All payments owed to PUL hereunder shall be made in U.S. dollars. 
Each quarterly Royalty statement will contain the following information: (i) the number of each of the Products sold (in each country in the Territory, if 
applicable) during the calendar quarter in question; (ii) Licensee’s established wholesale price for each of the Products (in each country in the Territory, if 
applicable); (iii) the total Net Sales for each of the Products; (iv) the quantity, invoice price, wholesale price and current status of any premium or 
promotional Products if permitted hereunder; (v) the quantity, price and current status of the Products returned by customers and deducted from Net 
Sales as permitted in the Deal Terms, including, where possible, the customer’s asserted reasons for such returns; (vii) Discounts given during the 
calendar quarter in question, and (viii) any other information reasonably requested by PUL. For late payments, if instructed by PUL, Licensee will pay 
interest on any Royalties owed to PUL at the prime rate charged by Bank of America plus one and one half percent (1.5%). 
             
             (c)   Records and Audits. Licensee will keep accurate and complete books and records for the greater of six (6) years from the Effective 
Date or two (2) years from termination or expiration of the Term, whichever is greater, which PUL will have the right to examine upon reasonable advance 
written notice no more frequently than once per calendar year. If the results of an audit disclose a deficiency between the amount found to be due to PUL 
and the amount actually received by PUL or if Licensee is otherwise delinquent in making payments to PUL hereunder, then Licensee will immediately pay 
the deficiency or delinquency, as applicable, to PUL plus interest at the prime rate charged by Bank of America plus one and one half percent (1.5%) and 
if the deficiency is more than five percent (5%), then Licensee will pay the costs and expenses of such audit. 
  
             (d)   PUL Purchases. Subject to availability, Licensee will permit PUL and its affiliates to purchase Products in reasonable quantities (as 
determined by Licensee), at their lowest wholesale price; provided, that any resale of such Products by PUL shall be subject to the remainder of this 
clause (d) and shall be offered for retail sale at a price approved in writing by Licensee, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or conditioned. PUL 
acknowledges that Licensee has entered into agreements with distributors who have negotiated for exclusive rights to distribution of the Products in 
certain geographic areas. Provided that Licensee has not forfeited or relinquished its exclusive rights in such country(ies) or geographic area(s) to the 
Territory, PUL will not engage in the exploitation of Products in any of such countries or geographic areas, whether via retail outlets or on-line internet 
web site(s), without Licensee’s prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or conditioned. 
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2.   COPYRIGHT AND TRADEMARK: 
  
             (a)   Ownership. Licensee acknowledges that Licensee’s use of the Property, PUL’s names, titles, logos, symbols, designs, phrases, 
service marks, collective marks, certification marks, trade names, trade dress and/or trademarks (collectively, the “Trademarks”), copyrights and other 
intellectual and other intangible property contained in, relating to or derivative of the Property and all rights thereto (collectively, “PUL IP”) will not 
confer or imply a grant of right, title or interest in the PUL IP or associated goodwill, and Licensee hereby acknowledges and agrees that the benefit of all 
uses by Licensee of the PUL IP (including, without limitation, any goodwill) will at all times inure to the benefit of PUL. Licensee will not, and will not 
authorize others to, at any time, whether during the Term or after termination of this Agreement (i) adopt or use any trademark, symbol or device which 
incorporates or is confusingly similar to, or is a simulation or imitation of any of the Trademarks, (ii) apply anywhere in the world to register any 
trademarks or copyright works identical to or materially similar to the Trademarks, or (iii) challenge PUL’s ownership of, or the validity of, the Trademarks 
or any application for registration thereof or any rights of PUL therein or otherwise do any act or thing which will in any way jeopardize, dilute or 
adversely affect any rights of PUL in and to the Trademarks or any registrations thereof. 
  
             (b)   Licensee Generated Property. Any right, title or interest in or in any way relating to the property or any use of the Property in 
connection with the Products, including, without limitation, materials bearing or affixing any of the Property which come into existence as a result of, 
relating to or during the term of, the performance of this Agreement, including, without limitation, product packaging, artwork, etc. (collectively, “Licensee 
Generated Property”) will be considered a “work(s) made for hire” for PUL pursuant to the U.S. Copyright Act and will immediately vest in PUL free and 
clear of any right, title, charge, lien encumbrance, limitation or claim in favor of Licensee or, if not legally capable of being considered as such, then, in 
such event, Licensee hereby grants, transfers and assigns to PUL in perpetuity all right, title and interest, including, without limitation, copyrights (and all 
extensions, renewals, revivals and resuscitations thereof) that Licensee may have in and to such Licensee Generated Property throughout the universe in 
all languages and in all media now known or hereafter devised. In the event that under any current or future copyright law of any jurisdiction, any of the 
rights in or to the Licensee Generated Property are subject to a right of termination or reversion, then to the extent and as soon as legally permissible, 
Licensee agrees to accord PUL rights of first negotiation for thirty (30) days and last refusal for fifteen (15) days (to match any third party offer) in 
connection therewith. If third parties who are not employees of Licensee contribute to the creation of the Licensee Generated Property, Licensee will 
obtain from such third parties, prior to commencement of work, a written agreement providing that all results and proceeds of such third parties services 
are “work(s)-made-for-hire” for Licensee and containing a full written assignment of rights so that all right, title and interest in the Licensee Generated 
Property, throughout the universe, in perpetuity, will vest in PUL, and Licensee hereby irrevocably assigns such results and proceeds and such right, 
title and interest to PUL. 
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             (c)   Notices. All Products and Licensee Generated Property will bear the copyright and trademark notice set forth in the Deal Terms and 
any other legal notices which PUL may reasonably require, in a sufficient size, legibility, location and permanence to comply with copyright laws and 
notice requirements of the United States, the Universal and Berne Copyright Conventions, and the copyright and trademark laws of the countries within 
which the Products will be sold and distributed hereunder. 
  
             (d)   Protection of Copyrights, Trademarks and Good Will. Licensee will reasonably assist PUL in procuring and maintaining the rights of 
PUL in the PUL IP and will execute and/or deliver to PUL all instruments useful or reasonably necessary to effectuate copyright and trademark protection 
or to record Licensee as a registered user of any Trademarks or to cancel such registration. If Licensee fails to execute and/or deliver to PUL any such 
instruments within ten (10) days after receiving written notice from PUL, then Licensee hereby irrevocably appoints PUL as Licensee’s attorney-in-fact to 
do so on Licensee’s behalf, which is a right coupled with an interest, with full power of substitution and delegation. PUL makes no representation or 
warranty that registered copyright or trademark protection will be secured in the PUL IP. Licensee will notify PUL of any potential or actual infringement 
of the PUL IP and/or the Products of which it has actual knowledge and will use commercially reasonable efforts to pursue any such infringement of the 
Products at Licensee’s sole and reasonable cost and expense (but shall not be required to commence infringement litigation unless PUL and Licensee 
agree in writing to the same). Notwithstanding the foregoing, PUL will have the right to elect to join and/or control all such infringement litigation. Subject 
to Paragraph 5 below, if PUL exercises its right to control all such infringement litigation, PUL will assume the cost and expense thereof. 
  
             (e)   Domain Names. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, upon Licensee’s written request, PUL will consider 
licensing to Licensee during the Term, at no additional cost to Licensee (other than the costs of obtaining the domain name(s)), the right to use the PUL 
IP as part of a domain name. 
  
3.   REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES: 
  
             (a)   Licensee. Licensee represents and warrants that: (i) Licensee is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing 
under the laws of the State of Nevada, with full power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and to perform its obligations; (ii) Licensee will 
comply with all manufacturing, distribution, retail and marketing policies and strategies reasonably required by PUL from time to time; (iii) except for 
Licensee’s existing receivables financing facility, as may be amended, renewed or refinanced from time to time, Licensee will not create, incur or permit 
any encumbrance, lien, security interest (other than the security interest in the Products granted to PUL), mortgage, pledge, assignment or other 
hypothecation upon the License and/or the Products;’ (iv) there is no pending or threatened litigation which may affect the legality, validity or 
enforceability of this Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated herein, or Licensee’s ability to fully perform its obligations herein; (v) Licensee 
will not misuse or bring into disrepute the Products and/or the Licensee Generated Property and will not attack the title to or any rights of PUL in and to 
the Licensee Generated Property or Products; (vi) Licensee will use commercially reasonable efforts to manufacture sufficient quantities of the Products, 
as determined by Licensee, using its best and reasonable estimates, to fill all orders, and will diligently and continuously distribute and offer for sale the 
Products; and (vii) the Products will be of merchantable quality, will not materially deviate from approved prototypes and will be safe for public use. 
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4.   THIRD PARTY CLAIMS: If either party learns that a third party has or claims rights which would or might conflict with the proposed or actual use 
of the Products, or names or designs similar thereto, then Licensee will either make reasonable modifications in its use of the Products as mutually agreed 
in writing with PUL, or at PUL’s request, discontinue the use of the allegedly infringing part of the Products; provided, that the foregoing shall not have 
any effect on PUL’s indemnification obligations hereunder. PUL may participate fully at its own expense in the defense of any claim or suit instituted 
against Licensee with respect to the use of the Products by Licensee. In no event may Licensee acknowledge the validity of such a claim, seek or obtain a 
license from such a third party, or take any other action which might impair the ability of PUL to contest the claim. With respect to any claim contemplated 
by this Paragraph, each party agrees promptly to notify and keep the other party fully advised of such claim. 
  
5.    INDEMNIFICATIONS: Licensee will defend (at PUL’s request), indemnify and hold PUL, its affiliates and their respective employees, officers, 
agents, attorneys, stockholders and directors, and their respective successors, licensees and assignees harmless from and against any and all claims, 
liabilities, judgments, penalties, losses, damages (including, without limitation, any damages for product liability) and costs (including, without limitation, 
reasonable outside attorneys’ fees and expenses) relating to any claims of any third party (including, without limitation, any government agency in any 
country) which arise from or relate to any of the following: (a) any injury or damage caused directly or indirectly either by any Products or by the 
manufacture, promotion, marketing, distribution, sale or use of any Products; (b) any act or omission by Licensee or any of its subsidiaries, 
manufacturers, distributors, agents or representatives, or any of their employees or agents relating to the performance of this Agreement; (c) Licensee’s 
failure to comply in any material respect with any term hereof; or (d) any breach by Licensee of any representation, warranty or agreement made by 
Licensee hereunder. PUL will have the right to defend any such action or proceeding with counsel of its choice (subject to Licensee’s approval of such 
counsel, not to be unreasonably withheld or conditioned) at Licensee’s reasonable cost and expense. The obligations of Licensee under this Paragraph 
will survive termination of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, PUL agrees to seek the benefit of any applicable insurance policies of 
Licensee prior to enforcing any of its rights under this Paragraph 5. 
  

  

      (i)   PUL. PUL represents and warrants to Licensee that PUL is the owner of all right, title and interest in and to the Property, it has 
full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to grant the license to Licensee hereunder, and neither the execution 
and delivery of this Agreement by PUL, nor the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby, nor the 
fulfillment by PUL of any of the terms and conditions hereof will conflict with, violate, result in a breach of, or constitute a 
default under any agreement, contract, lease, or license to which PUL is a party. PUL shall indemnify Licensee and its affiliates 
and its and their respective officers, directors, members, stockholders, managers, employees, attorneys, agents, 
representatives, successors and permitted assigns from and against any and all claims, judgments, damages, liabilities, 
actions, demands, costs, expenses or losses, including reasonable outside attorneys’ fees and costs, to the extent resulting 
from, arising out of, or in connection with Licensee’s use of the Property in accordance with the terms of this Agreement or 
any breach of PUL’s representations and warranties hereunder. The obligations of PUL under this Paragraph will survive 
termination of this Agreement. 

       (ii)   PUL. PUL does not make any warranties or representations as to the popularity, success, or continuing exploitation of, or 
marketing and advertising budget with respect to the Property, and makes no warranty or representation as to the amount of 
gross sales, Net Sales or profits Licensee will derive under this Agreement from the sale and distribution of the Products. 
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6.    [INTENTIONALLY DELETED] 
  
7.   PRODUCT LIABILITY INSURANCE: During the Term and for a period of not less than one (1) year thereafter, Licensee will obtain and maintain, at 
its sole cost and expense: (a) comprehensive general liability insurance with limits of not less than Two Million Dollars (US$2,000,000) per occurrence, 
Five Million Dollars (US$5,000,000) aggregate; (b) product liability insurance with limits of not less than Two Million Dollars (US$2,000,000) per 
occurrence, Five Million Dollars (US$5,000,000) aggregate; and (c) workers’ compensation and employers’ liability insurance, where applicable, in 
accordance with local law. Each insurance policy will contain a waiver of subrogation. Licensee’s insurance will be carried by an insurer with a rating in 
accordance with the BEST Rating Guide of A-6 (or its international equivalent) or better. Compliance herewith will in no way limit Licensee’s indemnity 
obligations to PUL or its affiliates. Within thirty (30) days following the execution of this Agreement by Licensee, Licensee will provide certificates of 
insurance to PUL certifying that PUL and any other entity specified by PUL have been added as additional insureds to each insurance policy set forth 
above and that before any proposed cancellation or material modification in the coverage the insurance carrier will give the certificate holder(s) not less 
than thirty (30) days’ prior written notice thereof. Upon -receipt of any such notification, PUL will have the right to purchase replacement insurance from 
an insurance carrier of PUL’s choice and charge Licensee for all costs thereof. Licensee will pay all such costs immediately upon submission by PUL. 
  
8.   APPROVALS: 
  
             (a)   Approvals. All prototypes of the Products and all materials, artwork, copy, packaging, literary text, advertising and promotional 
materials in connection therewith, including the quality and style thereof, will at all stages of development and production be subject to PUL’s approval 
before manufacture, sale or distribution, as applicable. Before selling or distributing the Products, Licensee will furnish and ship to PUL, at Licensee’s 
expense, twelve (12) samples of each Product, including all packaging materials, and five (5) samples of all advertising and promotional materials in 
connection therewith. PUL will make reasonable efforts to notify Licensee in writing of its approval or disapproval of each such Product and/or 
advertising and promotional materials within three (3) business days of receipt of the applicable sample, it being understood that PUL’s failure to approve 
or disapprove any such sample within such time period will constitute a disapproval. Once approved, Licensee will not modify them without PUL’s 
approval. On PUL’s request from time to time, Licensee will furnish and ship to PUL, at Licensee’s expense, one representative sample of each Product 
together with its packaging for quality control purposes. Licensee will provide a reasonable number of additional samples (not for resale) to PUL upon 
PUL’s request therefor at wholesale cost. If Licensee manufactures, sells or distributes Products which PUL has not approved or has specifically 
disapproved in writing, or if Licensee authorizes any third party to do so, then PUL may terminate this Agreement immediately. 
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             (b)   Approvals Generally. Unless explicitly set forth to the contrary herein, all PUL approvals will be exercised in advance and in writing 
and may not be unreasonably withheld or conditioned. 
  
9.   PRODUCT LIABILITY COMPLIANCE: Licensee represents and warrants to PUL that all Products are in compliance with all applicable laws, 
regulations, standards and PUL specifications, including, without limitation, the regulating laws of the United States, the country(ies) where Licensee 
manufactures the Products, the Territory and all other applicable jurisdictions. Licensee will permit PUL and/or its representative, upon reasonable 
advance written notice, at all reasonable times to inspect the site of production of the Products in order to evaluate the manufacture of the Products and 
Licensee’s processes and facilities to verify compliance with the requirements set forth in this Paragraph. If any of the Products are found not to comply 
with the foregoing requirements, then Licensee will immediately destroy all such Products at PUL’s and/or any government agency’s request. 
  
10.   RESTRICTIONS ON EXPLOITATION: Without PUL’s approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or conditioned, Licensee will not (a) use 
or authorize the use of the Products as premiums or promotional tie-ins, (b) use the PUL IP with any other name, property or design (except Licensee’s 
name or the names of other parties in the manufacturing or distribution chain, as required by applicable law), (c) package or bundle the Products for sale 
or distribution with other articles which do not bear any of the Property, or (d) sell the Products on a mass-market basis (including, without limitation, on 
or through any internet site associated or affiliated with any mass market except as set forth in the Merchandising License Agreement), on a consignment 
basis or through “electronic direct response” channels consisting of radio or television (including television home shopping networks). All press 
releases, publicity announcements or other media disclosures by Licensee relating to this Agreement and/or its subject matter will be subject to PUL’s 
approval, provided, that PUL shall not have approval rights on any matters required to be disclosed pursuant to any of the Securities Laws. Licensee 
expressly agrees that (i) only images of the approved Products themselves will be depicted at Licensee’s web site; (ii) Licensee’s web site may not be 
connected by way of hyperlink or otherwise to the web site(s) of PUL without the approval of PUL nor will the PUL’s web site(s) include a hyperlink to 
Licensee’s web site; (iii) the Property may not be referenced in the domain name of Licensee’s web site without PUL’s prior approval; provided, that PUL 
shall not unreasonably withhold or condition the use of any domain name of Licensee for any online/Internet retail sale of Products by Licensee; and (iv) 
Licensee’s web site, to the extent it includes images of the Products, will include a COPPA compliant privacy policy statement, and Licensee will adhere 
to said statement and to all laws concerning children and minors on its website and in its internet dealings. In no event will images embodying the PUL IP 
and made available to potential consumers electronically via on-line internet services deviate in form or content from those approved hereunder or be 
reproducible or downloadable or be accompanied by any additional materials relating to the Property. 
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11.   EVENTS OF DEFAULT: 
  
             (a)   The occurrence of one or more of the following will constitute a default under this Agreement, and such default shall become an 
“Event of Default” upon the delivery of any applicable notice or the lapse of any applicable cure period relating thereto: (a) a material breach by Licensee 
of any of its representations and warranties herein; (b) any failure by Licensee to adhere in any material respect to the approval process herein or PUL’s 
directions with respect thereto; (c) the distribution, sale or shipment of any Products not approved by PUL; (d) any failure of Licensee to perform any of 
Licensee’s covenants or obligations or to meet any conditions under this Agreement including, without limitation, any failure to pay any portion of any 
amounts specified herein on or before the date when due or to make any payments required of Licensee herein; (e) any actual or attempted assignment, 
sublicense or other transfer by Licensee of any or all of its rights granted herein, or delegation of any of its duties or obligations herein, without PUL 
approval; (I) any actual or attempted use by Licensee of the PUL IP in any manner, medium, language or territory not specifically granted hereunder; (g) 
bankruptcy, assignment for the benefit of Licensee’s creditors or other form of insolvency of Licensee; (h) any Change of Control (as defined herein) of 
Licensee; and (i) Licensee’s the breach of any other agreement between PUL and Licensee. 
  
             (b)   For the purposes herein, the term “Change of Control” shall mean: (i) a merger or consolidation of the Licensee in which the 
stockholders of the Licensee immediately prior to such transaction would own, in the aggregate, less than 50% of the total combined voting power of all 
classes of capital stock of the surviving entity normally entitled to vote for the election of directors of the surviving entity or (ii) the sale by the Licensee 
of all or substantially all the Licensee’s assets in one transaction or in a series of related transactions. 
  
             (c)   Notwithstanding anything else contained in this Agreement, except for the payment of any amounts due hereunder, neither party 
will be liable for any delay in the performance of any of its obligations if such delay is caused by any reason outside the reasonable control of the party 
so delaying (a “Force Majeure Event”) subject to the obligations of the party so delaying promptly notifying the other party in writing of the reasons for 
the delay and the likely duration of the delay. The performance of such party’s obligations will be suspended during the period that the Force Majeure 
Event persists and such party will be granted an extension of time for performance equal to the period of the delay. For the avoidance of doubt, no Force 
Majeure Event will constitute a default or Event of Default hereunder. 
  
12.   TERMINATION/EXPIRATION: PUL will have the right, in its sole discretion, to terminate this Agreement effective immediately upon notice to 
Licensee at any time upon the occurrence of any default; provided, however, that in the event of default pursuant to Paragraphs 11(a) or 11(d) to the 
extent that such default is capable of cure, Licensee will have a period not to exceed ten (10) business days from the date of notice to cure the default to 
PUL’s satisfaction. Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, all rights granted to Licensbe hereunder will automatically and immediately 
revert to PUL, and Licensee will have no further right to exploit or in any way deal with any Products or related materials. Immediately upon the expiration 
or termination of this Agreement, Licensee will at PUL’s written election either (a) turn over to PUL all molds, printing plates, artwork, films, silk-screens 
and other materials used in the design, creation and/or reproduction of the Products or the Property at a price to be mutually agreed upon by Licensee 
and PUL or (b) provide evidence satisfactory to PUL of the destruction of the materials set forth in clause (a) above. Licensee shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement upon written notice to PUL in the event that PUL materially breaches this Agreement and fails to remedy such breach (to the 
extent susceptible to cure) within ten (10) business days after Licensee delivers written notice of such breach to PUL. 
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13.   SELL-OFF PERIOD. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, Licensee will have ninety (90) calendar days (“Sell-Off Period”) in which to 
sell off Products manufactured prior to such ninety (90)-day period on a non-exclusive basis, subject to Licensee’s payment obligations herein, provided 
that Licensee will not manufacture units of the Products in anticipation of the Sell-Off Period. Upon expiration of the sell-off period, at PUL’s option, 
Licensee will sell some or all remaining Products to PUL at direct manufacturing cost or will destroy the Products and provide to PUL a duly executed 
certificate of destruction. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee will not have the right to a Sell-Off Period in the event that PUL terminates this 
Agreement as a result of Licensee’s default. 
  
14.   REMEDIES: Each party agrees that upon any breach or default by the other party, the non-breaching party will be entitled to recover from the 
breaching party, in addition to any other remedies available to such party in law or in equity in the event of breach or default, reasonable attorneys’ fees, 
costs and expenses, including collection agency fees incurred in the enforcement of the provisions hereof. 
  
15.   CONFIDENTIALITY: The terms and conditions of this Agreement are confidential and may not be disclosed by Licensee or PUL to any third party 
other than its employees who a need to know such terms and conditions and its professional advisors (including, without limitation, its attorneys, 
investment bankers and accountants) who are bound by ethics rules to maintain the confidentiality of the same or who have expressly agreed to maintain 
this confidentiality obligation, or except as otherwise required by law or legal process. Neither party will utilize confidential information provided by the 
other except as expressly permitted hereunder without the other’s prior written consent. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, Licensee will 
return to PUL any materials embodying PUL’s confidential information. 
  
16.   CLEARANCES: Licensee will be solely responsible for obtaining all third party consents and permissions (and the payment of any costs and 
expenses in connection therewith) necessary in connection with the advertising, promotion, sale, distribution or other exploitation of the Products and, 
any advertising or promotion thereof. 
  
17.   MISCELLANEOUS: 
  
             (a)   Notices. Any notice or other communication will be effective only if given in writing, personally delivered or sent by facsimile, 
overnight courier, or mail, postage prepaid to the pertinent address(es) contained on the signature page of this Agreement (or such other address as 
either party will have designated by written notice to the other party), and evidenced by a delivery receipt. Notices directed to PUL must be given to both 
PUL’s representative (if designated by PUL) and PUL, and will not be effective until received by both PUL’s representative and PUL. Copies of all notices 
to PUL will be simultaneously sent to *. Any notice will be effective upon the date received by the recipient(s), as evidenced by the delivery receipt(s). 
  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
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             (b)   Waiver, Modification. The terms of this Agreement may not be waived or modified except by an agreement in writing executed by 
the parties hereto. The waiver any breach is not a waiver of any prior or succeeding breach. 
  
             (c)   No Assignment. The rights granted hereunder are and will be personal to Licensee, and cannot be assigned, transferred, 
sublicensed, mortgaged or otherwise encumbered by Licensee or by operation of law. Any purported sublicense or assignment by Licensee of any rights 
granted hereunder will be void and will constitute material breach of this Agreement. PUL may assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement to 
any person, firm, corporation or entity with written notice to Licensee. 
  
             (d)   Code of Conduct. Licensee and its third-party manufacturers and distributors will be bound by and will strictly comply with the 
Code of Conduct, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A”. Any breach of the Code of Conduct by Licensee and/or a third party 
manufacturer or distributor contracted to Licensee that is not cured to PUL’s reasonable satisfaction within fourteen (14) business days after PUL’s 
notice thereof will be considered a breach of this Agreement by Licensee. Prior to engaging any third party manufacturer and/or distributor, Licensee will 
submit to PUL for approval (i) the name, (ii) address and (iii) reasonable background information actually known to Licensee, of such proposed third party 
manufacturer and/or distributor. For the avoidance of doubt, the Products may be manufactured and/or distributed only by approved manufacturers 
and/or distributors. 
  
             (e)   Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Service of Process. Any and all claims arising out of or relating in any way to this Agreement, its 
validity, construction and/or effect will be governed by and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the United States and the internal laws of the 
State of New Jersey governing contracts entered into and to be fully performed in New Jersey (i.e., without reference to conflicts of laws provisions 
thereof). Licensee agrees that any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or relating in any way to this Agreement or any of the transactions 
contemplated hereby (including without limitation, statutory, tort or equitable claims) will be instituted and prosecuted under the exclusive jurisdiction of 
any state or federal court empowered to enforce this Agreement in the State of New Jersey, Essex County. In any suit, action or proceeding initiated in 
any state and federal courts of New Jersey, Licensee irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction and venue of all state and federal courts of New Jersey and 
waives any and all objection to such jurisdiction that Licensee may have under the laws of the State of New Jersey or the United States and also waives 
any right to challenge the convenience of New Jersey as an appropriate forum. In connection with any action or proceeding, Licensee waives personal 
service and agrees that service of any pleading, notice, complaint, etc., may be served by certified or registered mail to Licensee at Licensee’s address set 
forth on the signature page of this Agreement (or such other address as Licensee will have designated by written notice to PUL), and such service will be 
deemed effective as if personally served upon Licensee at Licensee’s principal place of business. 
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             (f)       Headings. Headings of paragraphs appearing herein are inserted for reference and convenience only and do not define or limit the 
scope or intent of any provision hereof.  
  
             (g)   Execution. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and faxed or e-mailed signatures will be effective with the same force 
as if they were originals. 
  
             (h)   Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire understanding among the parties hereto and cannot be modified unless by 
the parties mutual written agreement. 
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EXHIBIT "A" 

  
CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MANUFACTURERS AND DISTRIBUTORS 

  
At a minimum, PUL requires that all manufacturers and distributors of its merchandise meet the following standards: 
  

  

  

Child Labor Manufacturers will not use child labor. The term “child” refers to a person younger than 15 years of age (or 14 where local 
law allows) or, if higher, the local legal minimum age for employment or the age for completing compulsory education. 
Manufacturers employing young persons (under 18 years of age) who do not fall within the definition of “children” will 
also comply with any laws and regulations applicable to such persons. 
  

Involuntary Labor Manufacturers will not use any forced or involuntary labor, whether prison, bonded, indentured or otherwise. 
  

Coercion and Harassment Manufacturers will treat each employee with dignity and respect, and will not use corporal punishment, threats of violence 
or other forms of physical, sexual, psychological or verbal harassment or abuse. 
  

Nondiscrimination Manufacturers will not discriminate in hiring and employment practices, including salary, benefits, Advancement, 
discipline, termination or retirement, on the basis of race, religion, age, nationality, social or ethnic origin, sexual 
orientation, gender, political opinion or disability. 
  

Association Manufacturers will respect the rights of employees to associate, organize and bargain collectively in a lawful and peaceful 
manner, without penalty or interference. 
  

Health and Safety Manufacturers will provide employees with a safe and healthy workplace in compliance with all applicable laws and 
regulations ensuring reasonable access to potable water and sanitary facilities, fire safety, and adequate lighting and 
ventilation. Manufacturers will also ensure that the same standards of health and safety are applied in any housing that 
they provide for employees. 
  

Compensation Manufacturers will, at a minimum, comply with all applicable wage and hour laws and regulations, including those relating 
to minimum wages, overtime, maximum hours, piece rates and other elements of compensation, and provide legally 
mandated benefits. If local laws do not provide for overtime pay, manufacturers will pay at least regular wages for overtime 
work. Except in extraordinary business circumstances, manufacturers will not require employees to work more than the 
lesser of (a) 48 hours per week and 12 hours overtime or (b) the limits on regular and overtime hours allowed by local law 
or, where local law does not limit the hours of work, the regular work week in such country plus 12 hours overtime. In 
addition, except in extraordinary business circumstances, employees will be entitled to at least one day off in every seven-
day period. 
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Protection of the Environment Manufacturers will comply with all applicable environmental laws and regulations. 
  

Other Laws and Industry 
Standards 

Manufacturers will comply with all applicable laws and regulations, including those pertaining to the manufacture, pricing, 
sale and distribution of merchandise. All references to “applicable laws and regulations” in this Code of Conduct include 
local and national codes, rules and regulations as well as applicable treatises and voluntary industry standards. Where 
local industry standards are higher than applicable legal requirements, manufacturers will meet the higher standards. 
  

Subcontracting Manufacturers will not use subcontractors for the manufacture of PUL’s merchandise or components thereof without 
PUL’s express written consent, and only after the subcontractor has entered into a written commitment with PUL to comply 
with this Code of Conduct. 
  

Monitoring and Compliance Manufacturers will authorize PUL and its designated agents (including third parties) to engage in monitoring activities to 
confirm compliance with this Code of Conduct, including unannounced on site inspections of manufacturing facilities and 
employer-provided housing; reviews of books and records relating to employment matters; and private interviews with 
employees. Manufacturers will maintain on site all documentation that may be needed to demonstrate compliance with this 
Code of Conduct. 
  

Publication Manufacturers will take appropriate steps to ensure that the provisions of this Code of Conduct are communicated to 
employees, including the prominent posting of a copy of this Code of Conduct, in the local language and in a place readily 
accessible to all employees, at all times. 
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EXHIBIT “B” 

  
SIGNATURE LOGO 
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EXHIBIT “C” 

  
UGLYDOLL® CHARACTERS 

  
Uglydoll trademarked and copyrighted Classic characters including but not limited to WageTM, BaboTM, OxTM, Ice-BatTM and associated logos, names, 
imagery, concepts, designs, artwork and other associated creative elements included in the official Uglydoll Style guide owned and controlled by PUL. 
Picture-related and/or television-related creations or adaptations are not included under this contract. 
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EXHIBIT 1 

  
APPROVAL OF MANUFACTURER 

  
This Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2013 made by and between Pretty Ugly, LLC, doing business as Pretty Ugly, LLC (“Pretty Ugly”) at * and Boldface 
Licensing + Branding at _______________________ (hereinafter “Company”). 
  

  
The approval granted under this Agreement shall be on a non-exclusive basis and be valid only during the term of the Merchandising License 
Agreement. This Agreement and the approval granted hereunder may be terminated by Pretty Ugly: (i) at any time by giving notice of 
termination in writing to Company, (ii) automatically without notice upon the expiration or sooner termination of the Merchandising License 
Agreement; or (iii) automatically upon breach of any terms of this Agreement by Company. Termination of this Agreement shall not affect or 
prejudice the rights of Pretty Ugly. 

  

  
Company hereby represents, warrants, and agrees that: 

  

  

  
*Material omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.  An unredacted version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 
  

  

1. APPROVAL GRANTED: Reference is made to the Merchandising License Agreement dated as of _______________  between Pretty Ugly, as 
Licensor, and _____________  granting Licensee the right to manufacture: (“See attached list of licensed articles”). Licensee has advised Pretty 
Ugly that Licensee desires to use the services of Company to manufacture the Licensed Articles. Subject to the terms and conditions herein, 
Pretty Ugly grants approval for Licensee to engage Company as the manufacturer of the Licensed Articles. 

2. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND OBLIGATIONS OF COMPANY: 

   (a) Company shall only manufacture the Licensed Articles as and when directed by Licensee. Any act of manufacturing, marketing, 
distributing, or selling of products bearing the artistic work, design, trade mark, trade name, logo, or packaging of Pretty Ugly without 
the direction of the Licensee shall constitute infringement of the intellectual property rights of Pretty Ugly, in which event Company 
shall be liable to Pretty Ugly for all losses and damages suffered by Pretty Ugly. Pretty Ugly shall have the right to dispose of such 
unauthorized or infringing articles or products at its absolute discretion without payment or compensation to Company; 

   (b) Company shall manufacture the Licensed Articles in accordance with all requirements imposed by Licensee, including without 
limitation any requirements regarding: (i) compliance with all laws, regulations, and governmental rules applicable to the Licensed 
Articles and/or their manufacture, and (ii) affixing notices such as copyright, trademark, patent, or other proprietary notices to the 
Licensed Articles as may be designated by Pretty Ugly through its Licensee; 
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   (c) Company shall not sell or distribute any Licensed Articles, including first or second quality, damaged, or production overruns, to any 
person or business entity other than Licensee. Company agrees that they shall be liable to Pretty Ugly in monetary damages for any 
unauthorized distribution or sale of such Licensed Articles, which shall be not less than the total number of Licensed Articles sold 
and/or distributed by Company divided by the total number of Licensed Articles sold and/or shipped by Licensee, multiplied by the 
Guarantee as stated in the Merchandise Licensing Agreement. 

   (d) Company shall affix legal lines and other identifying notices provided by Licensor or its Licensee directly on the surface of the 
Licensed Articles, on permanently affixed labeling, and/or packaging, in a legible and durable manner and before its delivery to 
Licensee; 

   (e) Company shall acquire no proprietary rights of any kind or nature, including without limitation copyright, patent, trademark, or other 
intellectual property rights, in the Licensed Articles. During the Term and thereafter, Company acknowledges and agrees not to 
challenge or claim rights to the exclusive ownership or validity of any rights of Licensor pertaining to the Licensed Property; and that 
all such rights shall vest solely and exclusively with Pretty Ugly; 

   (f) Company shall manufacture only such quantities of the Licensed Articles as ordered by Licensee in connection with a verifiable 
purchase order; 

   (g) Company shall not warehouse any components of, or finished Licensed Articles, outside a territory that is different from the address 
given herein by Company; 

   (h) Company shall not use any Artwork supplied to it by Licensee or otherwise owned or controlled by Licensor in any promotional 
materials or display the Licensed Articles to third parties as examples of its work product, including at trade shows or fairs; 

   (i) Company shall look solely to Licensee for any sums due Company, including sums due for the manufacture of Licensed Articles; 

   (j) Company shall not delegate the subject matter of this Agreement, nor assign in whole or in part the rights and obligations of this 
Agreement, to any third party. Company may not subcontract production of the Licensed Articles or any components that contain 
Artwork of the Licensed Property without the prior written approval of Licensor, and upon the subcontractor’s execution of an 
agreement identical in form to this Agreement; 

   (k) Company shall allow Pretty Ugly’s employees, representatives, or agents to enter the Company’s factory or other premises to inspect 
the factory lines, products, and documents in relation to the Licensed Articles; and to make records, take photos, take away samples of 
Licensed Articles, documents, or materials and/or obtain from Company such information or documents relating to the Licensed 
Articles as Pretty Ugly may request. Notice shall be given twenty-four (24) hours prior to entry, except in emergency cases where no 
such notice is required; 
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Should Licensee or Company become subject to any voluntary or involuntary order of the CPSC or any other regulatory agency, 
involving the recall of any of the Licensed Articles manufactured because of safety, health, or other hazards or risks to the public, both 
Licensee and Company shall comply with such recall order in a timely commercial manner and/or in a manner required under such order; 
  

  

   (l) Upon expiration of the Merchandise Licensing Agreement or its earlier termination, Company shall return to Pretty Ugly or Licensee all 
Artwork and Collateral Material supplied by Licensee, at Licensee’s expense, and/or permanently delete or destroy the aforementioned 
with a letter certifying the destruction and accompanying the return of all other Artwork and Collateral Materials to Pretty Ugly. 
Company agrees that its failure to cease the manufacturing of Licensed Articles upon the Merchandise Licensing Agreement’s 
expiration or earlier termination will be unauthorized and constitute an infringement of Pretty Ugly’s intellectual property rights 
resulting in irreparable damage to Pretty Ugly. In the event of such failure, since there is no adequate remedy at law, Pretty Ugly shall 
be entitled to seek injunctive relief in addition to any rights or remedies that Pretty Ugly may have in law or equity. Pretty Ugly’s rights 
herein shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

   (m) This Agreement shall constitute the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, 
superseding all prior and contemporaneous promises, agreements and understandings, whether written or oral pertaining thereto; 

   (n) Company must adhere to all United States and foreign customs laws, including all import and export regulations. Company is prohibited 
from participating, in any manner, in the “transshipment” of merchandise from one territory to another territory, whether granted to 
Licensee or otherwise, in order to evade a territory’s customs laws; 

   (o) Company shall ensure all Licensed Articles and the manufacturing thereof comply with all applicable international, national, federal, 
state, and local laws; treaties and governmental orders and regulations; including without limitation, all applicable health, safety, and 
hazardous materials regulations of the United States Consumer Product Safety Commission (“CPSC”) and/or any analogous authorized 
product and hazardous materials regulatory agency in the country where the Licensed Articles are manufactured. In countries where no 
such laws or regulations exist, the manufacturing of Licensed Articles in such countries shall take into account regional and United 
States standards, including those outlined in the Code of Conduct. 
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Since there may be no adequate remedy at law for Company’s failure to perform under the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
Licensor shall be entitled to seek injunctive relief to enforce its rights and protect the Licensed Property. If any legal action or any other 
proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement, or if a dispute arises under this Agreement, the successful or prevailing 
party shall be entitled to recover outside attorneys’ fees and other costs incurred in that action or proceeding, in addition to any other 
relief to which it may be entitled. Any party in whose favor a judgment has been entered shall also be entitled to the recovery of its 
outside attorneys’ fees and costs in enforcing such judgment; and 

  

  
By signing in the space provided below, the parties hereto have accepted and agreed to all the terms and conditions above. 
  
Pretty Ugly, LLC., 
  

                  

  

   (p) This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the federal laws of the United States and the laws of the State of 
New Jersey applicable to agreements entered into, and to be performed entirely, within New Jersey without regard to choice of law 
provisions, and regardless of the place or places of its actual execution or performance. Any suit, action or proceeding between or 
among any of the parties hereto arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the United States District Court, 
Central District of New Jersey, or the Courts of the State of New Jersey in Middlesex County. Company hereby submits to the personal 
jurisdiction thereof and agrees to such court as the appropriate venue. Pretty Ugly may, however, at its sole discretion, commence suit 
in any state or territory where Company maintains its principal place of business or Licensee’s manufacturing facilities, whether under 
the control of Licensee or acting as a third party on behalf of Licensee. 

   (q) Company acknowledges and agrees that it has read and signed Pretty Ugly’s Code of Conduct for licensees and manufacturers, and 
will comply with all provisions therein. 

By:    
     
Title:     
     
Date:     
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ACCEPTED AND AGREED: 
 
For and on behalf of: 
(“                                ”) 
  

                  

  

Manufacturer::    
     
Signature:      
     
Title:        
     
Telephone 
Number:    

   

     
E-mail address:      
     
Contact name:      
     
Date:     
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By signing in the space provided below, Licensee represents and warrants that it has fully informed Company of all provisions of the Merchandise 
Licensing Agreement applicable to the manufacturing of the Licensed Articles. In addition, Licensee acknowledges and agrees that the approval by 
Pretty Ugly of Company as a manufacturer in no way relieves Licensee from any of its obligations under the Merchandise Licensing Agreement. 
  
ACCEPTED AND AGREED: 
 
For and on behalf of: 
(“_______________________”) 
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Licensee:     
     
Signature:     
     
Title:    
     
Date:     



Exhibit 21.1 
 

Subsidiaries of the Company 
 

 

Name of Subsidiary   Jurisdiction of Incorporation 
BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding   Nevada 



Exhibit 31.1 
  

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

  
I, Nicole Ostoya, certify that: 

  
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 of BOLDFACE Group, Inc.; 
  
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in 

light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report; 
  
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial 

condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
  
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act 

Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 
  
    (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that 

material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

  
    (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles; 

  
    (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the 

disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
  
    (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter 

that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 
  
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s 

auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 
  
    (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to 

adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 
  
    (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial 

reporting. 
 

  
 

Dated: October 15, 2013 /s/ Nicole Ostoya 
  Nicole Ostoya, Chief Executive Officer and President 



Exhibit 31.2 
  

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

  
I, Ashumi Shippee, certify that: 

  
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 of BOLDFACE Group, Inc.; 
  
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make 

the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this 
quarterly report; 

  
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects 

the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
  
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined 

in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for 
the registrant and have: 

  
    (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within 
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  
    (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

  
    (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
  
    (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most 

recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 
  
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, 

to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 
  
    (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 
  
    (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal 

control over financial reporting. 
 

Dated: October 15, 2013 /s/ Ashumi Shippee 
  Ashumi Shippee, Chief Financial Officer 



Exhibit 32.1 
  

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 
  
In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 of BOLDFACE Group, Inc. (the “Company”), as filed with the Securities 

and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Nicole Ostoya, Chief Executive Officer and President of the Company, hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge: 

  
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 
  
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. 
  
The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a separate disclosure 

document.  A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by 
the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 

  

  

Dated: October 15, 2013 /s/ Nicole Ostoya 
  Nicole Ostoya, Chief Executive Officer and President 



Exhibit 32.2 
  

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 
  
In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 of BOLDFACE Group, Inc. (the “Company”), as filed 

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Ashumi Shippee, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby 
certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge: 

  
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 
  
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the 

Company. 
  
The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a 

separate disclosure document.  A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided 
to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 
 

  

Dated: October 15, 2013 /s/ Ashumi Shippee 
  Ashumi Shippee, Chief Financial Officer 


